

Spider-20/20E Manual

November19, 2015





Table of Contents

HARDWARE	9
What is included in the Box	
QUICK SETUP GUIDE	11 12
Connecting Your PC to the Spider Front-End	13
Running FDM	
Configuring a System	
Creating a New Test	
Where is My Data?	27
FRONT-END HARDWARE	29
Overview	
Spider-20	
Spider-80X	
Spider-81/81A/81B/81C	
Input Connections	
Choosing the Correct Input Coupling	
Matching Sensor Sensitivity to the Input Range	
Power Connection	
Digital I/O	
Pin Assignments	41
Output Circuit	
DIO Setting	45
Programming the DIO	45
BASIC EDM USER INTERFACE	46
Working Modes	
Menus in EDM Real-Time Mode	
l est Menu	
Setup Menu	
	53
User Accounts	
About the License Keys and Evaluation Mode	



EDM Global Settings	57
System Configuration	
Input Channel Settings in EDM	
Input Channel Setup	67
Creating FFT Tests	
Recent Test List	72
Signal List	73
Control Panel	75
Measured Signal Setup	76
Test Configuration	
Running a Test	
Viewing Signals	
Contextual Menus	
Display Window Toolbar	
Annotations	97
Cursors and Markers	
Saving and Recording Data	100
Save/Recording Setup	
Record to Spider-NAS	
Using Libraries	
Event-Action Rules	
Event Action Rules Setup	
Reports	112
Black Box Mode	115
Run the Test with Front Panel	
Using Socket Messages to Communicate with Other Applications	121
Database Backup and Restore	122
Accessing an SQL Server Remotely	
REAL-TIME FFT ANALYSIS	129
Dynamic Signal Analyzer Basics	
Power Spectrum	
Cross Spectrum	
Frequency Response Function	130
Shock Response Spectrum	131
Test Parameters	
Run Schedule	133
Measured Signals in FFT	



Output Setup	
Control Panel	
ACOUSTIC ANALYSIS	141
Octave Filters	
Full Octave Filters	
Fractional Octave Filters	143
Nominal center frequencies (mid-band frequencies)	144
Band Edge Frequencies of Fractional Filters	144
Analysis Frequency Range	144
Frequency Weighting	145
Time or RPM based RMS Trace of the Octave Filters	146
Exponential and Linear Averaging	147
Sound Level Meter	148
Terms and Definitions	149
Data Processing Diagram	151
SLM Measures	152
RMS trace of weighted level, time averaged level or sound exposure	
Histogram of Time Weighting	
Creating Acoustic Tests	
Recent Test List	158
Signal List	158
Control Panel	
Measured Signal Setup	
Test Configuration	
Running a Test	
Viewing Signals	
Test Parameters	
FFT Analysis Parameters	
Octave Filter Parameters	170
Sound Level Meter Parameters	
ORDER TRACKING	171
Capabilities of the Spider	
Applications	
Applications	
Tachemeter Pressessing and DDM Massurement	
Creden Tracke and Orden Spectrum	
Order Tracks and Order Spectrum	



FFT Spectrum or Constant Bandwidth Spectrum	
Band RMS Spectrum	181
Raw Data Time Streams	183
Phase for Order Tracks	183
The Phase in Rotating Machine Analysis	183
Bode Plot	
Operating Spider system	186
Creating a Test	
Recent Test List	
Signal List	
Control Panel	
Tachometer Setup	
Order Analysis Parameters Setup	198
FFT Analysis Parameters Setup	
Input Channels Setup	
Output Channels Setup	201
Measured Signals Setup	
Time stream Signals	
RPM Streams	
Order Spectra	207
FFT spectra	
Order Tracks	
Band RMS Spectra	
All Signals	
Running a test	
Display signals	
3D Signals Display	
REAL TIME DIGITAL FILTER	221
FIR Real Time Digital Filters	223
Data Windows FIR Filters	224
Remez Filters	229
IIR Real Time Digital Filters	
Applying Filters	
AUTOMATED ALARM LIMIT TEST	236
Apply Alarm Limits on EDM	
Customize Event Action Strings and Its Application in Limit Checking	
Limit Related Settings in Run Schedule and Event Action Rules	



SHOCK RESPONSE SPECTRUM ANALYSIS	245
Measured Signals in SRS	247
SRS Analysis Parameters and Synthesis Parameters	
SWFFD SINF FRF	250
Introduction	
General Operation	
SINE REDUCTION	257
Introduction	
A Typical Test	
Configuration on EDM	
EDM KEYBOARD SHORTCUTS	262
INSTALLING THE ENGINEERING DATA MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE (EDM Microsoft SQL Database Server Installation	1) 263 263
EDM Software Installation Wizard	
USING EDM APP	274
INSTALLING THE IPAD SOFTWARE	278
CONTROL THE SPIDER FROM THE IPAD	280
Simulation Made	
Front End Detection	202
Create A New Test	
Lineut Chappels	
Advensed Centrel Items	
Viewing Data	201 ۲۰۵۲
Sharing Data	207
Coporate Popert Save Test and Save Signal	290
Sottings	290
Updato Eirmwaro Vorsion	243
	294
Dynamic Signal Analyzer Basics	296 296
Power Spectrum	
Cross Spectrum	
Frequency Response Function	
Shock Response Spectrum	
FFT Test Parameters	



Measured Signals in FFT	
Run the Test	
RANDOM CONTROL TESTS	304
The Random Control Process	
Control Dynamic Range in Random	
Safety Features	
RMS Limits	
Limit Channels	
Averaging and DOF	
Random Test Parameters	
Run Schedule	
Test Profile	
Measured Signals in Random	
Shaker Parameters	
Check Against Shaker	
Run the Test	
SWEPT SINE CONTROL TESTS	322
The Sine Control Process	
Safety Features	
Limit Channels	
Sine Test Parameters	
Run Schedule	
Test Profile	
Measured Signals in Sine	
Shaker Parameters	
Check Against Shaker	
Run the Test	
CLASSIC SHOCK CONTROL TESTS	339
Waveform Compensation	
Safety Features	
Shock Abort Limit	
Shock Test Parameters	
Run Schedule	
Test Profile	
Measured Signals in Shock	
Shaker Parameters	
Check Against Shaker	



LIMITED WARRANTY & LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	357
Uploading Tests	354
Introduction	354
BLACK-BOX MODE	354
Run the Test	350



Hardware

Introduction

Spider-20 is a compact yet powerful digital data recorder and dynamic signal analyzer. It provides four 24-bit precise high-fidelity input channels, and a unique software-selectable tachometer-input/signal-source output channel (all using conventional BNC connectors). Each input is individually programmable to accept AC or DC voltage or output from an IEPE (ICP) sensor with built-in electronics.

Spider-20 is a diminutive 5 5/16 x 45/16 x 15/16 inch tool weighing only 18 ounces. It has only three push-button controls and five LED status indicators. This little powerhouse can run over 6 hours on its internal rechargeable battery which can be replaced in field with a backup battery. It can also record data on its built-in 4GB flash memory at the simple push of a button.

Spider-20 communicates with the world through its built-in Wi-Fi interface. Use your iPad to setup and view or record time histories as well as perform spectrum analysis or measure Frequency Response and Coherence functions. Link the Spider-20 to your laptop or tablet running Windows and enjoy the full repertoire of functionality provided by our EDM (Engineering Data Management) software including 1/nth Octave acoustic functions, Order Tracking for rotating machinery, Shock Response Spectra for drop testing, or Digital Filtering for special purpose analysis.

Transfer measured data to truly massive storage space using the EDM Cloud server. EDM can be used to program your Spider-20 to perform a custom measurement or measurement sequence at the touch of its START button, making it an unintimidating and user-friendly tool. No computer, tablet or phone is required; just use your thumb and your Spider-20 operating in Black Box mode. Use our flexible Automated Schedule and Limiting software to turn this Spider into an intelligent unattended monitor capable of responding to data conditions or networked instructions, notifying you of significant conditions via e-mail.

Spider-20E is the Ethernet version of Spider-20. Spider-20E communicates with the world through Ethernet interface. It requires additional wireless router to communicate with iPad.

Spider-20/20E is the perfect solution to many applications including:

Machinery Diagnosis

Four inputs and a tachometer channel are the perfect size for many machinery monitoring tasks. Simultaneously measure two perpendicular proximity probes or horizontal and vertical bearing cap accelerations at both ends of a machine. Record this along with a 1/rev tachometer during startups and shutdowns to plot waterfalls and Campbell diagrams identifying resonances, critical speeds and unusual forcing



functions. Use the same signal inputs to balance the machine. Place accelerometers on either side of a coupling to aid alignment.

Machine/Process Monitoring

Load a custom monitoring program employing our Automated Schedule and Limiting software and leave your Spider-20 to monitor speed and four dynamic inputs. Upon detecting an alarm-level limit (in the time or frequency domain), it can send you an email reporting the finding and make an immediate recording for more detailed analysis. For longer stays, leave the accessory AC power unit plugged in. This allows Spider-20 to draw power (6 Watts, maximum) from any 100 to 240 VAC (47 – 440 Hz) power line. Alternatively, you can provide a battery backup of 15 VDC (\pm 10%) for more remote applications.

Modal Analysis

Four signal inputs allow you to measure a force and three accelerations. Use a fixed tri-axial accelerometer or up to 3 separate reference accelerometers and a force-transduced hammer to perform impulse studies (with redundant measurements). Alternatively, turn on the output channel and let the Spider drive a shaker with random noise while you rove a tri-axial around the structure, measuring 3 degrees of response freedom at a time. Switch the shaker drive to a sinewave at a detected resonance frequency to do a quick hand-and-ear mode shape analysis on the spot.

Acoustic Studies

Add an ICP microphone and your iPad or iPhone becomes a full function sound level meter. Add 3 more and it becomes a multi-channel, multi-function sound level recorder and analyzer. Use it with an intensity probe for noise source localization. Take the Spider-20 on the road or in the air to record interior noise signatures during full-spectrum vehicle operation. Make and monitor pass-by measurements from the vehicle. Validate all of your recordings in-place on your tablet or laptop before returning to base.

Vehicle Dynamics

Record speed and four DC-coupled accelerometers to fully document chassis handling characteristics. Record any combination of acceleration, displacement, strain and sound to characterize annoying operational periods. Monitor engine and driveline vibration on your remote screen during road tests, whether you are the driver, a passenger or a standing observer.

Temporary Monitor

Let's face it – sometimes things just go wrong and we don't know why. This can happen in the factory or at a remote installation and occurs even with brand new



products. The problem may be sonic or something shaking or breaking. The mission is always the same – find out what's causing the problem and correct it. A few simple measurements made over the course of a day or a week may provide the necessary clue to solve this annoying mystery. Spider-20 is ideal for such "detective work". Through EDM it has a very flexible measurement repertoire and the ability to take various actions based upon instantaneous data conditions and other (networked) stimuli. Spider-20 is small, silent, draws little power, and is inexpensive to replace. It's the right kind of instrument to lock down in an unexpected place for an exploratory "look-and-see".

A standard shipping package will include a Spider-20 unit with batteries installed, a pair of backup batteries, a battery charger, one 3ft BNC cable, an AC power adapter CD for software and the calibration certificate.

What is Included in the Box

Included Accessories:

Item #	Description	Qty	PN
1	Soft Bag	1	S20-A13
2	Spider-20/20E Battery (Installed)	2	S20-A02
3	Spider-20/20E Battery (Additional)	2	S20-A02
4	Battery Charger	1	S20-A16
5	BNC Cable: 3 feet	1	S20-A03
6	CD for EDM, the host software, User's Manual in PDF	1	S20-A90
7	AC/DC Power Adapter	1	S20-
8	Universal Power Plug	1	A11NA
9	Certificate of Calibration	1	S20-A93
10	Certificate of Conformance	1	S80-A95

Quick Setup Guide

The Spider-20/20E is controlled by Engineering Database Management software in both Windows version (referred as EDM) and iOS version (referred as EDM App).

The EDM software runs on several different hardware platforms from Crystal Instruments:

- Spider-81: an 8-channel device that can be expanded to a system with hundreds of channels.
- Spider-81A: a 16-channel dedicated controller
- Spider-81B: a 4-channel economic version of Spider-81



- Spider-81C: a 2-channel compact-size and Wi-Fi version of Spider-81
- Spider-80X, a compact packaging of Spider-81 that can be expanded to a system with hundreds of channels
- Spider-20/20E, a 4-channel handheld Wi-Fi/Ethernet enabled signal analyzer and data recorder.

When there is no confusion, this manual refers the hardware platforms above as "Spider". When the description is specifically related to a type of hardware, the product model number will be mentioned.

Important Safety Information

The Spider product complies with:

EN 61326:1997+A1:1998+A2:2001

EN61000-3-2: 2000 & EN61000-3-3: 1995+A1:2001

The Spider and its accessories should be used only as specified in this User's Manual or the warranty protection provided by Crystal Instruments may be void.

Condensation may form on the circuit boards when the device is moved from a cold environment to a warm one. In these situations, always wait until the device warms up to room temperature and is completely dry before turning it on. This acclimatization should take about 2 hours.

For the most accurate measurements, a warm-up phase of 20 minutes is recommended.

These devices have been designed for use in clean and dry environments. They are not to be operated in 1) exceedingly dusty and/or wet environments, 2) in environments where danger of explosion exists, and 3) in environments containing aggressive chemical agents.

Always lay cables in such a manner as to avoid tripping hazards.

A *Warning* identifies conditions and actions that pose hazard(s) to the user. A *Caution* identifies conditions and actions that may damage the instrument.

To avoid electrical shock or fire:

- 1. The Spider is a low voltage measurement instrument.
- 2. Do not apply input voltages above the rating of the instrument. Never apply a voltage that potentially exceeds ± 20 V.
- 3. Review the entire manual before using the instrument and its accessories.
- 4. Do not operate the instrument around explosive gas or vapor.



- 5. Before use, inspect the instrument, BNC connectors and accessories for mechanical damage and replace if damaged. Look for cracked or missing plastic. Pay special attention to the insulation surrounding the connectors.
- 6. Remove the cables and accessories that are not in use.
- 7. Use the ground input only to ground the instrument. Do not apply any voltage.
- 8. Do not insert metal objects into connectors.
- 9. Use only the wall-mount AC Adapter provided by Crystal Instruments.

AC Adapter Voltage Range

For external power sources the Spider-80X uses a wall-mount AC adapter. The AC Power range is: $100 - 240V_{AC}$, 47 - 440 Hz.

Maximum Measurement Input Voltage

The maximum working input voltage is 20 V peak. Voltage ratings are given as **"working voltage". They should be** read as V_{peak}for dynamic applications and as V_{DC} for DC applications.

The maximum input range without damaging the hardware is 40V_{peak}.

Connecting Your PC to the Spider Front-End

You can connect the Spider modules through an Ethernet LAN or directly to your PC using an Ethernet crossover cable. There is a CAT-5 100Base-T jack on the rear of the modules.



If your Spider system consists of more than one module, you will need to connect the modules with a network switch or router. It is recommended that your system use a private LAN rather than a shared office LAN. Spider hardware supports IEEE 1588 time synchronization. To scale the measurement system with more than one Spider unit, an Ethernet switch supporting IEEE 1588 is highly recommended.



Figure 1: Topology

Set Master or Slave Mode

The M/S switch on the back of each unit is used to control whether it is configured as a Master or a Slave. For a system with multiple units, only one can be configured as a Master, and all others must be set as Slaves.





If you are using only one module, the system will automatically configure it as a Master regardless of the switch position. If additional modules are added at a later date, it will be necessary to configure the first module as the Master and each of the additional modules as Slaves.

Connect the Power Adapter

Connect the power adapter to the power jack on the rear of the device and to an AC power source. The power adapter is an AC to DC converter that accepts 100 - 240 V_{AC}(47 - 440 Hz) and outputs $15V_{DC}$. The total power consumption is less than 10 watts during full operation.



Turn Spider Power On

After the Ethernet cable and power adapter are connected to the Spider, press the Power button on the front of the unit. The LAN LED will illuminate.



IP Setup

When each Spider is shipped, unless the user has requested otherwise, it is set by default to the Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (**DHCP**). If no DHCP server is found when Spider is connected to a PC or LAN, the device will resort to a link-**local address auto configuration**. In this mode, the device randomly chooses an address in the 169.254.x.x address space.

Since all this happens automatically, the IP settings of the Spider modules should not need to be manually set.

If a static IP configuration is required, IP settings of the Spider can be changed with the Spider IP Address Setup**Tool** that was installed with EDM. This tool is located in the EDM installation **folder. It is called "EDM.SetIP.exe".**



change the IP setting o	f a device, following these procedures:	Serial Number	IP Address	Detect
. Connect the device through	cross-over Ethernet cable or LAN	980640	192.168.0.101	Class
Press the [Detect] button	to detect the devices			Clear
. Highlight the device item tha	at you want to change and fill the settings			Connectto Kno
Press the [Set IP Addre	ss] button			IP Address
fterwards, the LED on device	will flashfor 2 seconds. Then it will automatically restart.			
	(Dead for an Device)		To be Written to David	
	Read from Device		To be written to Devi	ice
Serail Number:	980640	💿 Obtain an IPAd	dress via DHCP(0)	
IP Address(I):	192 . 168 . 0 . 101	Specify an IP Ad	idress(S):	
Subnet Mask(U):	255 . 0 . 0 . 0	IP Address(I):		192 . 168 . 0 . 101
Defaut GateWay(D):	192 . 168 . 0 . 1	Subnet Mask(U):		255 . 255 . 255 . 0
DHCP:	DHCP	Defaut GateWay	(D):	192.168.1.5

Figure 2: Set Device IP Address

Each connected hardware module will be listed by serial number. To change settings, select a module, enter the desired IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway, and click Set Spider IP. You can also choose to have the IP settings automatically assigned via DHCP. The LED on the Spider will flash for a couple seconds, indicating that the new IP has been assigned. It is helpful to keep track of the IP address of each module and its physical location.

Reset Device button allow users to restart the hardware system without pressing the power button on the hardware. Restarting the device remotely provides great convenience for remote testing. The tool returns the status whether the system is restarted successfully.

Watchdogallows the software to automatically monitor whether the hardware system is running normally. Watchdog is off by default; when Watchdog is on, the software will remotely restart the hardware if the hardware system hangs or is interrupted during a complicated test. The user does not need to physically touch the hardware to restart it. Watchdog is suggested for situations when the system does remote monitoring and is not easily accessible..

Resetting to Factory Default IP Settings

To reset to the factory default IP address of 192.168.1.153 for the Spider-80X, press and hold the **Reset** button on the back of the unit for 4 seconds.

Computer Network Settings

The network settings on the PC must have a matching subnet and subnet mask in order to communicate with a Spider module. If both the computer and the Spider module are set to use DHCP, then they will automatically configure matching IP addresses with the correct matching subnet settings.

To verify the network connection, use the PING command in the Command Prompt window on the PC. In the Windows Start Menu, select Run, type ping 192.168.1.182 (the actual IP of your Spider), and press enter. (Note: replace the factory default IP, 192.168.1.182, with the actual configured IP address of the device.



If it is correctly configured, the ping command will receive responses, as shown below.



Figure 3: Ping Test

Configure a Hardware System with Multiple Modules

Please refer to the chapter 错误! 未找到引用源。, when a system uses multiple ront-end modules. This may require special knowledge of the network settings.

Running EDM

You are now ready to launch EDM. This section will explain the basics of configuring a system, running a test, and saving data.

Select Spider Real-Time Working Mode

Make sure EDM is in Spider Working Mode. To change the working mode, use the Working Mode item either under the EDM menu in the upper left corner of the screen or under the Tools menu, depending on the current working mode.



Figure 4: EDM Working Mode Selection

Connect to a Database

It is necessary to create a database to store and access test configuration data. When you first open EDM, the Database Access Wizard will be displayed. Select Create a



New Database to create a new empty database. Click on the Next button, enter a new database name, and click the Create button. Then, click the Access button after the database has been created.

atabase Connectio	n Wizard		?
Micr	Son cor 2000		
6 20	2L Server 2008		
Login Help			
LastAccessed:	kings SQLServer2008		
Server Type:	SQL Server		
Server:	localhost	•	
Authentication:	Windows Authentication		
Action:	O Access this database		
	• Switch to another database		
	Create a new database		
		Next	Cancel

Figure 5: Database Access

There are two password controls in the EDM software. One password accesses the database server and the other password logs into EDM as a user. The database password is rarely used.





Figure 6: Create New Database

Alternatively, to open an existing database, select Switch to another database and in the next window select the database to use.

	iys.					
bu	ug_fix	king			-	
kin	ng					
ne	w_da	ataba	ase			
pp	ор					
spi	ider_	h		 	 _	_
3-2	27 20;	(13:2)	1			
7-1	4 17:	:38:13	3			
7-1	14 17:	:38:13	3			

Figure 7: Switch to Another Database

Configuring a System

A data acquisition or controller system can be configured from any combination of available front-end modules connected to the LAN. The desktop software can store multiple configurations and recall any one of them for a test.

When all of the front-end modules have been connected, bring up the hardware configuration window by clicking on **Spider Config**, or **Tools->Spider Configuration**.



Detected and previously used modules will be listed on the left side by IP address and serial number. The top right section shows the modules in the currently selected system, and the section below lists settings for the selected module. To create a new system, click the Create a New Spider System button on the bottom left, enter a name for the system, and select the module or modules to include.



Manage Spider module	Manage Spider system							
Detected modules	Configured systems: 2580256			*	Default system	6		
(M) SN: 2580256 (IP: 192.168.1.158)								2
Modules previously saved	Rename Delete	Set as defa	ult	Report +	Auto apply to a	ill test after set as	default System	m
 SN: 980640 (IP: 192.168.1.6) 	Name	Serial	umber	IP address	Module tvp	e Detected	Connected	IsMaster
(M) SN: 663008 (IP: 192.168.0.104)		258025	6	1021681158	Spider 80V	Ver	No	Var
(M) SN: 3860288 (IP: 192.168.1.29)	- (m) 514.2500250	230023	•	172.100.1.190	Sprace-oux	145	110	100
(M) SN: 25808204 (P: 192.168.1.116)								
- (M) SN: 1001792 (IP: 192.168.0.4)								
- (M) SN: 2583456 (IP: 192.168.1.107)								
			_	A D		000001	-	1
	Handman Informed Manian	TO CONTRACT	Dates	- Spider Module	Details - [SIN: 25	80256]	In contract	1
	Hardware Into and Version	IP Setting	Date a	nd Time Setting	DIO Setting	Generate report	Retresh Into	
	Hardware Information	_	_	_				
	Name SN: 2580256		Serial number		2580256			
	Device type	e type Spider-80X		Master or Slave		/e	Master	
	Charge enabled	No		Total channels		s	8/8	
	Last calibration date	8/19/2013			Next calibration	on due	2/26/2015	
	Version Information							
	EDM version	50857			Hardware ver	sion	740	
	DSP application version	5.0.8.57			Firmware version		5.0.8.57	
	BIT version	10309			PCB ID		80008	
	CARL CONTRACT							
Create a New Spider system								
Create a New Spider system Diagnose Spider Modules								

Figure 8: Spider System Configuration

Updating Firmware

All front-end devices should be kept up to date with the latest firmware to ensure the best operation. The desktop software will automatically detect and update the firmware on connected modules. To manually update or change the firmware on a device, contact a Crystal Instruments tech support engineer at +1-408-986-8880.

Creating a New Test

Once the front-end system has been configured and connected, a test can be set up by clicking on **New Test**.



Figure 9: New Test

Click on **Config** to access test configuration parameters.



	Run	Hold	Stop
Test Configuration	Res.	Silve	Config

Figure 10: Test Configuration

The test configuration area is a multiple-tab dialog box that allows the user to set up the analysis parameters, run schedule, event-action rules and other settings. Some of these parameters can also be set directly on the control panel while a test is running.

Analysis parameters «	Note: analysis parameters	are available based on the measurement type chosen	
nalysis parameters			
un schedule	FFT analysis settings		
vent action rules	Frequency range (fa)	12 kHz Sample rate format	
ave/Recording setup	Block size/Line	1024 / 450	
	Window		
	WINDOW I	Hanning	
	Overlap ratio	No Overlap	
	Average mode	Exponential	
	Average number	8	
	FFT average on/off	Average on	
	Reference channel set	ings	
	Reference channel	Ch1	
	Test summary		
	Block T = 0.04 s	dT = 3.90625E-05 s	
	Sampling rate (fs) = 2560	0 Hz dF = 25 Hz	
	Frequency range (fa)=11	520 Hz	

Figure 11. Test Configuration

A test can be controlled by the buttons on the Control Panel and on the Control Toolbar.



Disconnect	Onli	ne		
Run	Hold	Stop		
Rec.	Save	Config		
Total elapsed:	Outpu	ıt pk:		
00:00:0)5	0.0		
Frame#:		14		
Frequency range:	12 kHz	•		
Block size/Line:	1024/4	150 -		
Window:	Hanning	Hanning 🗸		
Overlap ratio:	No Ove	rlap 🔽		
Average mode:	Expone	ntial 🔽		
Average number:		8		
Reset avg		/iew window		
Setup trigger	Pr	eview trigger		
Trigger switch:		OFF		
Output switch:		OFF		
Limit check switc	h:	OFF		

Figure 12: Test Control Panel

Saving Signals and Recording Time Streams

Different options are available to save measurement data. EDM uses the terms **Save** for block data and **Record** for time stream data. Blocks of data, which include time-domain and frequency domain blocks, can be manually saved by clicking the Save Sigs button or automatically captured based on a trigger setting. Time stream data can be recorded manually by pressing the Rec.button or by using a run schedule. Data can be stored on the internal flash memory of the front-end device or on a hard drive connected to the PC.

ave

To select which signals to save or record, click on **Setup->Measured Signals**. Under this tab, signals are organized according to their type; each signal can save or record.



Setu	p	Control	View	<u>L</u> ayout	Tool
0	т	est Config	guration	Ctrl+	FΤ
	E	ngineerin	g Units		
	Ir	put Chan	nels	Ctrl	+I
14	M	leasured 9	Signals	Ctrl+	M
1	0	utput Cha	innels	Ctrl+	ΗE
1	Т	est Seque	nce	Ctrl+	Q
	В	lack Box S	ietup	Ctrl+	в
	A	larm Limit	s		

Figure 13: Signal Setup

The signals checked in the Save List column (below) can be automatically saved when the user presses the Save Sig button on the control panel, or when an Event-Action Rule generates a Save Signal action. Currently displayed signals can also be saved by pressing Ctrl+S or by clicking on the small disk icon on the top of the window.

	Signal name	Measure	Save/Record list	Signal color	Storage	
001	Ch1	~			Record to Spider	
002	Ch2	~	~		Record to Spider	
003	Ch3	~			Record to Spider	
004	Ch4	•			Record to Spider	
005	Ch5	•			Record to Spider	
006	Ch6	7	~		Record to Spider	
007	Ch7	~			Record to Spider	
008	Ch8	~	V		Record to Spider	
009	Block(Ch1)	7	~		Save to PC	
010	Block(Ch2)	7	~		Save to PC	
011	Block(Ch3)	~			Save to PC	
012	Block(Ch4)	~	V		Save to PC	
013	Block(Ch5)	~	V		Save to PC	
014	Block(Ch6)	~	V		Save to PC	
015	Block(Ch7)	7	~		Save to PC	
016	Block(Ch8)	~	V		Save to PC	
017	APS(Ch1)	~			Save to PC	
018	APS(Ch2)	~			Save to PC	
019	APS(Ch3)	~			Save to PC	
020	APS(Ch4)	~			Save to PC	
021	APS(Ch5)	~			Save to PC	
022	APS(Ch6)	V	~		Save to PC	

Figure 14: All Signals Setup

Block(Ch1)		4 Þ 🗙
및 수 수 사는 10 1	× R /	-> X
	Save block sig	nals to file (Ctrl+S)

Figure 15: Save Signal Frame to File



View Live Signals

To view a live signal, find it from the list of available live signals on the left side in EDM. Right-click the signal and select Display in New Window.



Figure 16: Signal Display Options

You can also select **View->New Window**. This brings up the Window Customizer dialog box where you can select which signals to display and which type of display window to use.



New Signal Display Window	?	X
All signals Saved signals Live signals <i by="" name<="" signal="" th="" title=""><th>e></th><th></th></i>	e>	
Choose plot signals	Choose window lype	
 Autopower spectrum ApS(Ch1) ApS(Ch2) ApS(Ch3) ApS(Ch4) ApS(Ch5) ApS(Ch6) ApS(Ch6) ApS(Ch7) ApS(Ch7) ApS(Ch8) 4 Immediate stream Immediate stream 	Overlaid plot	
If no signals are selected, an empty window will be created.	OK Cancel	-

Figure 17:.New Signal Display Window

Run Folders

Every time the user presses the Run button on the Control Panel, a Run folder is created on the disk by default. Data files and a runlog are saved in the Run folder.



Live Signals Run Folders Data Files	
▲ 📢 <u>Run2</u> Jul 14, 2015 17-52-37	
> MM SIG0005 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-40	
b MM SIG0004 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-40	
4 🏹 <u>Run1</u> Jul 14, 2015 17-52-21	
A 🗤 SIG0003 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-24	
a 🎫 Time Signals	
Block(Ch1)	
M. Block(Ch2)	
Block(Ch3)	
Block(Ch4)	
Block(Ch5)	
Block(Ch6)	
Block(Ch7)	
Program Block(Ch8)	
A Second	
APS(Ch1)	
APS(Ch2)	
APS(Ch3)	
APS(Ch4)	
In APS(ChS)	
1 APS(Ch0)	
A 0000 SIG0002 Jul 14 2015 17-52-24	
5 5160002 501 14, 2015 17-52-24	
Erequency Signals	
SIG0001 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-24	
SIG0000 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-24	
Default Folder Jul 14, 2015 17-46-21	

To save all the data files into one single folder, right-click on the Run Folders pane and select "Use this Run folder for all Runs".

Live Signals Run Folders Data Files	0.0007		
A Run2 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-37	Open Run Folder		
5IG0004 Jul 14, 2015 17	Rename Run Folder		
▷ 👘 Run1 Jul 14, 2015 17-52-21	Export Run Folder		
🕤 <u>Default Folder</u> Jul 14, 2015	Add Run Folder to Data Files Tab		
	Use this Run Folder for All Runs		
	Delete this Run Folder		
	Compare Signals		
	Export to Single txt file		
	Expand All		
	Collapse All		

A Run folder can be opened, renamed or exported. When a Run Folder is exported, all of the data files in the Run Folder will be copied to the target folder.



View Saved Data

Saved signals for the current test are shown under the Run Folders tab on the left of the screen. Right-click on any listed signal to display it.

Live Signals Run Folde	ers Data Files	0.00006
4 🏹 <u>Run2</u> Nov 11, 201	14 15-17-40 🔺	
ANN SIG0005 Nov	11, 2014 15-18-06	D.00004
4 Time Signal	S	
	n1)	
Elo 🔤	Display in a New <u>W</u> indow	
hơ Blo	Add to the <u>A</u> ctive Window	
In Blo	Export Data to Excel(E)	
Elo 🗠		
hr. Blo	Export Data to File(F)	
hr Blo	Rename	
<u>لمب</u> Blo	Add Annotation	
A 🔤 Freque	Attach Object	
APS		the character
the APS	Remove All Annotation and A	ttachment

Figure 18: Signal Display Settings

To view the data files saved by other tests, click on the Data Files tab and browse the folder:





Create a Report

Click on the Report tab. Much information as listed below can be generated in a report in WORD document. Defined Template feature has many templates that were previously defined to generate the report, or the user can customize his/her own ones.



Figure 19: Create a Report

Where is My Data?

The testing data is managed by the CPU on the front-end hardware and PC (or, iPad and other peripherals). The testing configuration and testing results, i.e. the measured signals, can be saved in various locations, summarized with the following diagram:





On the PC the database keeps all the history, testing setup, and the final snap shot of measured signals. If you want to backup the setup of ALL tests, simply backup or export the complete database.

The testing data is organized with hierarchy of Tests>Runs >Measured Signals.

On the PC hard disk, a test folder containing multiple RUN folders is also created.A test project file, *.STK, **is a copy of the test setup in the database with the same test name.** It is a single file and can be easily transported to another PC.

The Run folders keep multiple measured signals saved by the user or the test. These measured signals are not stored in the database.

Each file of Measured Signals contains multiple signals that are captured at one time. We call these signals collectively a frame of data.

If the user sets the Front-End to black box mode or selects to save the Measured Signals to the Front-End instead of the PC, the measured signals will be saved to the front-end hardware instead of the PC. Users can always download the measured data from the Front-End to the PC.

On the front-end hardware, the most recent dozen tests are kept in the flash memory so the hardware can run without the PC. If operated with the PC, the software will automatically synchronize the test configuration from the PC to the Front-End.



Front-End Hardware

Overview

Crystal Instruments currently have several products that are network based – Spider-20, Spider-80X, Spider-80SG, and Spider 81/81A/81B/81C. Each product is designed by state-of-art technology to meet various needs. The Spider-80SG hardware is not included in this chapter but is described in detail in Strain Measurement and Analysis chapter.

Spider-20

Spider-20 is a compact yet powerful digital data recorder and dynamic signal analyzer. It provides four 24-bit precise high-fidelity input channels, and a unique software-selectable tachometer-input/signal-source output channel (all using conventional BNC connectors). Each input is individually programmable to accept AC or DC voltage or output from an IEPE (ICP) sensor with built-in electronics.

Spider-20 is a diminutive 5.3 x 4.3 x 1 inch tool weighing only 18 ounces. It has only three push-button controls and five LED status indicators. This little powerhouse can run over 6 hours on its internal rechargeable battery which can be replaced in field with a backup battery. It can also record data on its built-in 4GB flash memory at the simple push of a button.

Spider-20 communicates with the world through its built-in Wi-Fi interface. Use your iPad to setup and view or record time histories as well as perform spectrum analysis or measure Frequency Response and Coherence functions. Link the Spider-20 to your laptop or tablet running Windows and enjoy the full repertoire of functionality provided by our EDM (Engineering Data Management) software including 1/nth Octave acoustic functions, Order Tracking for rotating machinery, Shock Response Spectra for drop testing, or Digital Filtering for special purpose analysis.

Transfer measured data to truly massive storage space using the EDM Cloud server. EDM can be used to program your Spider-20 to perform a custom measurement or measurement sequence at the touch of its START button, making it an unintimidating and user-friendly tool. No computer, tablet or phone is required; just use your thumb and Spider-20 operating in Black Box mode. Use our flexible Automated Schedule and Limiting software to turn this Spider into an intelligent unattended monitor capable of responding to data conditions or networked instructions, notifying you of significant conditions via e-mail.

Spider-80X

The Spider-80X is a highly modular, truly distributed, scalable dynamic measurement system introduced by Crystal Instruments. The Spider-80X is ideal for a wide range of industries including automotive, aviation, aerospace, electronics and military; industries requiring vibration testing and condition monitoring. The



Spider-80X excels in industries that demand quick and accurate data recording in addition to real-time signal processing.

Multiple Spider front-ends can be combined to form a single high channel system. The Spider system can be arranged with various Spider front-ends and network switches to form different configurations. With multiple Spider-80X front-ends, a Spider system can have up to 64 input channels in a chassis and chained up to hundreds of channels, all sampled simultaneously. Even higher channel systems are possible. Multiple Spider front-ends are accurately synchronized through the IEEE 1588v2 protocol, making sure all measurement channels are on the same time base. Accurate time synchronization results in excellent phase match in the frequency domain between all channels, either on the same Spider front-end or across different front-ends. Channel phase match, even between separate Spider front-ends, is within 1.0 degree at 20 kHz which is suitable for high quality structural and acoustics applications requiring cross channel measurement.

Spider-80X front-ends have voltage, IEPE, and optional charge types of input, which are ideal for shock, vibration, acoustic, or general purpose voltage measurements. Each Spider-80X front-end is equipped with 8 input channels and can accurately measure and record both dynamic and static signals. The mass flash memory can record 8 channels of streaming signals simultaneously at up to 102.4 kHz while computing real-time time and frequency based functions. Two output channels provide various signal output waveforms that are synchronized with the input sampling rate. Two tachometers sharing the connectors with outputs allow the system to measure the rotating pulse signals and conduct order tracking.

The Spider-80X front-ends can be controlled by a host PC or run in Black Box mode where a preprogrammed schedule is uploaded to the unit and started manually or based on event triggers. The ability to use any front-end in Black Box mode or in a distributed network system means that the user can place front-ends close to the measurement object, minimizing cable length and decreasing setup time. There is a built-in isolated digital I/O to interface with other hardware.

Spider-81/81A/81B/81C

The Spider-81 series is a highly modular, distributed, scalable vibration control system developed by Crystal Instruments. It represents the fourth generation of vibration control systems with advanced technology unavailable in the current generation.

Unlike traditional controllers that rely heavily on an external computer for realtime operations, the Spider-81 is the first controller that directly integrates timesynchronized Ethernet connectivity with embedded DSP technology. This greatly increases the control performance, system reliability, and failure protection of the controller. It also allows a large number of channels to be configured without sacrificing system performance.



The Spider-81 hardware modules have voltage, charge, and IEPE inputs which are ideal for shock, vibration, and acoustic measurement or general purpose voltage measurement. The internal flash memory stores test configuration data for controlling up to hundreds of channels simultaneously and stores real-time analysis data. Multiple output channels provide various signal output waveforms that are synchronized with the input sampling rate. A bright LCD displays testing status information. Ten monitoring connections on each unit are used to read signals of analog input and output. The front panel has intuitive function buttons. There is a built-in isolated digital I/O to interface with other hardware.

Ethernet connectivity allows the Spider-81 to be located far from the host PC. This distributed structure greatly reduces noise and electrical interference in the system. One PC monitors and controls multiple controllers over the network. Since the control processing and data recording are executed locally inside the controller, the network connection does not affect control reliability. With wireless network routers, a PC connects easily to the Spider-81 remotely via Wi-Fi.

The Spider-81 is built on IEEE 1588 PTP time synchronization technology (PTP-Precision Time Protocol). Spider-81 modules on the same network can be synchronized with up to 100 ns accuracy, which guarantees ± 1 degree cross channel phase match up to 20 kHz. With such unique technology and high-speed Ethernet data transfer, the distributed components on the network truly act as one integrated system.

The Spider-81 in Black Box mode enables operation without a PC. In this mode, a PC is used only to configure the control system before the system starts operation and to download data after the test is completed. During the test, the controller operates according to a preset schedule or from a connected iPad. Black Box mode is included with every Spider-81/81B.

For hardware with version 5.8 and lower, up to 4 tests are uploaded and stored on each module. For hardware with version 7.3 and higher, up to 8 tests are uploaded and stored on each module.

Each Spider-81 is equipped with a bright front-panel LCD that displays system status and test information. Real-time status such as control RMS or sweeping frequency is instantly viewed on the LCD.

The Spider-81 is the very first vibration control system designed for fail-safe operation even in the event of network or power loss. Advanced safety routines allow sensor failures to be detected within milliseconds. All Spider-81 hardware passes strict environmental tests including EMI, temperature, drop shock, sine and random vibration. The system is built to withstand the rigors of the testing environment with long-lasting durability. The unique floating ground design reduces ground loop problems typically found in testing laboratories. A powerbackup circuitry based on super-capacitor is installed to prevent the unexpected power loss.



Using a patented dual parallel A/D design, the Spider-81 is the first vibration control system that achieves 150 dBFS input dynamic range. Each measurement **channel can detect signals as small as 6 \muV and as large as 20 V. This design** completely eliminates the need for the input range or gain settings found on traditional controllers.

The Spider-81A 16-input version is designed to be a compact system. It integrates two Spider-81 modules and a switch. However, the system cannot be expanded beyond 16 inputs and does not support Black Box mode or Spider-NAS.

The Spider-81B is designed to meet the requirements of basic vibration testing applications. It has 4 inputs, 1 output, and 4 pairs of digital I/O.

The Spider-81C member has a Wi-Fi router built-in so that the iPad can access the hardware directly. It has 2 analog inputs, 1 analog output, and 4 pairs of digital I/O. The control processing and data recording are executed locally inside the controller. The network connection does not affect control reliability.

Unlike traditional controllers that rely heavily on an external computer for realtime operations, the Spider-81C is the first controller that directly integrates the Wi-Fi connectivity with embedded DSP technology. This greatly increases the control performance, system reliability, and failure protection of the controller. The Spider-81C hardware modules have voltage, charge, and IEPE inputs which are ideal for shock, vibration, and FFT measurement or general purpose voltage measurement. The internal flash memory stores test configuration data for real time control and stores real-time analysis data simultaneously.

The Spider-81C is a vibration control system designed for fail-safe operation even in the event of network or power loss. Advanced safety routines allow sensor failures to be detected within milliseconds. All Spider hardware passes strict environmental tests including EMI, temperature, drop shock, sine and random vibration. The system is built to withstand the rigors of the testing environment with long-lasting durability. A power-backup circuitry based on super-capacitor is installed to prevent the unexpected power loss.

Here's a comparison table of all members of the Spider-81 family. For the full hardware specification of each product, please refer to the hardware specification sheets.

	Spider-81	Spider-81A	Spider-81B	Spider-81C
Number of Input Channels	4, 6, 8 and expandable to 512	16 not- expandable	2, 4	2
Number of Output Channels	4	4	1	1



Input Mode	Charge	Charge	Charge	Charge
	TEDS	TEDS	TEDS	TEDS
	IEPE	IEPE	IEPE	IEPE
	AC-Differential	AC-Differential	AC-Differential	AC-Differential
	DC-Differential	DC-Differential	DC-Differential	DC-Differential
	AC-Single End	AC-Single End	AC-Single End	AC-Single End
	DC-Single End	DC-Single End	DC-Single End	DC-Single End
Digital I/O	8 in/out, isolated	8 in/out, isolated	4 in/out, isolated	4 in/out, isolated
Backup Super Capacitor	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Available Software Bundles	Silver, Gold	Silver, Gold	Bronze, Silver, Gold	EDM App
Front Panel LCD	Yes	Yes	No	No
High Speed Data Port for direct data recording to Spider-NAS	Yes	No	No	No
Analog Monitor Channels	Yes	Yes	No	No
Built-in Wi-Fi router	No	No	No	Yes



Input Connections

Unlike the Spider-80X and the Spider-81 family, for its ultra-portability and wireless features, the Spider-20 has its unique input connection design. It has 4 analog input channels with isolated BNC connector. And the input range is ± 10 V with single-ended and IEPE input type.



Figure 20. Spider-20 Input Channels

The input channels of Spider-80X and Spider-81 family are very similar in hardware design except the number of channels. Typically, the Spider-80X and the Spider-81 family have $2\sim16$ analog input channels with isolated BNC connector. And the input range is ±20 V with single-ended, differential, IEPE, Charge Mode, and TEDS input type.



Figure 21: Spider-80X Input Channels

The block diagram for the inputs is shown above. The input chain has a number of components that switch in or out of the signal path. There is a calibration circuit used for internal calibration (see the separate Calibration Manual). There is also a charge amplifier and an IEPE power supply.

The front-end amplifier operates in single-ended or differential mode. In singleended mode, the shield on the input jack is grounded, and the measured input voltage is referenced to this ground. In differential mode, the shield is not grounded and the measured input voltage is the potential difference between the shield and center terminal. After this initial amplification stage, there is an analogue high-pass filter for DC removal that is switched on only in AC input modes. After that, there is the final analog amplification stage, the Analog to Digital Converter, and the DSP processor.



The rest of the signal processing is done by the Digital Signal Processing (DSP) microprocessor. This processor specializes in the floating-point arithmetic used to process the input signal and generate an output.

The Spider-20 uses traditional multi-stage amplifiers in each input channel. It does not have charge mode and TEDS detection. The Spider-80x and Spider-81 series have charge mode as well as TEDS detection. They also adopt the patented dual A/D technology to achieve extremely high input dynamic range. A block diagram of such front-end is shown below.



Figure 22: Typical Input Block Diagram (Spider-80x and Spider-81)



Figure 23: Single-Ended vs. Differential input



There are six modes in which the inputs can operate for the Spider-80X and the Spider-81 family. The Spider-20 only has DC-single end, AC-single end, and IEPE modes.

DC-Differential

In DC-Differential mode, neither of the input connections is referenced to the local ground. The input is taken as the potential difference between the two input terminals, and any potential in common with both terminals is canceled out. The Common Mode Voltage (CMV) will be rejected as long as the overall input voltage level does not saturate the input gain stage. Beware that very high CMV will cause clipping and may damage the input circuitry. Signals with a non-zero mean (DC component) can be measured in this mode.

DC-Single End

In single-ended mode, one of the input terminals is grounded and the input is taken as the potential difference of the center terminal with respect to this ground. Use this mode when the input needs to be grounded to reduce EMI noise or static buildup. Do not use this mode when the signal source is ground referenced or ground loop interference may result (see the <u>Grounding</u> section below). This mode also allows signals with a non-zero mean to be measured.

AC-Differential

AC-Differential is a differential input mode that applies a low frequency high-pass (DC-blocking) analog filter to the input. It rejects common mode signals and DC components in the input signal. Use this when DC and low frequency AC voltage measurements are not required or when a DC bias voltage is present. The analog high-pass filter has a cutoff frequency of -3dB at 0.3 Hz, and -0.1dB at 0.7 Hz. Figure 24 shows the shape of the filter.

AC-Single End

AC-Single End grounds one of the input terminals and enables the DC-blocking analogue filter. Use this mode for non-ground referenced sources where measuring the DC or low-frequency components is not required. AC-Single End shares the same high-pass filter as AC-Differential.

When either of the AC input modes is used, there is also a digital high-pass filter, implemented in the DSP, with a user-definable cutoff frequency. Note that the analog high-pass filter is always active, even if O is set as the cut-off frequency for the digital filter.




Figure 24: AC Input Mode High-Pass Filter Shape

IEPE (ICP)

All Crystal Instruments products support IEPE (Integral Electronic PiezoElectric) constant current output type input channels. IEPE refers to a class of transducers that are packaged with built-in voltage amplifiers powered by a constant current. These circuits are powered by a 4 mA constant current source at roughly 21 Volts.

IEPE accelerometers are available under several different brands including ICP® (PCB Piezotronics), Isotron® (Endevco), CCLD or Delta-Tron® (B&K), and Piezotron® (Kistler).

IEPE sensors are rarely used to measure DC or very low frequency signals. This is rarely a problem when measuring acceleration in dynamic tests. The IEPE input mode has the analog high-pass filter enabled with a cutoff of -3dB at 0.3 Hz and -0.1dB at 0.7 Hz.

Charge Mode

Some sensors provide a high-impedance charge output. Usually, these are highsensitivity piezoelectric units that lack a built-in voltage mode amplifier (i.e. IEPE), allowing them to be used in high-temperature environments. The Spider front-end module has a built-in charge amplifier that allows the system to read the output of these sensors.

The charge amplifier in the Spider converts the charge sensor output in picoCoulumbs (pC) to a voltage in millivolts (mA), which is then input to the ADC. The sensitivity parameter in the software Input Settings sets the composite sensitivity from sensor output to engineering unit, so this process is transparent to the user. The analog high-pass filter has a cut-off of -3dB at 0.3 Hz and -0.1dB at 0.7 Hz.



For the Spider-80X, the input range is 40,000 pC. For the Spider-81 series, there are two gain settings in the charge channel, one with full range of 10,000pC and the other 49,000pC. Similar to that of voltage input mode, the user should try to maximize the input range of charge signals while making sure no overload will happen. In other words, choose a charge sensor with higher sensitivity in order to achieve the best measurement results.

All versions of the Spider-81 are equipped with charge inputs. The charge amplifier is not available on the version 5.8 and older Spider-81B. It is available on version 7.x of Spider-81B.

Using an In-Line Charge Converter

An In-Line Charge Converter is an external device designed to convert the highimpedance source of a charge mode piezoelectric transducer to a low-impedance voltage signal by means of an ICP ® powered signal conditioner. These units may be used with either quartz or ceramic charge-mode piezoelectric sensors.



Figure 25: The Charge Converter

When using a charge-mode sensor connected to an inline charge converter, use the In-Line Charge mode.

Notice that some in-line charge converters change the polarity of the signal. Do some initial testing to verify this before running a shaker test.

TEDS

The IEEE P1451.4 "Standard for smart transducer interface for mixed mode sensors and actuators" describes a mixed-mode communication protocol based on existing analog connections. Mixed-mode means that both analog and digital signals are sent over a single coaxial cable. IEEE P1451.4 also specifies the Transducer Electronic Data Sheets (TEDS) format where transducer-specific digital information such as transducer identification, sensitivity, location, calibration values, and other parametric data can be stored.

Front-end hardware that can communicate with TEDS sensor scan read the digital data from the sensors and automatically configure the input settings. The Spider systems can use TEDS to automatically import the measurement quantity and sensitivity of connected sensors.





Figure 26: IEPE and TEDS Circuitry

Choosing the Correct Input Coupling

Accelerometers and other sensors that require the IEPE current source must have that mode enabled to operate properly. Note that the analog high-pass filter is enabled when IEPE is on, so measurements below 1 Hz cannot be made with these sensors.

For other types of sensors, measurements below 1 Hz are possible with the DC coupling modes. It is recommended that the control sensors in Shock tests use DC coupling.

The single-ended modes, which include IEPE, should be adequate for most situations, and are best for EMI noise rejection. However, if a non-IEPE sensor is used, and a ground loop problem occurs, then the input mode should be switched to differential. If a differential input mode cannot be used, then the ground of the controller should be tied to the sensor with a low-impedance conductor.

Matching Sensor Sensitivity to the Input Range

A special technique is used in CI products to achieve a very high dynamic range in the input channels. This patented technology uses two A/D converters for each input channel to achieve 130 to 150dB dynamic range. Refer to the *130dB Dynamic Range* CI whitepaper for more details.

With this technology, there is no need for multiple input range settings and measurements can be made over the entire range from a few microvolts to 20 volts. However, signal outputs from sensors should be as large as possible without overloading the input channels to maximize the signal to noise ratio. Too large of an input will cause clipping and distortion.

Do not exceed the input range stated in the specifications, usually ± 20 V. For example, if you are doing a vibration measurement estimated to be 10 g RMS and the peak value of the test is assumed to go 5 times its RMS level, the sensitivity of the sensor should be smaller than 20V/50g-peak = 400 mV/g.

Choosing a sensor with too low sensitivity will cause the signals to be buried in noise. In the example above, if you choose a 4 mV/g sensor, the useful signal will be



100 times lower. The effect of noise sources such as EMI and ground loops will be much greater and the data will be unusable.

For charge input, the two ranges are 10,000pC and 49,000pC. For example, if the full charge range is 10,000 pC, you should choose a sensor that generates less than 10,000 pC with the expected peak excitation. But the signal should not be too small as to be buried in the noise.

Power Connection

The Spider-20 is powered by an interchangeable battery with DC charger interface. The fully charged brand new battery lasts at least 6 hours in full operation. The lithium battery has the limited life span and should be replaced at certain time.

The Spider-80X and the Spider-81 family require an external power provided through the wall-mount AC/DC adapter. The output of the DC adapter, which is rated 15V/3A, should be connected to the DC connector on the rear of the front-end device. They have an internal backup power supply that will provide at least 8 seconds of powerto



save data and shut down the system in case of a power loss. This backup power source cannot run the system for any longer length of time.

Digital I/O

	Spider-	Spider-	Spider-	Spider-	Spider-	Spider-
	81	80X	81A	81B	81C	20/20E
Digital	8 in/out,	4 in/out,	8 in/out,	4 in/out,	4 in/out,	Not
I/O	isolated	isolated	isolated	isolated	isolated	equipped

The Spider-81 and Spider-81A have the identical Digital I/O design. The Spider-81B and Spider-81C also have this same design but have the reduced number of input and output. The 12V power supply pin is also removed for the Spider-81B and Spider-81C.

If the system is composed of multiple Spider-81 modules, only the master module can use the Digital I/O features. Each Spider-81, as well as the Spider-81A, has 8 isolated digital inputs and 8 digital outputs, corresponding to the pins on the Digital I/O connector. A digital input is detected when a low-high-low voltage change occurs, which triggers the event actions set in the Event Action Rules section of the Test Configuration window. Any device that can output square voltage pulses can communicate with the data acquisition/controller system.



Pin Assignments

The DIO interface of the Spider-81/81A/81B/81C uses a DB-25 female connector. The pins for OUT5~8, IN5~8, and +12V remain unused on Spider-81B/81C hardware.

The DIO interface of the Spider-80X uses a DB-15 female connector.







Figure 28. Spider-80X Pin Assignments of DIO Interface Connector







Pin name	Pin number	Pin Description
OUT1 – OUT4	1, 2, 3, 4	8 output signal pins. Connect these pins to the input signal pins of the external device.
IN1 – IN4	5, 6, 7, 8	8 input signal pins. Connect output signals from the external device to these pins.
+3.3V	15	+3.3V power supply (for internal use only)
+12V	13	+12V power supply
GND	10, 12	Digital ground
EX_GND	14	External ground for isolated external devices
EX_PWR	9, 11	External power, usually +12 V, reference ground is EX_GND.

Table 1:	Spider-80X	DIO Port	Pin	Description
----------	------------	-----------------	-----	-------------



Pin name	Pin number	Pin Description
OUT1 - OUT8	1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8	4 output signal pins. Connect these pins to the input signal pins of the external device.
IN1 - IN8	9, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20	8 input signal pins. Connect output signals from the external device to these pins.
+3.3V	13, 25	+3.3V power supply (for internal use only)
+12V	10	+12V power supply
GND	11, 23	Digital ground
EX_GND	12, 24	External ground for isolated external devices
EX_PWR	21, 22	External power, usually +12 V, reference ground is EX_GND.

Table 1: Spider-81 Family DIO Port Pin Description

The digital inputs are opto-isolated and take a 12 V signal. The output device must supply the voltage. The circuit is shown in the figure below.



Figure 30. Input Circuit

The figure below shows an example of connecting a push-button switch to an input. When the switch is ON, the corresponding input bit is 0, and when the switch is OFF, the input bit is 1. Momentarily depressing the switch will trigger an input event in the **channel. RL should not be greater than 6 k** Ω **.**





Figure 31. Switch connection to input

Output Circuit

The output channels can be connected to a current driven device such as a relay or LED. They are opto-isolated, open-collector outputs, but require an external voltage source.



Figure 32. Output Circuit

The maximum rated output current per channel is 60 mA. The output section uses a low-saturated transistor foroutput so it can be connected to a TTL-level input. Figure 32 shows an example of a connection to an external LED. The LED will illuminate when the output bit is 0.





Figure 33. Output Connection to LED

DIO Setting

Digital output is initialized when the system is booted up. The digital output pins follow the initialization mode. For example, if output pin #03 is set to Low-High, when the system starts up, the pin #03 will send Low-High output.



In Spider-80X, there is an input/output flipping feature. Check the input or output pin box(es) and click << or >> to switch input pins to output pins or switch output pins to input pins. In all other Spider platform, this feature is grayed out

Programming the DIO

A digital output is sent when a digital output action is triggered by an event in the Event Action Rules. The output signal can be set as a pulse or a step in the negative



or positive direction. Any device that can read such a voltage signal can then be controlled by the data acquisition/controller system.

The programming of digital input and output is on the **Digital IO Setup** tab of **Testing Configuration** dialog box.

To activate a test using a digital input signal, check one of the listed digital input pins and click on the **Set Run Test Pin** button.

The digital output default state is set to be used by **Send Digital Output Signals** event. Refer to **Event Action Rules** chapter for more details about this event.

The state of the digital inputs and outputs can be displayed with the Digital I/O View in the **View->Digital I/O** tab in EDM.



Figure 34. Digital I/O Window

Basic EDM User Interface

EDM, or Engineering Data Management, is the desktop software that works with all Crystal Instruments front-end hardware.



Working Modes

EDM has 3 working modes: CoCo Dynamic Signal Analyzer (DSA) mode, CoCo Vibration Data Collector (VDC) mode, and Spider real-time mode. The Spider real-time mode includes the Dynamic Signal Analyzer (DSA) real-time operation and the Vibration Control System (VCS) operation. The Spider DSA only works under Spider Real-Time Mode.

There is also a Simulation Mode under Real Time Mode. The Simulation Mode allows the user to run a set of recorded or simulated data without connecting to any actual Front-End.

To switch between CoCo working modes, use the Switch Working Mode option under the Tools tab in CoCo mode.



Figure 35: Working Mode Selection

When EDM starts up in real-time working mode, it presents a Start Page from which a recent test can be opened, previous tests can be searched through and new tests can be created. This is a convenient starting point for most EDM operations.



EDM Start Page	2 X
CRYSTAL Engineer	ring Data Management System 5.0.8.57
Recent tests	Account login
1. FFT_Test_31 [DSA (FFT)] 2. FFT_Test_30 [DSA (FFT)]	Account: Admin
3. Acoustic_Test_1 [DSA (Acoustic)] 4. OrderTracking1 [DSA (Order Tracking)]	Login to EDM user account,
Creaté a new tést	Spider connection status
Sine on Random Random on Random SROR Swept Sine Resonance search and tracked dwell Sine Oscillator	Spider (SN: 2580256 (IP: 192,168.1.158)) detected.
Classical Shock Transient Time History Control SRS	Detect more Spider. Do not show this start page Run Spider simulation
Dynamic Signal Analysis FFT Spectral Analysis Acoustic Analysis Order Tracking Sine Reduction Motor Vibration Test Sweep Sine FRF	

Figure 36: EDM Start Page

The start page has four sections: Recent Tests, which allows quick access to recently used tests; Create a New Test, for creating a new test of the selected type; Account Login to change the current user account; and Connection Status which lists all detected front-end devices on the network. There is also a Search button to find a specific test in the database.

If the License Key only enables the Spider function, then the only available test option will be the FFT Spectral Analysis.

The Spider real-time mode uses a traditional menu and toolbar interface. The toolbars allow quick access to the most common commands, while the menus provide a more complete catalog of EDM commands, organized by function. There are 7 toolbars, corresponding to the 7 menus. To change which toolbars are displayed, select Toolbars under the Hide/Show button on the upper right corner. Toolbars can be rearranged by clicking and dragging their left edge to the desired location.



Toolbar Customize	X
🖉 Test	٦
Setup	
View View	
Control	
🔲 Tools	
Layout	
Report	
Check All Uncheck All Close	ור

Figure 37: Toolbar Setting

Menus in EDM Real-Time Mode

The available menus are *Test*, *Setup*, *Control*, *View*, *Layout*, *Tools*, *Report*, and *Help*.

Test Menu

This menu is for creating, opening, saving, and configuring tests. A test is a collection of configuration settings and acquired data. Each test operates in one mode, such as Random Control, Swept Sine Control, or Dynamic Signal Analysis. By default, EDM stores the test data, i.e. signals, in the Run Folder in ATFX format. The measured data can be also saved to the internal flash memory in the front-end hardware if the user chooses.

<u>T</u> est	<u>S</u> etup	<u>C</u> ontrol	<u>V</u> iew	<u>L</u> ayout	T <u>o</u> ols	<u>R</u> eport	
1	New Tes	t			Ctr	l+N	
≡	Open Te	st			Ctr	I+0	
	Save Test [FFT_New_Test_21] Ctrl+Alt+S						
	Save Te	st As				•	
8	Delete T	est[FFT_	New_Te	est_21]	Ctr	l+D	
9	Lock Tes	st			Ct	rl+L	
P	Pin Test				Ctr	1+P	
	Export R	unFolder					
	Open Da	ata File					
	Import L	.DS proje	ds				
民	Check Li	st		(Ctrl+Shif	t+K	
5	Run Hist	ory			Ctr	I+H ►	
0	Account	<u>L</u> ogout					
	E <u>x</u> it EDN	1					

Figure 38: Test Tab



New Test starts the New Test dialog box and allows the user create a new test based on manufacturing settings or a preconfigured test template.

Open Test allows the user to open an existing test from the database or browse the test file from the disk. If the user opens a test file on the disk that has a duplicated name in the database, the software will prompt a message asking the user if he wants to load the test and overwrite the one existing in the database.

Save Test will save the changes to the database. When EDM exits, the contents of database will be automatically synchronized to the testing file on the disk. In other words, the test will always be saved. All changes that you made will be saved.

Save Test As saves a test to a different name.

Delete Test willdelete the test file from the database and the disk. It will ask the user if he wants to delete associated data files.

Lock Test will lock the test in the database so it cannot be accidentally deleted. A locked test can be unlocked later.

Pin Test will show this test in the test pane until it is unpinned.

Export Run Folder will export all signals from the current run folder to a directory.

Open Data File will let the user browse from the disk and open a data file.

Check List opens the summary of critical parameters for review. This dialog box can be prompted before each test if the user so chooses.

Run History opens a dialog box to show recent runs in various categories. It is the best way to look at prior tests in chronological order.

Import LDS Project allows users to upload an LDS test project to the current EDM test. (See the **Import LDS Project** section for details)

Account Logout will let the user log out from his/her current account.

Exit EDM will exit the software. If a test is still in progress, the software will ask the user to stop the test first then exit. When EDM exits, all changes to all of the tests will be automatically saved.

Setup Menu

This menu is used to setup all test related parameters such as channel tables, test configurations, and black-box mode.



<u>S</u> etup		<u>C</u> ontrol	<u>V</u> iew	<u>L</u> ayout	T <u>o</u> ol
6	Test Configuration		Ctrl+	۰T	
	E	ngineerin		•	
Ξÿ	Ir	nput Chan	Ctrl+I		
¥	Μ	leasured 9	Ctrl+M		
6	0	utput Cha	innels	Ctrl+	E
	Т	est Seque	nce	Ctrl+	Q
16	В	lack Box S	Setup	Ctrl+	-B
	A	larm Limit	s		•

Figure 39: Setup Tab

Test Configuration opens a tabbed dialog box and allows the user to set all of the testing parameters.

Engineering Units allows the user to setup the EU as global parameters, or just for the current opened test.

Input Channels opens the channel setup dialog box.

Measured Signals opens the measured signal dialog box. The measured signals are those signals that can be displayed or stored.

Test Sequence lets the user set up a number of tests so the software can run them one by one.



Figure 40. Example of Test Sequence Setup



Black Box Setup allows the user to upload, refresh, or remove the tests from the front-end box. A test uploaded to the Spider devices can be run in the black box mode and can be accessed by DIO, front panel buttons or an iPad.

Alarm Limits allows the user to bind customized limits on the test.

Control Menu

Commands for controlling the test such as: Run, Hold, and Stop, are found under the Control Menu. These commands are duplicated on the Control Panel on the right side of the screen. There are also commands for recording time streams and saving block signals, which can be used even while a test is in Stop mode.



Figure 41: Control Tab

View Menu

The View Menu is used to add display windows. Display Windows are windows for displaying data under the Signal Display tab(s) in the main EDM window. This data can be from recorded files or real-time acquisition, in the time domain or frequency domain. EDM provides a set of default windows for displaying the standard data types such as time streams, blocks, and frequency spectra. Custom window templates, with user-defined combinations of displayed signals, can be defined using the Save Active Window as User Defined command. These custom templates will be listed in the bottom of this menu.



<u>V</u> iew	<u>L</u> ayout	T <u>o</u> ols	<u>R</u> eport	<u>H</u> elp	
	New Wind	ow			Ctrl+W
0	Save Wind	low			Ctrl+U
Def	ault Windo	WS			
	Spectrum				Ctrl+1
	Frequency	Respo	nse Fund	ion	Ctrl+2
	Time Strea	am			Ctrl+3
	Time Bloc	ks			Ctrl+4
	Channel St	tatus			Ctrl+5
	Digital I/O				Ctrl+6
	Run Log				Ctrl+7
	Numeric D	isplay			Ctrl+8
	Recording) Status			Ctrl+R
	Search Re	sonance		Ctrl+	Shift+Q
	Orbit				Ctrl+9

Figure 42: View Tab

Layout Menu

The Layout menu has commands for opening and closing signal display tabs. The tabs, with their current layout, can also be saved and opened. Each of these tabs contains one or more display windows, opened using the View Menu above. There are also commands for arranging the display windows in the current tab.



Figure 43: Layout Tab

Tools Menu

This menu has commands for general EDM functions. These include hardware configuration and calibration, database functions, switching the EDM Working Mode, opening the License Manager, and opening the Global Settings window.



T <u>o</u> ol	s <u>R</u> eport	<u>H</u> elp	
444	Spider Co	nfiguration	
	Download	from Spide	er Internal Storage
2	Calibration	1	
-ig	Hardware	Self-Test	
E	Access Da	tabase	
2	Backup ar	d Restore D	atabases
0	Working M	1ode	,
-	License Ke	ey Manager	
2	Account M	lanager	
10	Amplifier	Controller	
	Initial Set	up	Ctrl+Shift+I
4	Global Se	ttings	Ctrl+G

Figure 44: Tools Tab

Report Menu

This menu has the commands to generate all kinds of testing reports including test data, parameters, and users' notes.



Figure 45: Report Tab

User Accounts

EDM has user management features that allow multiple user accounts to be created, each with different features enabled. This allows the user interface to be personalized for different users, and to control access to different levels of



configuration. By default, there are two users defined: the *Admin* and the *Operator*. The admin has access to every feature and has the ability to edit the privileges of other users. The operator only has the basic privileges required to operate but not to edit a test.

When EDM is initially installed, the accounts Admin and Operator have empty passwords.

In the welcome screen when EDM first starts up, there is a section for logging in with a user name and password. Once a user has logged in, only the features enabled for that user account will be available. Accounts can be set as Administrator or Normal User accounts, and only Administrator accounts can change the user account settings.

To edit user accounts, you must be logged in under an administrator account. Selecting **Account Manage** in the Tools menu brings up a dialog window with a list of the defined users. On each row, there are links to change the password, change the account options, or delete the account. On the bottom of the window, there are buttons to add a new account, delete an account, and to duplicate the selected account.

E	DM Account Manag	ger			? X
		E	DM account list		
	Name	Туре	Status	Operation	
	Admin	Administrator	Login	Options Password	
	Operator	Normal user	Not logged in	Options	
	Add account	Delete account	Duplicate account	_	Close
			Supricate account		Close

Figure 46: EDM Account Manager

Click on the Options link to edit an account. The Modify Account option window that appears allows the password and account type to be changed, and has a list of user privileges. For each item in the privileges list, there is an Editable and Viewable option. Disabling the Editable option prevents the user from modifying the settings for that item, and disabling the Viewable option prevents the user from seeing anything related to the item.



Modify account op	otions				X	
Name	Admin					
Name.						
Password:						
Confirm password:						
Type:	Administ	rator	-			
Set control option	ns for the a	ccount				
Function Option						
Ontion			Viewable	Editable		
option			viewable	Editable	— Ē	
VCS Advanced Com	mands		×	×		
Input Channel						
Test and Pre-test						
Schedule Profile ar	nd Abort Lim	its				
Event Action Rules	id Abort Lini		1			
Limiting or Notchin	a		×			
Shaker Library	-		1	V		
Spider System Con	figuration		1	V		
Black-box Mode Co	onfiguration		×	1		
Create and Delete 1	Fest		1	×		
Instrument Calibrat	tion		×	1		
Hardware Self-test			×	V		
Database Management			1	1		
License Key Manage	ement		×			
Account Management						
Define Report Tem	Define Report Template					
Time Stream Recor	ung		MC.			
All Viewable A	All Editable	Disable All Editable		C	lose	

Figure 47: Account Options

About the License Keys and Evaluation Mode

EDM requires a license key file to run. This file verifies that the user has purchased the software features. A license key is linked to one or more hardware devices by serial number. If you try to connect to a device with a serial number not in the current license key, an error will be displayed.

Only one license key file is active at a time. To change the active key, open the **License Key Manager** under the Tools menu. The available license keys are listed at the top and information about the selected one is shown in the bottom. Double-click a listing to activate it. EDM will have to be restarted for license key changes to take effect. If a license key isn't listed, but is present on your local computer, click Browse New License Key to find it.



DM License Key Manag	ement						?
Hardware device	Serial nur	nber 2580256	License type flevible master license	•	Brov	vse new license kej	/
Spider-H	663008	2500250	Combined License	In	<u>S</u> av	e this license key	
CoCo-80 CoCo-90	31377, 36	771, 36585, 26851,	flexible master license	=		<u>S</u> et as default	
CoCo-80 Spider-80	31811 66	3552, 663008 99	flexible master license			0	
CoCo-80	361558		Fixed Master License			<u>R</u> emove	
Spider-H	3860640		Combined License	1_	Click LK	to show SN details	5
- License key informatio Software renewal expira	softv	ware version	s preceding this da	ite)			
Software activation exp	iration	12/31/2015	(Software can be used w	ith tł	nis LK until th	is date.)	
Installed EDM software	options						
Options	Descript	ion		Vie	w details	Max input #	
CoCo	Edit CoC	o DSA projects with (Configurable Signal An	Viev	w Details	N/A	
Post Analyzer	Displays	ignals and create rep	oorts for acquired data.	Viev	w Details	N/A	
Spider General	Instrume	nt calibration tool o	fSpider	Viev	<i>w</i> Details	N/A	
Spider Hardware	Licensed	Hardware configura	tion	Viev	<i>w</i> Details	N/A	
Spider DSA General	Dynamic	signal analysis funct	ions of Spider	Viev	w Details	64	
Spider VCS General	Licensed	VCS General Option	5	Viev	w Details	N/A	
Random Control	Licensed	VCS Random Option	15	Viev	w Details	64	
Sine Control	Licensed	VCS Sine Options		Viev	w Details	64	
Shock Control	Licensed	VCS Shock Options		Viev	w Details	64	
TWR Control	Time Wa	veform Replication		Viev	w Details	64	-
				Vie	ew <u>a</u> ll option	s <u>C</u> lose	

Figure 48: EDM License Key Management

The **Software Renew Period** is the time period during which the software can be upgraded. The **Software Activation Period** is the time period during which the software is operational and can be used.

Test groups are activated by the license key. There are two modes of each Test group, *a fully functional mode* and an evaluation mode. They are both controlled by the license key. If the fully functional mode of a test group is not activated, tests of its type can still be created in evaluation mode. In this mode every feature of the test type is available however, the test will only run for 30 seconds, signals cannot be recorded or saved and reports cannot be generated. The evaluation mode feature allows you to configure and evaluate different test types before purchasing them. Once a test is purchased from Crystal Instruments, it can be run without limitations.

For details about how to activate individual tests in evaluation mode, contact Crystal Instruments or your local Crystal Instruments sales rep.

EDM Global Settings

The EDM Global Settings under the **Tools** tab are settings that affect the entire EDM environment and interface. These are different from the Test Configuration options, which only affect the current project.



Global Settings		? X					
- Signal export	Signal export-> General p	roperties					
General properties	Signal general propertie	s					
Common properties	Data acquisition time	Signal export time					
Frequency properties	Software used	Vuser					
Spectrum format	Instrument used	Test notes					
MAT file preferences	Text layout setting						
Default display format	Only export Y values						
Working folder	Export using date/time f	ormat (Excel only)					
Engineering units	Export X's start and step	values if any					
Plot properties	Apply updates in sensitiv	vity (time domain)					
Time signal AVD settings	Fill zero between block's	default value(Only for transfer 3D block signal to time stream)					
Mail setting	Z Export mid-frequencies						
Appearance	Export all frames	[txt and csv do not support large frame size, use care when selecting this option]					
Socket server	Export with frame limit	100					
VCS/DSA settings							
	Automatically close expo	ort dialog after export process completes					
These settings will be applied to exporting the following file types ASCII, MatLab, Excel, and CSV.							
		<u>Q</u> K <u>C</u> ancel					

Figure 49: EDM Global Settings

Signal Export includes four sub-sections for signal export settings.

General Properties defines the signal attributes to be included in exported files including: spectrum format, window type, window correction mode, energy factor, amplitude factor, acquisition/calculation method, amplitude scaling, averaging mode (lin/exp averaging time constant), and number of averages. By default all of these attributes are exported with the data. These settings only apply to ASCII, MatLab and Excel CSV data export formats. The other formats use a predefined list of attributes that cannot be modified.

Text export layout settings are also defined here. The options are to only export Y values and to export any X start and step values.

Common Properties defines additional signal attributes to be exported including signal name, sampling rate, block size, X unit, Y unit, and NVH signal type. These settings only apply to ASCII, MatLab and Excel CSV data export formats.

Frequency Properties defines additional signal attributes to be exported with frequency-domain signals including spectrum format, window type, window correction mode, energy factor, amplitude factor, acquisition/calculation method, amplitude scaling, averaging mode, lin/exp averaging time constant, and number of averages. These settings only apply to ASCII, MatLab and Excel CSV data export formats.



Spectrum Format defines the default spectrum format when Auto Power Spectrum data is exported.

Global Settings	? X
- Signal export	Signal export-> Spectrum format
General properties	Export preferred signal type:
Common properties	Autopower Spectrum 🔹
Frequency properties	Export spectrum type:
Spectrum format	Ellneak
MAT file preferences	
Default display format	Export vertical axis format:
Working folder	Mag
Engineering units	
Plot properties	
Time signal AVD settings	
Mail setting	
Appearance	
Socket server	
VCS/DSA settings	
	<u>QK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 50: Spectrum Format Setting

Setting Target selects the signal type that the Spectrum Type and Vertical Axis Format settings will affect. The signal types are Auto Power Spectrum, coherence, complex spectra, cross power spectrum, and Frequency Response Function.

Spectrum Type: (EU)²/Hz, (EU)²S/Hz, (EU_{rms})², EU_{peak}, EU_{rms}

Export Vertical Axis Format: magnitude (Mag) or decibels (dBMag)

MAT-File Preference defines attributes for the MatLab file export format.

Default Display Format defines the default display format of the frequency spectrum. These settings will be used when a new display window is created in EDM.

Working Folder sets the default working folders for program files and data storage.

DSA Engineering Units sets the engineering units used globally in EDM. The engineering unit display setting does not affect the actual values of the signals, only how they are displayed and labeled. This setting can be different from the setting on



the devices from which the data was acquired. For example, an acceleration signal can be acquired in "g" on CoCo while displayed in "m/s²" here.

Plot Properties define how the time values, signal lines, numeric values, grids, and markers are displayed in the display windows where signals are plotted.

Time Signal AVD Setting stands for Acceleration Velocity Displacement. It is a set of filters used in the signal display interface when the AVD signal display conversion is in progress. It is for filtering the data when integrating or differentiating. The AVD setting can eliminate some aliasing at a certain frequencies, and it can make the time stream display more smoothly with reduced disturbance.

Mail Setting defines how EDM sends email per Event Action Rules. SMTP server address, port number, encryption type, and authentication parameters are specified as required. The Spider hardware (only version 7.x) is also equipped with a send **email function that can be used when the email server doesn't require SSL** encryption. Sending email through the hardware is not always available when SSL encryption is required. This feature enables sending emails in Black Box mode. The origin of email, either from the Spider hardware or the EDM, can be chosen from the Event Action Rules.

Global Settings		? X						
- Signal export	Mail setting							
General properties	SMTP server settin	SMTP server settings						
Common properties	SMTP server:	mail.gmail.com						
Frequency properties	SMTP port:	587 (25 by default, if SSL enable port should be 465 or 587)						
Spectrum format	SSL encrypted con	nection enable						
MAT file preferences	SMTP server requir	es authentication						
Default display format	Account:	test.gmail.with edm@gmail.com						
Working folder	Password:	********						
Engineering units	Default send settin	as						
Plot properties	Send To:	support/@ao-ci.com						
Time signal AVD settings	Copy To:							
Mail setting	соруто:	sales@go-cl.com						
Appearance								
Socket server								
VCS/DSA settings								
	Default send settings	toy event action rules. will be filled to [send to] and [copy to] field when create new Email.						
		<u>U</u> K <u>Cancel</u>						

Figure 51: Mail Setting Setup



Appearancehas options for the color scheme of the interface, for displaying the start window, and for enabling tool tips.

Global Settings	? X
- Signal export	Appearance
General properties	UI style
Common properties	Default style: Blue Black Silver Vista Glass
Frequency properties	Color scheme: 🛛 👻
Spectrum format	
MAT file preferences	Default font: Small Medium Large
Default display format	Highlight active chart window when selected Highlight color: Orange
Working folder	
Engineering units	Default action upon double-clicking signal node: View in new window
Plot properties	Log settings
Time signal AVD settings	Enable system log Clear logs Enable error submitting
Mail setting	
Appearance	English
Socket server	
VCS/DSA settings	
	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 52: EDM Appearance Setting

The Default Font size, *Small*, *Medium* and *Large* refer to the font sizes that are used in the signal plots and tables.

The language of the user interface can be changed. EDM currently supports English, Simplified Chinese, Traditional Chinese, and Japanese.

	Language		
	Énglish	-	
	English		
	简体中文		
	繁體中文		
	日本語		
テスト 制御 表示 レイアウト	ツール レポート		
う 新しいテスト Test Sequence テス		び チェックリスト カスタマイズ	○ ■ ウィンドウ保存 時間
Spider	🏪 🤖 チャネルテーブル 🛛 💕	信号セットアップ 🔤	信号表示 🛛 😱
测量操作显示布质	局 工具 报表		
新测量 测量日程表 查找	🖌 🧔 📑 🚺 🐼 🚺 🕅	新	✓ □ 自定义窗保存
Spider	7 通道设置	💕 信号设置	(1) 信号显示



Test Control Display	Layout Tool	s Report			
New Test Test Sequence	Find Test Te	st Config Cha	🙀 💕	🗭 Signals Check List	Customize S
Spider	4	🙀 Channel S	etup 💕	Signal Setup	Signal [

Figure 53: Language Setting

Socket Server (refer to the independent manual of Socket Messages. reserved for Spider-81 use.)

VCS/DSA Setting defines the following global actions for VCS/DSA tests.

Global Settings		? X
- Signal export	VCS/DSA settings	
General properties	Common settings	
Common properties	Show application function start page when EDM starts	
Frequency properties	Allow signals from different Spider module display in the same signal view	
Spectrum format	Check calibration date when Spider connected	
MAT file preferences	Automatically save test as STK file before it is closed	
Default display format	Sensor calibration reminder (days) 14	
Working folder Engineering units Plot properties Time signal AVD settings Mail setting Appearance Socket server VCS/DSA settings	Number of tests in recent test list: S ▲ VCS settings Image: Show non-acceleration control warning when running a test Reset all warnings Alarm notifications management DSA settings Output amplitude increment: 0.010 V Output frequency increment: 0.011 Hz	
	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ar	ncel

Figure 54: VCS/DSA Setting

System Configuration

A **system** consists of one or more front-end **modules** that operate together. To run as a controller system, at least one of the modules must be a Spider-81 or Spider-80x, but the others can be any compatible front-end module. Additional modules add input channels to the system up to 24 modules with 192 channels. When the system is composed of more than one module, only the input channels on the master module can be set as trigger source.

A system is configured from the Spider System Configuration window accessed in the Tools menu, Spider Configuration option.



Manage Spider module				Manage	e Spider system						
Detected modules	Configured systems 2580256 Tefault system										
 (M) SN: 2580256 (IP: 192.168.1.158) Modules previously saved 	Rename Delete	Rename Delete Set as default F			Auto apply to a	all test after set a:	s default System	n			
SN: 980640 (IP: 192.168.1.6)	and the second se	Leve			1	le con	Lenzon				
🛶 (M) SN: 663008 (IP: 192.168.0.104)	Name	Serial r	umper	IP address	Module typ	e Detected	Connected	Ismaster			
(M) SN: 3860288 (IP: 192.168.1.29)		258025	6	192.168.1.158	Spider-80X	Yes	No	Yes			
(M) SN: 2580224 (IP: 192.168.1.224)											
(M) SN: 2580800 (IP: 192.168.1.116)											
 (M) SN: 2583456 (IP: 192.168.1.107) 											
		6 mmm 6									
		(Contractor)	-	Spider Module	Details - [SN: 25	80256]					
	Hardware Info and Version	IP Setting	Date a	nd Time Setting	DIO Setting	Generate report	Refresh info				
	Hardware Information										
	Name	SN: 2580256			Serial number		2580256				
	Device type	Spider-80X		Master or Slave		Master					
	Charge enabled	No			Total channels		8/8				
	Last calibration date	8/19/2013		Next calibration due		2/26/2015					
	Version Information				Lana and a		12.02				
	EDM version	5.0.8.57			Hardware version		7.4.0				
	USP application version	5.0.8.57			Firmware version		5.0.8.57				
	BIT version	10309			PCB ID		80008				
Create a New Spider system											
Diagnose Spider Modules											

Figure 55: Spider System Configuration

On the left side of the window, all detected front-end modules and previously used modules are listed. They are named by their IP address and serial number.

To setup a new system press the Create a new Spider system button. In the window that appears, select the module(s) to be included in the system, enter a name for it, and press OK. Selecting **Set as Default Spider System** will make this the default system choice in all new tests.



Create a New S	pider System				? X				
Enter the name of	the Spider system. Add the Spider	rmodules to be includ	ed:						
Name of system	Name of system Sample Spider System								
🗷 Set as default !	Spider system 🔲 Create system	with NAS storage							
	Module candidate list								
⊿	io dules	Add All			A				
🗢 (M) SN:	2580256 (IP: 192.168.1.158) [√]	Module Type:	Spider-80X, Channel Num	iber: 8					
🔺 🖧 Modules pr	reviously saved	Add All							
🗢 SN: 980	640 (IP: 192.168.1.6)								
🗢 (M) SN:	(M) SN: 663008 (IP: 192.168.0.104)								
🤝 (M) SN:	3860288 (IP: 192.168.1.29)								
🤝 (M) SN:	2580224 (IP: 192.168.1.224)								
 (M) SN: (M) SN: 	2580800 (IP: 192.168.1.116)				-				
A STATE OWN SINC	Arr	ange the sequence of	modules						
Sequence #	Module		Location Id						
Seq 1#	🗢 (M) SN: 2580256 (IP: 192.16	8.1.158)	CH1 - CH8						
	1								
Module: SN:	2580256, LED light start blink	. .		<u>о</u> к	<u>C</u> ancel				

Figure 56: Create A New Spider System

The system will then be displayed on the top pane of the window with a list of the included modules. Use the Configured Systems drop-down menu to select other systems. The buttons along the top allow the selected system to be renamed, deleted, or set as default. There is also a button to generate a report with details about the system and associated modules.



Spider System Configuration							? X	
Manage Spider module	Manage Spider system							
Detected modules	Configured systems: Sample Sp	oider System	-	Default system				
(M) SN: 2580256 (IP: 192.168.1.158)								
▲ 🖶 Modules previously saved	Rename Delete	Set as default	Report 👻 🗹	Auto applyto all	est after set as	default Syste	em	
			L					
(M) SN: 663008 (IP: 192.168.0.104)	Name	Serial number	IP address	Moduletype	Detected	Connected	IsMaster	
(M) SN: 3860288 (IP: 192.168.1.29)	🗢 (M) SN: 2580256	2580256	192.168.1.158	Spider-80X	Yes	Yes	Yes	
(M) SN: 2580224 (IP: 192.168.1.224)								
(M) SN: 2580800 (IP: 192.168.1.116)								
(M) SN: 1001792 (IP: 192.168.0.4)								
🗢 (M) SN: 2583456 (IP: 192.168.1.107)								
	1							
		Spi	der Module Detail	s-[SN:2580256]	<u> </u>			
	Hardware Info and Version	IP Setting Date and Time Setting		DIO Setting Generate repo		Refresh in	fo	
	Hardware Information							
	Name	SN: 2580256		Serial number		2580256		
	Device type	Spider-80X		Master or Slav	Master			
	Charge enabled	No		Total channels		8/8		
	Last calibration date	8/19/2013		Next calibration	on due 2/26/2015			
	Version Information							
	EDM version	4.2.8.80		Hardware vers	ion	7.4.0		
	DSP application version	4.2.8.80		Firmware vers	ion	4.2.8.80		
Create a New Spider system	BIT version	10309		PCB ID		80008		
Diagrada Grider Madular								
Diagnose Spider Modules								
Add Module with Known IP							Close	
							<u>_</u> 103C	

Figure 57: Spider System Management

Settings for individual modules are changed in the bottom part of the window. There are 3 tabs: Hardware Info and Version, IP Setting, and Date and Time Setting.

Spider Module Details - [SN: 2580256]										
Hardware Info and Version	IP Setting	Date a	nd Tir	ne Setting	DIO Settin	ng	Generate report	Refresh info		
-Set IP address							EDM access code			
💿 Set module to obtain an I	PAddress aut	omatical	ly 🛛			<input digitnumber=""/>				
Use the following IP Add	Use the following IP Address for this module:								Set	
IP address:	192 · :	168 ·	1		158					
Subnet mask:	255 · 2	255 ·	255		0					
Default gateway:	192 · 1	l68 ·	1		5	F	Spider access code			
Network card MAC address:	F0F0F0275F2	20						0		
Apply IP setting										
The access code is used to verify the authority of EDM to connect to the Spider module. If left empty or set to 0, then access code checking is disabled										

Figure 58: Spider System IP Setting

The Hardware Info and Version tab shows hardware information about the module. These settings cannot be changed. For security reasons, the module can be assigned an Access Code. Once set, EDM must have the same access code configured for it to connect. This tab also lists software functions installed as firmware components. These components are installed by Crystal Instruments.



Spider Module Details - [SN: 2580256]							
Hardware Info and Version	IP Setting	Date and Time Setting	DIO Setting	Generate report	Refresh info		
Hardware Information							
Name	ame SN: 2580256 Serial number		r	2580256			
Device type Spider-80X		Master or Slave		Master			
Charge enabled	Charge enabled No		Total channels		8/8		
Last calibration date 8/19/2013		Next calibration due		2/26/2015			
Version Information							
EDM version	5.0.8.57		Hardware ver	sion	7.4.0		
DSP application version	5.0.8.57		Firmware vers	ion	5.0.8.57		
BIT version	10309		PCB ID		80008		

Figure 59. Spider System Hardware Configuration Setting

The IP Setting tab sets the IP configuration of the module. It can use DHCP to obtain an IP address automatically or a manually configured IP address, subnet mask, and default gateway. These are set according to the configuration of the network the unit is attached to.

Note: Whether the DHCP IP address can be used depends on whether the network switch has a DHCP server installed. Only fixed static IP addresses can be used with the Spider-HUB because it does not have a DHCP server.

The Date and Time tab is used to change the internal clock setting of the module.

	A 1111111 A					
Spider Module Details - [SN: 2580256]						
Hardware Info and Version IP Setting Date and Time Sett	ing DIO Setting Generate report Refresh info					
Date and time of module clock:						
7/2/2015 6:23:26 PM Synchronize d	ate and time with PC					
Customize date and time:						
7/2/2015 6:23:28 PM Set module wi	ith this <u>d</u> ate and time					

Figure 60: System Date and Time

Input Channel Settings in EDM

Typically each Spider unit has 8 inputs, and up to 8 modules can be connected together for a total of 64 inputs. Sensors or transducers convert physical quantities, such as force, acceleration or displacement to voltages which can then be measured by the front-end hardware. The software converts the measured voltages back into physical units such as newtons, meters per second squared, or centimeters using a sensitivity parameter as the proportionality constant.

The geometric location where a sensor is affixed to a test article may be described in the **ID** in the Input Channel Setup. An entered description such as "bearing #1



vertical" then replaces the default "Chx" label. This ID is shown with the channel everywhere it is displayed and with its saved time stream data. For other data processed from that time stream, EDM uses a consistent naming convention where the data type is followed by the Location ID of the source in parenthesis. The data types are Block for Block Data, APS for Auto Power Spectral data and H for the Frequency Response Function. For example, the Auto Power Spectrum from channel ID "Point1" would be named as "APS(Point1)".

Input Channel Setup

Input Channels for FFT_Test_31 [DSA(FFT)] Fill * Ex/Im * Units Sensor * Load from library Save to library Save as default High-Pass Measurement On/Off Location ID Sensitivity Sensor Input mode filter Fc (Hz) quantity On Ch1 Displacement 249.0889 (mV/in) DC-Single End • ▼ 2.0000 • On Ch2 ▼ 2.0000 25.4000 (mV/in) DC-Single End Displacement -On Ch3 25.4000 (mV/in) ▼ 2.0000 Displacement AC-Single End • On Ch4 ▼ 2.0000 25.4000 (mV/in) AC-Single End Displacement -On Ch5 ▼ 2.0000 Acceleration 9806.6500 (mV/g) **DC-Single End** On Ch6 • ▼ 2.0000 Acceleration 9806.6500 (mV/g) DC-Single End • ▼ 2.0000 On Ch7 9806.6500 (mV/g) DC-Single End Acceleration On Ch8 9806.6500 (mV/g) • ▼ 2.0000 DC-Single End Acceleration

In FFT test, inputs are configured under: Setup->Input Channels.

Figure 61: Input Channel Table (FFT)

On/Off enables or disables the channel.

Location ID assigns a custom label used to identify the source in the signal display and other setup windows.

Measurement Quantity defines the physical unit that will be measured by the sensor connected to the channel.

Sensitivity sets the proportionality factor for the measurement (millivolts per engineering unit) given as a parameter of the sensor.

Input mode is the electrical interface mode of the sensor (see above).

Sensor defines the sensors imported from libraries.

High-Pass Filter Fc (Hz) sets the digital high-pass filter frequency, used to block spurious low frequency and DC signals. To measure very low frequency or DC signals set this value to zero and use the DC-SE or the DC-DI input mode.

Time Weighting defines the time weighting for exponential averaging. (Only available in acoustic test)



Time Interval is the time period of calculating Leq for each individual channel. (Only available in acoustic test)

If the Modal Data Acquisition (MDA) function was enabled during the progress of creating a new FFT test, Click the MDA button to show the expanded MDA **definition of each channel's input. Provision is made for roaming excitation (impact)** tests, roving response shaker tests and permanently installed multiple input and/or output modal tests.

Fill 🗸	ut Channel Ex/Im 🔻 M	5 for FFT_New_Te	est_8 [DSA]	brary Sav	re to Library 🔽 Save as	Default				?)	×
On/O	f Input Mode	Sensor	Exci. / Resp	DOFs	Measuring point ID	Coordinate		Manual Increment	Increme Point	Increment Direction	٦
	On D 💌	-	Excitation	▼ +3X	3	+X	•	INCRMT	1	X •	r
	On D 💌	-	Response	+4X	4	+X	•	INCRMT	1	X 🔹	•
	On D 💌	-	Response	▼ +5X	5	+X	•	INCRMT	1	X 💽	•
	On D 💌	-	Response	▼ +6X	6	+X	•	INCRMT	1	x	-
	On D 💌	-	Response	▼ +7X	7	+X	•	INCRMT	1	X 🔹	•
	On D 💌	-	Response	▼ +8X	8	+X	•	INCRMT	1	X 🔹	•
	On D 💌	-	Response	▼ +9X	9	+X	•	INCRMT	1	x	-
	On D 💌	•	Response	▼ +10X	10	+X	•	INCRMT	1	Y	-

Figure 62. MDA Parameters in Input Channel Table (FFT)

In Acoustic Analysis tests there are two additional channel properties, Time Weighting and Time Interval as shown below.

Fill - Ex/	hannels for Acou Im 👻 Units	stic [DSA(Acoustic)] Sensor 👻 Load From	Library Save to Library					
On/Off	Location ID	Measurement Quantity	Sensitivity	Input Mode	Sensor	High-Pass Filter Fc(Hz)	Time Weighting	Time Interval
🔽 On	Ch1	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	•	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🗹 On	Ch2	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	•	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🗹 On	Ch3	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	•	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🗹 On	Ch4	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	•	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🔽 On	Ch5	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	-	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🔽 On	Ch6	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	-	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🔽 On	Ch7	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	-	2.0000	0.125	10 💌
🗹 On	Ch8	Voltage 💌	1000.0000 (mV/V)	DC-Single End	-	2.0000	0.125	10 💌

Figure 63. Input Channel Table (Acoustic)

On the top of the tab there are a series of buttons used to manage the channel settings. **Fill** allows the settings of one channel to be copied into all the remaining channels (**Fill All**) or only to a range of channels (**Fill Range**).

Ex/Im(export/import) allows the current channel list to be saved to a file or a previously saved list to be opened and applied. This allows the current settings to be saved and applied to future tests. **Unit** is a shortcut to the DSA Engineering Units section of the EDM Settings dialog, allowing the global engineering units to be set. **The remainder of the tool bar is used for library synchronization (See "Using** Libraries" below). The channel list shows a number of settings for each channel:



Creating FFT Tests

EDM executes a created or recalled test project. A test project consists of an input and output configuration, analysis parameters, and acquired data. A new test is created by selecting New Test in the Test menu. This opens the New Test Wizard.

DSA		VCS	All Templates
FFT Analysis	FFT analysis test focuses of Auto-power spectrum	s on using applications of n, Cross power spectrum,	F Digital Signal Processing theory such as calculation Fourier Transform etc. for input channel signals.
Order Tracking	-		
Motor Vibration Test			
Sweep Sine FRF	Enable DAQ Function	APS(Ch1) LogHag g (0-peak)	- APS(Cb1)
Sine Reduction	Enable MDA Function	NFSCH) BUS 8 1102	eerry () answ - sin pass
		420	when when we wanted the second s
		1205.04	7requescy (12)

Figure 64: Create a New Test

Select the type of test on the first page. Dynamic Signal Analyzer (DSA) mode is used for data acquisition and analysis. The most general of these is FFT Spectral Analysis (selected here) which will be employed for general vibration analysis, control system investigations, analog circuit studies and modal analysis among others. When required, DSA can provide various types of stimulation signals (up to 2 per Spider-80X module) including random noise, sinewave and swept sine. Depressing Next> advances to the second page.



New Test W	/izard		? X
Fill in the	e basic information f	or this test	
Note: In th	ne future you can search t	his test through the database by the keywords in the fields of Test	Name or Test Description.
Create a nev	w FFT Analysis test: FFT_	New_Test_22	
Test name:	FFT_New_Test_	Z Append the sequence number	22
Test descrip	ption:		
• Use the	e default libraries of the p	previous test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied	d before the manufacturing settings will be used.
© Create	test by using a template.		
Ŭ			
Select	Template Name	Description	
Spider syst	em: Sample Spider Sys	stem 🔽	
Test directo	ory: C:\Users\m k\Docur	nents\EDM\kings\FFT_New_Test_22	Choose
🗷 Create n	ew run folder for each ru	n	
L			
			< Back Next > Cancel

Figure 65: The Wizard for a New Random Test

The second page allows you to name the test and write a description of its purpose. Press Next> to advance to the third page.



w Test Wizard	?
Please check the signal types to be computed in real time.	
Time streams and time block signals are always available	
APS: Auto Power Spectra using FFT	
FRF: Frequency Response Functions	
CPS: Cross Power Spectral Signals	
FFT: Linear spectra signals with averaging in complex domain. This signal type is rarely used.	
SRS: Shock Response Spectra	
COR: Compute the correlation of time data(Autocorrelation and Cross-correlation)	
RMS: Compute the RMS values of time data and store them into block signals	
TACHO: Tachometer	
Peak: Compute the peak values of time data and store them into block signals	
FLT: Real time digital filters applied to all input channels	
Select all	
te: Go to Measured Signals setting to select the signals to be viewed or saved.	

Figure 66. Signal Types in Real Time

On the third page in the DSA mode test wizard you enable the various types of computed functions that will be employed. These include time histories, computed time histories such RMS, Peak and Tachometer RPM, FFT spectra, Averaged Auto and Cross Power spectra, Shock Response Spectra and Frequency Response and Coherence functions. Pressing Finish> exits the wizard and enters the DSA Test screen.





Figure 67: A DSA Test

The DSA Test screen is divided into 5 parts. On the top is the menu and toolbar section. On the left side, are the Recent Test List and the Signal List sections. On the right are the Test Control section and the Status window. In the middle are the Signal Display and Signal Setup tabs.

Recent Test List



Figure 68: Recent Tests List

On the upper left part of the screen, the Recent Tests list shows current and previous tests. Each test is listed by its name and type (VCS or DSA). Each test entry can be expanded to display items related to the test.


Systemlists the hardware modules associated with the test. The system is set up with the Spider Config window described under **System Configuration**. The name of the system is displayed in parentheses.

Signal List

Under the Recent Tests list is the Signal List, which shows live signals and saved data available for display in the current Test.



Figure 69:Signal List

Live Signals include all input channels and the output channel (s) that are components of the current system. Depending on the test type, there might also be other signals such as the control profile, associated alarm, and abort lines. The list is divided into categories for time streams, block signals, and frequency data from these sources. It can also be viewed according to the hardware modules by rightclicking on the list and selecting Sort Signals by Spider Modules.

Run Folders tab displays the recent *Runs*:



Live Signals Run Folders Data Files			
⊳ 📹 Run4 Nov 11, 2014 15-53-32			
▷ 📹 Run3 Nov 11, 2014 15-53-20			
▲ 10 Run2 Nov 11, 2014 15-17-40	ocuments k EDM k iz 12 2012 k Random1	v ¢.	Search Rando
5IG0004 Nov 11, 2014 15-17-57		· · ·	Search Kanuo
MM SIG0003 Nov 11, 2014 15-17-52	Name	Date modified	Туре
> AMM SIG0002 Nov 11, 2014 15-17-49	🥦 Random1.stk	12/11/2012 5:59 PM	Vibration Con
N 0000 STG0005 Nov 11 2014 15-18-06	👢 Run4 Dec 11, 2012 15-53-01	12/11/2012 3:53 PM	File folder
1 2014 13-10-00	👢 Run3 Dec 11, 2012 15-52-45	12/11/2012 3:52 PM	File folder
> MM SIG0001 Nov 11, 2014 15-17-44	🐌 Run2 Dec 11, 2012 15-49-55	12/11/2012 3:51 PM	File folder
▷ 🚮 Run1 Nov 11, 2014 15-12-42	👢 Run1 Dec 11, 2012 15-49-29	12/11/2012 3:49 PM	File folder
Cefault Folder Nov 11, 2014 15-11-49	🐌 Default Folder Dec 06, 2012 14-22-21	12/6/2012 2:22 PM	File folder

Each time the user presses the Run button and the test finishes, a numbered Run is generated. By default, a Run folder is created on the disk. As shown in the picture above, for a given test, *Random1*, a test file, *Random1.stk*, is created. Each Run in the Run Folder tab corresponds to a physical folder on the disk.

Data Files are time streams and block data saved or recorded to disk. All of the data files under a specific Run will be saved into that Run folder. When block signals are saved by clicking the **Save Sigs** button, a data file will be created and displayed here.



Figure 70: Data Files Tab



Control Panel

The Control Panel is used to control the test and to display status information in real-time. The connection status of the hardware is shown on top with a button to Connect/Disconnect (if no hardware is detected, this button will not be displayed). The control buttons — Run, Hold, Stop,Save— duplicate the items in the Control menu and on the Control toolbar. Config opens the Test Configuration window. **Rec./Stop** starts/stops the recording after test runs.

Information on the state of the test is displayed below the control buttons. Depending on the test mode, this might include the output level (as a percent of the test profile) and peak voltage, the control input peak and RMS level, the target peak and RMS level, and the elapsed and remaining time.

Right-clicking in the control panel brings up options to display an expanded set of command buttons and test information. These commands are used to adjust the operation of the test such as changing the output level. These commands, along with all of the display fields, will be described in the following chapters on the specific test modes.

Run	Hald	Swip
REL	Save	Config

Figure 71: Standard Spider Control Panel

Control Panel		2			
Disconnet	Online				
Run	Inita Stati				
Atteic.	Gave Config				
Total elapsed:	Output pk:				
00:00:45	0.00				
Frame#:	1134				
Frequency range:	12 kHz 🔹	1			
Block size/Line:	1024 / 450 🔹				
Window:	Hanning 👻				
Overlap ratio:	No Overlap 👻				
Average mode:	Exponential 👻				
Average number:	8 🚔				
Reselavg	Viewwindow	Input	Output	Cursor	
Setup trigger	Preview trigger	Tes	t ready	, press	[Run] to star
Trigger switch:	OFF				
Output switch:	OFF				
Limit check switch:	OFF				



Figure 72: Expanded Spider Control Panel

There are three tabs on the bottom of the control panel for viewing different pages of information: Input, Output and Cursor. The Input tab sets the analysis parameters (block size, window type, overlap, and average) and trigger settings for the input channels. The Output tab controls the output function generator. The Cursor tab shows the abscissa and ordinate values for all displayed cursors and peak and harmonic markers. On the very bottom of the control panel the system connection status is displayed, along with any messages related to test events.

Measured Signals Setup ? X						
Time Streams	Time Blocks	uto-Power Spectra (A	APS) 3D Signal PC	Frequency Respo	nse (FRF) PC Math Signals	All Signals 4 b
🔽 Measure a	all signals Sav	e/Record all signals	Save and recording o	options		
	Signal name	Measure	Save/Record list	Signal color	Storage	A
▶ 001	Ch1	V	v		Record to Spider	
002	Ch2		•		Record to Spider	
003	Ch3	V	V		Record to Spider	
004	Ch4	V	V		Record to Spider	
005	Ch5	V	V		Record to Spider	
006	Ch6	V			Record to Spider	
007	Ch7		V		Record to Spider	
008	Ch8		V		Record to Spider	=
009	Block(Ch1)		v		Save to PC	
010	Block(Ch2)		~		Save to PC	
011	Block(Ch3)		•		Save to PC	
012	Block(Ch4)		~		Save to PC	
013	Block(Ch5)		~		Save to PC	
014	Block(Ch6)		~		Save to PC	
015	Block(Ch7)	V	~		Save to PC	
016	Block(Ch8)	V	~		Save to PC	
017	APS(Ch1)	V	~		Save to PC	
018	APS(Ch2)		~		Save to PC	
019	APS(Ch3)	~	V		Save to PC	
020	APS(Ch4)	V	V		Save to PC	•
						<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel

Measured Signal Setup

Figure 73: Signal Setup Window

The Signal Setup page is under **Setup->Measured Signals**. This tab lists all of the signals available from the system hardware and denotes which of them are included in the test with an asserted Measurecheck mark. In addition, available time stream signals have a Record Listcheck box and block signals offer a Save List option. Measure enables the channel for display, Record List enables the channel for recording, and Save List enables the channel for block saving. Only time-stream signals can be recorded and only block signals can be saved.

The signals are divided by type in the tabs on top. The Time Stream tab lists the native time stream signals. The other tabs list signals that are derived or computed from these native signals. These signals are organized in blocks rather than continuous streams. Deselecting Measure for these derived signals disables their



computation and saves processor resources. When recording is activated, by the menu command or the Rec. button on the control panel, all signals with the Record List option enabled will be recorded to a file. When the Save Sigs Button is pressed, all signals with the Save List option enabled will be saved to disk.

In the Time Blocks tab, the block signals have the additional options of RMS, Peak, and Peak-Peak display. Enabling these will create a signal that is the time history of RMS, peak, or peak-peak value for every block (one point per block). The color used to display the signals can also be changed here.

easured Si	gnals Setup					?
ne Streams	Time Blocks	Auto-Power Spectra	a (APS) (3D Signal)	PC Frequency Respo	onse (FRF) PC Math Signals All Signals	4
Measure w	aveform for all si	gnals 👿 Save all s	ignals Save and re	cording options		
	Signal name	Waveform	Save list	Signal color		
001	Block(Ch1)		7			
002	Block(Ch2)					
003	Block(Ch3)	V	V			
004	Block(Ch4)		V			
005	Block(Ch5)	V	\checkmark			
006	Block(Ch6)	V				
007	Block(Ch7)		V			
800	Block(Ch8)	~	~			

Figure 74. Signal Setup Time Block Tab

In the PC Math Signals tab, EDM allows users to do math computation between a signal and another signal or a constant. The math rules are defined as shown in the table below.





Figure 75. PC Math Signals

Operand 1	Operator	Operand	Math Signal Unit	How to calculate
Signal1	Plus	Signal2	(The same as signals, APS type. Only signals with the same EU can be calculated)	[EURMS^2+EURMS^2] = EURMS^2
Signal1	Minus	Signal2	(The same as signals, APS type. Only signals with the same EU can be calculated)	Abs(EURMS^2-EURMS^2) = EURMS^2
Signal1	Multiply	Signal2	(The same as signals, APS type. Only signals with the same EU can be calculated)	[EURMS^2*EURMS^2] = (EURMS^2)
Signal1	Divided by	Signal2	(N/A. Treat as CPS if both signals are APS.)	[EURMS^2*EURMS^2] = N/A
Signal	Plus	Constant	(The same as signals, APS type)	[EURMS ² + const ²]
Signal	Minus	Constant	(The same as signals, APS type)	[EURMS^2 - const ^2]
Signal	Multiply	Constant	(The same as signals, APS type)	Apply the constant to the original data (EURMS^2)
Signal	Divided by	Constant	(The same as signals, APS type)	Apply the constant to the original data (EURMS^2)
Constant	Plus	Signal	(The same as signals, APS type)	[EURMS ² + const ²]
Constant	Minus	Signal	(The same as signals, APS type)	[const ^2-EURMS^2]
Constant	Multiply	Signal	(The same as signals, APS type)	Apply the constant to the original data (EURMS^2)
Constant	Divided by	Signal	(The same as signals, APS type)	Apply the constant to the original data (EURMS^2)



In the On-board FRF tab (only available when FRF box was checked at the time of creating the test), the Spider calculates the FRF signals and transmits it to the PC for display. Any one channel in the Spider system can be specified as the reference channel by clicking the Change Reference Channel button and selecting the proper channel.

Math Sigr	nals All Signals					
Measure	all signals 🛛 Save	all signals Chang	e reference channel	Save and recording optic	ns Notation: FRF(Response, Excitation)	
	Signal name	Measure	Save list	Signal color		
001	H(Ch2,Ch1)					
002	COH(Ch2,Ch1)	V	V			
003	H(Ch3,Ch1)		V			
004	COH(Ch3,Ch1)	•				
005	H(Ch4,Ch1)					
006	COH(Ch4,Ch1)					
007	H(Ch5,Ch1)	•	V			
008	COH(Ch5,Ch1)	V				
009	H(Ch6,Ch1)	V				
010	COH(Ch6,Ch1)					
011	H(Ch7,Ch1)	•				
012	COH(Ch7,Ch1)	V	V			
013	H(Ch8,Ch1)	V	V			
014	COH(Ch8,Ch1)	V	V			

Figure 76. On-board FRF Signals

In the PC FRF tab, FRF signals are calculated by the PC instead of the Spider. Since the PC FRF relies on the PC's resource which is much more powerful than the Spider's processor, hundreds of FRF signals can be computed simultaneously without consuming the Spider's resource. Multiple channels can be specified as reference channels.

The relationship between input (force excitation) and output (vibration response) of a linear system is given by:

$\{Y\} = [H]\{X\}$

where $\{Y\}$ and $\{X\}$ are the vectors containing the response spectra and the excitation spectra, respectively, at the different DOFs in the model, and [H] is the matrix containing the FRFs between these DOFs.

The equation above can also be written as:

$$Y_i = \sum_j H_{ij} X_j$$



where *Yi* is the output spectrum at DOF i, *Xj* is the input spectrum at DOF j, and *Hij* is the FRF between DOF j and DOF i. The output is the sum of the individual outputs caused by each of the inputs.

The FRFs are estimated from the measured auto- and cross-spectra of and between inputs and outputs. Different calculation schemes (estimators) are available in order to optimize the estimate in the given measurement situation (presence of noise, frequency resolution, etc...).

For the classical case of a single input, the equation above gives the output at anyDOF i, with the input at DOF j, as:

$$Y_i = H_{ij} X_j$$
 or $H_{ij} = Y_i / X_j$

since the input is zero at all the DOFs other than j.



The FRF *Hij* can be estimated using the various classical estimators such as:

$$H_1 = G_{XY}/G_{XX}$$
 or
$$H_2 = G_{YY}/G_{YX}$$

where *GXX* and *GYY* are the auto spectra of input and output respectively, *GXY* is thecross-spectrum between input and output, and *GYX* is the cross-spectrum betweenoutput and input (i.e., the complex conjugate of *GXY*)1. H1 has the ability, by averaging, to eliminate the influence of uncorrelated noise at the output, whereas *H2* has the ability, by averaging, to eliminate the influence of uncorrelated noise at the input. Compared to *H1*, *H2* is less vulnerable to bias errors at the resonance peaks caused by insufficient frequency resolution (called resolution-bias errors).

Test Configuration

The Test Configuration window is used to set test-specific software options and parameters. It is divided into a number of sections accessed by the list on the left. Many of these sections are specific to particular test modes and are described in subsequent chapters. Other sections are for common functions shared by all test modes. These are also described in other sections of this manual. The **Test Configuration** window will be frequently referenced throughout this text.



To access these settings, go to Setup, select the **Test Configuration** item under the **Setup** menu or click the **Config** button on the control panel.



Figure 77: Access to Test Configuration

Running a Test

When using accelerometers it is a good idea to do a quick check to verify if they are working correctly. Tap your finger close to where the accelerometers are mounted. **The input should register a signal between 0.1 and 10 g's of acceleration. Anything** significantly out of this range can indicate a problem with the connection or channel setup. The Input Channel Status also provides an overview of the current input levels. It can be activated from **View->Channel Status**.

Channel Status 🔹							▼ ×				
Locat	ion ID					Overload	Unit	RMS	Peak	Min	Max 🔺
Ch1		_	-	_		No	v	0.00009	0.00016	0.00003	0.000
Ch2	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00056	0.00063	-0.00063	-0.00
Ch3	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	·	0.00050	0.00005	-0.00005	-0.00
	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00037	0.00048	-0.00048	-0.00
Ch4	-20	-1	OV	1	20	No	v	0.00040	0.00048	-0.00048	-0.00
Ch5		_	•	-		No	v	0.00028	0.00037	-0.00037	-0.00
Ch6	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	N.	0.00020	0.00022	0.00022	0.00
Ch7	-20	-1	٥v	1	20	NO	v	0.00029	0.00055	-0.00055	-0.00
	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	V	0.00060	0.00064	-0.00064	-0.00
Ch8			•			No	v	0.00050	0.00057	-0.00057	-0.00 🔻

Figure 78: Input Channel Status

Once ready, there are four ways to start a test: the F2 function key, the Run button on the control panel, the Run button on the toolbar, and the Run command in the Control menu.





To locate a specific test you can search for text in the Test Description edit box. The database manager can quickly locate tests with a keyword search.

Viewing Signals

Signal data is displayed under the Signal Display tabs. More than one of these tabs can be opened but only one is active at a time. Each tab can have a custom title. Each Signal Display tab contains one or more display windows. These windows display data in various kinds of plots. These windows can be freely arranged inside the tabs or ordered using the commands under the Layout menu.





Figure 79: Signal windows that can displays hundreds of signals

There are many ways to open a new display window. A signal can be directly viewed by right-clicking on it and selecting Display in a New Window.

Live Signals Run Folders Data Files	I	1
(> 🔤 Time stream	0.2	
> 🛀 Time Blocks		1
🛎 🔤 Auto-Power Spectra		
APS(Ch1)[f]	00	1
🗽 APS(Display in a New Window [doub	le-click]	

Figure 80: Display a Signal in a New Window

A blank window can be created from a window template by selecting the template under the View menu.

View	w <u>L</u> ayout T <u>o</u> ols <u>R</u> eport <u>H</u>	elp
	New Window	Ctrl+W
0	Save Window	Ctrl+U
De	fault Windows	
	Spectrum	Ctrl+1
	Frequency Response Function	Ctrl+2
	Time Stream	Ctrl+3
	Time Blocks	Ctrl+4
	Channel Status	Ctrl+5
	Digital I/O	Ctrl+6
	RunLog	Ctrl+7
	Numeric Display	Ctrl+8
	Recording Status	Ctrl+R
	Search Resonance Ct	rl+Shift+Q 🕨
	Orbit	Ctrl+9

Figure 81: View Tab

When you select an item from the View menu, a dialog is displayed allowing you to select the type of window and the signals to display. The available signals are listed on the left, and the plot types are shown on the right.



New Signal Display Window	7.3
All signals	e>
Choose plot signals	Choose window type
🚛 🛄 🔛 Time Block	
Dick (Ch1)	Overlaid plot
Dick (Ch2)	
🔟 🚧 Block(Ch3)	Stack plot
🔟 🚾 Block(Ch4)	0000
🔟 🚾 Block(Ch5)	Numeric text plot
- Dick(Ch6)	
🔟 🚾 Block(Ch7)	
Block(Ch8)	
4- 🔲 🔜 Frequency response spectrum	
🔲 🏡 H(Ch2,Ch1)	
🔲 🛴 H(Ch3,Ch1)	
🔟 🏧 H(Ch4,Ch1)	
🔟 🛵 H(Ch5,Ch1)	
🔲 🏡 H(Ch6,Ch1)	
🔟 🛵 H(Ch7,Ch1)	
🔲 🛵 H(Ch8,Ch1)	
4 🔤 🔛 Coherence	
🔲 🛴 COH(Ch2,Ch1)	
🔲 🛴 COH(Ch3,Ch1)	
- III 🐜 COH(Ch4.Ch1)	*
If no signals are selected, an empty window will be created.	<u>OK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 82: Window Customizer

You can also create a new, empty window by right-clicking next to the display window tabs, and selecting the type of window.





Figure 83: Create New Display Window by Right-clicking Top Bar

There are many different types of windows here (only some of these may be available depending on the current test type).Right-clicking the top bar of any window opens the window customizer dialog shown above. The other types of windows are described here:

Empty Window: is a single frame window. Multiple signals can be overlaid in this type of window.

Stack Window: plots each signal in a separate plot, stacked vertically. All signals in a stacked plot must have the same x-axis quantities.

Bode Plot: plots the magnitude and phase of a signal in a stacked plot.

Waterfall Window: shows a 3D display with time on one axis, frequency on another, and amplitude in the third.

ColorMap Window: plots frequency in the horizontal direction, time in the vertical direction, and uses color to represent magnitude.

Numeric Window: displays numeric values of the signal in a table.

Control Composite Window: displays the test profile, control profile, alarm and abort lines in an overlaid plot for vibration controller modes.

Channel Status Window: displays the status with parameters for all channels.



Run Log Window: shows a log of test events as they occur.

Digital IO Window: displays the current state of the digital inputs and outputs.

RMS, Peak, Peak, and Mean values can be shown for signal attributes.

Quantity	RMS 👻
	RMS
Font	Peak Peak-Peak
Arial	Mean

Figure 84: Attributes of Signal Display

Channel Status Window: shows the current state of each input channel. Both bar graphs, which show the current overall voltage level and numerical readings are shown.

Channel Sta	lus						▼ ×
Location Id		Overload	Unit	Min	Max	RMS	Peak
Ch1	-20-10 -1-0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-1.64416	3.49953	1.06180	3.49953
Ch2	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00288	-0.00198	0.00246	0.00288
Ch3	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00279	-0.00196	0.00249	0.00279
Ch4	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00224	-0.00148	0.00198	0.00224
Ch5	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00250	-0.00174	0.00224	0.00250
Ch6	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00429	-0.00341	0.00396	0.00429
Ch7	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00331	-0.00238	0.00289	0.00331
Ch8	-20-10 -1 -0.10V 0.1 1 10 20	No	g	-0.00453	-0.00360	0.00416	0.00453

Figure 85: Channel Status Window

The bar graphs are in a logarithmic scale so that the presence of both low-level and high-level signals can be seen. The readings show the minimum, maximum, RMS, and Peak levels for the units set in the channel setup table. If the input units are in acceleration, then the signal is integrated to show the velocity peak and double integrated to show the displacement peak. The integration is done digitally and should only be taken as estimation; the accuracy should not be relied on.

The Overload column shows when a channel is overloaded due to an input signal exceeding the input maximum. Readings from an overloaded channel should not be used.



Channel status information can be updated by right-clicking in the window and selecting Start Refresh when a test is not running.

Once a window is created with a type and combination of displayed signals, it can be saved as a custom window template. To save the current window layout, select the window and choose Save Active Window as User Defined under the Display menu. After saving, this template will be available under User Defined Windows in the Display menu.

Signals can also be added to existing windows. Dragging a signal from the signal list to a window will display it in the window. You can also right-click on the signal and select Add to the Active Window. Note that the target window for the signal must be a valid option for the signal type.

Contextual Menus

Right-clicking in the various parts of the user interface in EDM will bring up a contextual menu where commands and options related to the area clicked are displayed.

Right-clicking on a signal in the signal list brings up the following choices:



Figure 86: Context of Signals

Display in a New Window creates a new Display Window in the active View tab and adds the selected signal to it.

Add to the Active Window adds the selected signal to the currently selected Display Window. Note that only signals of the same type can be added to the same window; i.e. a time signal cannot be added to a window that already contains frequency data.

Apply Alarm Limits add limit lines to current signals.



Remove Alarm Limits from All Signals removes limit lines from all signals.

Export Data to MS Excel exports the signal data to an Excel file.

Export Data to Fileexports the signal data to a data file.

Save Signal saves currently displayed signals to the run folder.

Cache Signal savescurrently displayed signals to the clipboard for immediate use.

Rename allows the display name of the signal to be changed.

Add Annotation allows file objects to be referenced to the signal.

Attach Object allows text annotations to be referenced to the signal.

Remove All Annotation and Attachment wipes out all attached attributes.

Report Signal Chart generates a report for the current signal chart.

Right-clicking on the Signal Display tab titles brings up a contextual menu with commands to manipulate the tabs:



Figure 87: Signal Display Attributes

Add Signal Tab adds a new (empty) Signal Display tab.

Close Signal Tab closes the current Signal Display tab.

Close All But This keep the only current Signal Display tab open, and closes all others.

Rename Signal Tab renames the tab.

Print Signal Tab prints the signal tab.

Dock all Windows docks all windows contained in the tab.



Undock All Windows turns all windows contained in the tab into floating windows.

Layout Manage has options for auto-arranging the windows contained in the tab. These commands are duplicated in the Layout menu.

You can rearrange the layout of the different windows by clicking on the title tab of any window and dragging it to a new location. While dragging, the Dock to Location icon will be displayed. Dragging the window onto one of the arrows docks it to the edge of that view. Dragging on to the center of the icon adds it as a tab behind the current window.

The Plot Popup Menu can be accessed by right-clicking inside a window. This menu includes commands to change the contents and format of a plot. Many of these items can also be accessed on the toolbars.



Figure 88: Plot Popup Menu

View as Stacked Plot is available if there is more than one signal in the plot window. Stack mode will display each signal in separate plots, stacked vertically. If the window is already in Stack Mode, then **Switch to Overlaid Mode** will be displayed instead. Overlaid Mode will show each signal in the same plot.

Zoom Back zooms out to the previous zoom ratio

Un-Zoom All zooms out to the full scale so the entire signal is visible



X/Y Scale has options for adjusting the scale of the X and Y axes.



Figure 89: X/Y Scale Options

Auto Range turns on automatic scaling for the axes

Restore Scale reverts to the previous axes display

Axis Setting opens this window, used to set a custom range. This can also be opened directly by double-clicking on the axis label area.

Change X Axis Setting Minimum Value	Maximum Value
20	2000
Auto) Fixed
Apply to This Window Apply to all windows of thesa	ame unit
	<u>OK</u> <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 90: X-Axis Setting

Edit Axis Title allows users changing the title of the axis.

Add Cursor/Marker adds a vertical or horizontal cursor or peak and valley markers to the active window

Remove Cursor/Marker removes cursors or markers from the window

Remove Signal removes signals that are currently displayed from the active window



Remove All removes all displayed signals from the window

Copy copies either signal data or a bitmap image of the window in its current state onto the clipboard. **Copy Signal into Clipboard** allows the current signal to be copied and then pasted into another Display Window using the Paste Signal(s) item below:

Сару 🕨	Copy Bitmap into Clipboard
Save Bitmap	Copy Signal Data into Clipboard
Paste Signal	Copy Signal into Clipboard

Figure 91: Copy Signal Data or Bitmap

Save Bitmap allows the bitmap image of the window to be saved to a file

Paste Signal(s) pastes previously copied signals into the window

Horizontal Axis changes between linear and logarithmic frequency axis format for frequency-based signals.

Vertical Axis changes the vertical axis to decibel (dB) or linear magnitude (Mag) scaling. This is only available for frequency-based signals.

Spectrum Type defines the units for spectrum signals as power spectral density (EU^2/Hz) , energy spectral density (EU^2s/Hz) , squared units (EU_{rms}^2) , peak units (EU_{peak}) , or RMS (EU_{rms}) . Again, this only applies to frequency-based signals.

Signal Color defines the color scheme used for the signal plot.

Report this Window generates a report from the window in MS Word format.

RMS Display Setup defines how RMS values are displayed on the plots. RMS values can be displayed for the overall signal on each plot or only for a specified frequency band.



Link man a sector	
Plot properties	
Time Format RMS & RPM Display Plot Marker Global Notation	
Signal type Display RMS value for: Time signals Time signals Show overall RMS	
Show RMS of the display range	
Frequency signals Show RMS of the entire frequency range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the given frequency range:	
Start frequency (Hz):	0,00
End frequency (Ha:: RPM display Show RPM (Only for DSA which enabled the tachometer channel	20,000,00
	Time Format RMS & RPM Display Plot Marker Global Notation Signal type Display RMS value for: Time signals Time signals If Frequency signals Time signals Show overall RMS Show overall RMS Show RMS of the display range Frequency signals Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the display range Show RMS of the given frequency range: Start frequency (Hz): End frequency (Hz): RPM display Show RPM (Only for DSA which enabled the tachometer channel Show RPM (Only for DSA which enabled the tachometer channel

Figure 92: RMS Display Setup

Customize Notation Setting allows the user to edit numerical value notation and floating point formatting.

Plot Properties opens the Plot Properties section of the EDM Global Settings.

NOTE: The background color of the plot can be edited from the **Plot Properties**->**Plot** tab as shown below. The background color is only applied to plots displayed on the screen; it will not be applied to plots in generated reports; these will have a white background. Please note that if plot lines are also white then the plots generated in reports will appear blank (white on white).



ignal export	Plot properties		
General properties	Time Format RMS&RPM Dis	splay Plot Marker Global Notation	
Common properties Frequency properties Spectrum format	Line width	©2 pixel ©3 p	ixel
MAT file preferences Default display format Vorking folder	Grid	Y axis grid	Z axis grid
ingineering units	Full grid	© Full grid	© Full grid
ime signal AVD settings Nail setting	 Major grid No grid 	 Major grid No grid 	 Major grid No grid
ocket server	Set as Default	Enable the contrast colo	
/CS/DSA settings	Background color —	Enable by default Enable by default	
	The first cursor	The second cursor	•

Figure 93: Background Color Setting

Frequency and Frequency Response Windows

Windows that display data in the frequency domain have additional options to change how a spectrum is displayed. These options can be found in the contextual menu in Frequency plot windows.



View as Text	
View as Stack Plot	
Zoom Back (Ctrl-Z)	
Un-zoom All	
X/Y Scale	×
Add Cursor/Marker	×
Remove Cursor/Marker	⊧
Copy Value of Cursor/Marker	⊩
Add/Remove Signal	×
Add All Signals	
Remove All Signals	
Сору	×
Save Bitmap	
Paste Signal	
Horizontal Axis	×
Vertical Axis	×
Spectrum Type	×
Acc/Vel/Displ	×
Weighting Type	×
Legend	×
RMS Display Setup	
RMS/Peak Values on Chart	×
Report this Window	
Export data to MS-Excel	
Customize Notation Setting	
Plot Properties	

Figure 94: Frequency Window Options

Horizontal Axis changes between linear and logarithmic scaling of the frequency axis. There is a default option that defines the attributes of new windows. To change the default settings, set the desired attributes and select **Set as Default**.

Horizontal Axis	× -	Linear
Vertical Axis	• •	Log
Spectrum Type		Set as default

Figure 95: Horizontal Axis

Vertical Axis changes the unit type and scaling of the vertical (ordinate) axis. For frequency plots of signals that only have magnitude values (such as auto power spectra). The options are dB units, linear magnitude, or logarithmic magnitude scaling.





Figure 96: Vertical Axis

Some frequency plots, such as linear FFT, cross power spectra, and frequency response functions have complex ordinate values. Complex values have both real and imaginary parts, which can be converted to magnitude and phase. For these plots, there are additional options for displaying real values, imaginary values, or phase (in degrees).

Display Window Toolbar

When a window is in focus, the Quick Access Toolbar will appear. All of the commands shown in the Quick Access Toolbar can also be accessed through the contextual menu. The toolbar makes common commands accessible with one click. **Hovering the mouse over a button will show the button's function. Some of these** functions have been described above.



Figure 97: Display Window Toolbar



Zoom Back: zoom out to the previous zoom state

Auto Scale: automatically scale the X and Y axes

The Cursor and Marker icons control the display of cursors and markers on the current plot. See the next section.

When a window is displaying a block signal, the right side of the toolbar shows the current and total frame count.

Current Frame: 1, Total Frames: 1

When a time stream signal is being displayed, the Global View button is added on the right side. This view lets you control the time scale by clicking and dragging the arrows on the left and right sides of the gray bar that highlights the portion of the waveform that will be displayed in the main pane. This feature allows you to efficiently view long waveforms. The Global View can be hidden or revealed by clicking on the up or down arrow in the upper right corner of the view.



Figure 98: Global View for Time Waveforms.

Annotations: these buttons create a section, cursor, and text annotation on the current display. See the Annotations section below.

Absolute/Relative time: this toggles the displayed time values between relative time, where zero is the beginning of the time stream, and absolute time.



Time Stream Display Duration: for live time-stream signals, this changes the total time duration that is visible.

Annotations

Annotations are text notes that are attached to a display window. These notes can store signal attributes, cursor values, or user-entered text.

A section annotation displays signal values between two displayed cursors:



A cursor annotation displays the X and Y values of one cursor:



A user text annotation allows the user to enter any text.



Annotations are also listed in the signal list.





Cursors and Markers

Cursors allow features of a waveform to be measured such as a peak value or the time between two events. Cursors are added by pressing the button on the toolbar or by pressing the space bar on the keyboard.

When any vertical cursor is enabled, pressing the up arrow will search for peak values in the vicinity of the cursor(s), and those values will be displayed.



Move a cursor by clicking and dragging it with the mouse. The arrow keys move all cursors together.

When a cursor is added to a window, the X and Y values are shown in the Cursor view on the right side of the screen.

Marker annotations can be displayed with signals. Right-click on a signal to add a marker.

(Signals APS(drive	View as Text View as Stacked Plot	4 Þ 🗶	(Signals control	
LogMag V ² / Hz APS(drive) RMS:0	Zoom Back Un-zoom All			LogMag g ² / H control(f) RM
A 11	X/Y Scale	•		
	Add Cursor/Marker		Vertica	al Cursor
	Remove Cursor/Marker	*	Peak	larkers
	Copy Value of Cursor/Marker	*	Valley	Markers
	Add/Remove Signal Add All Signals Remove All Signals	P	Harmo Custor Add Ar	nic Markers m Markers nnotation

Mouse over the signal tab to show the function buttons. Select the Hide/Show Marker Annotation to manipulate the marker annotation.



(Signals APS(drive))			4 Þ X
영 🍫 🛧 🤸	h lh <mark>a</mark> that th	1	/ ~ x
P1 2007007 P2007	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Hide	Marker Annotation
APS(drive) P1 = 745.000 P2 = 820.000 P3 = 830.000 P4 = 780.000 P5 = 770.000	[Hz], 5.67274e-0 [Hz], 5.30160e-0 [Hz], 5.21903e-0 [Hz], 5.07082e-0 [Hz], 4.98951e-0	06 [LogMag V2 / H 06 [LogMag V2 / H 06 [LogMag V2 / H 06 [LogMag V2 / H 06 [LogMag V2 / H	tz] tz] tz] tz] tz]
			Frequency (Hz)
800	900	1000	1164

Figure 99: Pane with Two Vertical Cursors

Markers display the peak or valley features of a waveform. Add markers by rightclicking in the display and selecting Add Cursor/Marker. Marker data is also displayed in the Cursor tab on the Control Panel.







Figure 100: Add Cursors and Markers

Saving and Recording Data

As previously described, there are two methods of data retention during a test: Saving and Recording. A save is activated by pressing the **Save** button on the control panel, which saves block signal data and figures of display windows to the local disk.Press the **Rec.** button to activate recording, which records time stream data to the internal flash memory.

Although EDM supports up to 24 Spider modules with 192 input channels, recording to flash memory has certain limitation when highest sampling rate of 102.4 kHz is selected. At the sampling rate of 102.4 kHz, the recording to flash memory is limited up to 144 channels (6 channels * 24 modules). At sampling rate of 81.92 kHz or lower, the recording to flash memory can apply to 192 channels at maximum.

To activate saving or recording in a schedule or when some events happen, Save results to PC, Save signals to internal memory, Start recording, and Stop recording are actions that may be inserted. Please refer to the Event-Action rules section for more detail.

Under the Measured Signals Setup, time stream signals have a Record List option and other signals have a Save List option. These options control whether the signals are included in a saving or recording operation.

When recording or saving to the internal flash memory, the data files that are created are not visible in EDM until they are downloaded. To download files, select Download from Spider Internal Flash in the Tools menu.



		Size Date created	Remain II	Download (%)	Download Path	
		SN: 2580256 Total space: 3.76	5GB, Free space	e: 3.37GB (89.70%) —		
REC0002	Unknown	106.01 MB 1/21/2015 1:50:24 PM	00:00:27	13.77%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0003	Unknown	122.95 MB 1/21/2015 1:34:04 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0001	Unknown	5.15 MB 1/21/2015 1:02:46 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0001	Unknown	616.27 KB 1/19/2015 3:33:54 AM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0022	FFT_Test_29	910.30 KB 1/12/2015 4:44:04 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0019	FFT_Test_29	532.44 KB 1/9/2015 3:08:10 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0017	FFT_Test_29	8.70 MB 1/9/2015 2:52:02 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0016	FFT_Test_29	9.26 MB 1/9/2015 2:48:01 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0014	FFT_Test_29	6.99 MB 12/22/2014 4:25:01 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0013	FFT_Test_29	4.27 MB 12/22/2014 4:24:38 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0011	FFT_Test_29	8.44 MB 12/22/2014 3:14:46 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0010	FFT_Test_29	5.29 MB 12/22/2014 3:14:35 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0009	FFT_Test_29	8.04 MB 12/22/2014 3:14:19 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0007	FFT_Test_29	926.46 KB 12/22/2014 3:13:51 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0006	FFT_Test_29	1.11 MB 12/22/2014 3:13:42 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0005	FFT_Test_29	1.23 MB 12/22/2014 3:13:32 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0004	FFT_Test_29	1.10 MB 12/22/2014 3:13:23 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
REC0002	FFT_Test_29	1.31 MB 12/22/2014 3:12:28 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
TWRDefau	lt Unknown	1.89 MB 12/25/2010 12:00:00 AM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
SIG0028	Unknown	87.97 KB 6/13/2014 2:18:40 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
SIG0027	Unknown	87.97 KB 6/13/2014 2:18:39 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	

Figure 101: Spider File Download

In the window that appears, all data files will be shown with associated test names. Multiple files may be downloaded at the same time to the folder specified on the bottom right corner.

Save/Recording Setup

There are several options for the Save and Recording functions in the Test Configuration window.



ave/Recording setup 《	Note: Time streams are re	corded to Spider internal storag	ge and need to be dow	nloaded befo	re review.	
alysis parameters	Signals to be saved are de	fined in the measured signals ta	ab.			
n schedule	Save results to PC und	er the following conditions	F	ollowing re	sults will be save	ed
nt action rules	When test starts			Signals		
e/Recording setup	When test aborts			Active sign	alwindow	
	 When test pauses When test is finished When average number is reached Save 3D signals when test aborts 			All signal windows		
				Software so	creenshot	
	When limit is exceeded					
	Every 90 s					
	When triggered					
	When triggered Enable a timer when schedule starts					
	Enable a timer when so	neuue starts				
	Enable a manual timer	nitilitie alter trigger				
	Note: Pressing the Save Sigs button will always save a frame of signals to PC					
	Record signal options					
	Begin recording when Automatically start P	measurement starts Recording when test starts (PC	Recording is available	only for sele	cted signals)	
	File name options	incontanty internet status (i e	incoroning is a random		eree signaay	
	Pecord file name prefix	DEC	Sequence number st	arts from:	0	
	Record me name prenx	NEC.	Sequence number se		0	
	Save file name prefix	SIG	Sequence number st	arts from:	0	
	Note: When there is alre	adv a file with the same name i	in the folder keep both	files/a numb	er will be	
	appended to the name of	of the latter file).	in the lotter, keep both	mestamano	ci will be	

Figure 102: Save/Record Setup

The options are provided to determine when the software should save results to PC and which display windows are saved with signals.

Save results to PC under the following conditions

Common options for all test types:

Software saves the results

- when test schedule just starts
- when test aborts
- when test pauses
- Enable a timer when schedule starts: save with the timer enabled after a run starts

Options only available in FFT and Acoustic analysis:

Software saves the results



- when test just finished
- when average number is reached
- save 3D signals when test aborts
- every <u>seconds</u>
- FrameNumber: the results of the given number of frames
- when limit is exceeded
- when triggered
- Enable a timer when continue after trigger: save with the timer enabledafter a run is triggered to start

Options only available in Sine reduction:

Software saves the results

when sweeping direction changes

When the software saves results to PC, results include

- Signals
- Screenshot of the active signal window
- Screenshots of all signal windows
- Screenshots of the software

In the **File name options** area, Record and Save file name prefixes may be defined separately and differentiated.

Record to Spider-NAS

Spider-NAS (Network Attached Storage) is a dedicated storage device that works with front-end modules from Crystal Instruments, including the Spider-80x, Spider-81, and Spider-DAQ. The Spider-NAS is connected to each Spider data acquisition module through eight high-speed data bus ports, and an Ethernet port is used to configure and control the system from any location on the network.

For the hardware including hardware settings, details are introduced in the Spider-NAS Manual.

Although EDM supports up to 24 Spider modules with 192 input channels, recording to NAS has certain limitation when highest sampling rate of 102.4 kHz is



selected. At the sampling rate of 102.4 kHz, the recording to NAS is limited up to 168 channels (7 channels * 24 modules). At sampling rate of 81.92 kHz or lower, the recording to NAS can apply to 192 channels at maximum.

In EDM, Record to Spider-NAS function can be found under Global Settings->Working Folder as shown below. Once the Record to Spider-NAS is selected, all the recorded data files will be saved to Spider-NAS system by default.

Global Settings			? X
- Signal export	Working folder		
General properties	Default directory for spider data files:		
Common properties	C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM		Browse
Frequency properties	Default directory for report film		
Spectrum format	a human and the		
MAT file preferences	C: \Users \m k \Documents		Browse
Default display format	Default directory for limit collection:		
Working folder	C:\Users\m k\Documents		Browse
Engineering units	Default recording media when Spider-NAS is enabled:	Record to Front-End internal storage	
Plot properties		Record to Front-End internal storage	
Time signal AVD settings		Record to Spider-NAS	_
Mail setting			
Appearance			
Socket server			
VCS/DSA settings			
	L		
		<u>0</u> K	Cancel

Open a Recording Status window to show the progress of recording:





Using Libraries



Figure 103: Library Tab

A number of settings, including the Channel Table, Reference Profile, Run Schedule, Event Action Rules and Shaker Parameters allow the use of libraries. When linked to a library, the settings are saved to the library and are updated if any changes are made to them from within another test. For example, if the same shaker is used in multiple tests then a library can be created for its parameters. If one of these settings is changed, the change will be reflected in all the tests that are linked to this library.

To create a new library file based on the current settings, click **Save to Library** and enter a name and an optional description. When a name is assigned, it is set to public, which allows it to be referred to by other tests.

To make a library the default selection in all new tests, click **Save As Default**. In all future tests, the library name will show up in the Library Reference drop-down menu. Selecting the library name in the list will link the current test to the library and replace the current settings with those of the library. To delete the library, press the red X next to the name.





Figure 104. Set the Library Element as "Private"



Figure 105: Set the Library Element as "Public"

Using libraries can save setup time. For example, in a testing lab, the sensitivity values will be changed every time the sensors are calibrated. If no library is used the user will have to manually change the sensitivity values in all the tests. If a library is used, the user simply updates the library and the values can be applied to all tests.

Event-Action Rules

There are many events that can occur during the course of operation for a test, including certain response levels being reached, limits being exceeded, and user caused events such as pause or stop. The Event-Action Rules feature offers the most flexibility in controlling the system operation by customizing the response to these events.

Event-Actions Rules define the response of the controller to these test events. Many actions are available as custom responses, such as sending an e-mail or stopping the test. When an event occurs, the corresponding action rule(s) will be automatically applied by the software.

In the Event Action Rules user interface of EDM, the left column, Event Name, lists events while the right column, Action Rules, lists the corresponding actions taken by the software. System events are in blue words and user events are in green words. User events can be manually added, renamed, and removed. Click "Add a User Event" button to add a new user event to the event list. Click to highlight a user event and click "Edit Event Name" to rename the user event. Click to highlight a user event and click "Remove Event" to delete the user event from the list.



Test Configurations for FFT_Test_33 [DSA (FFT)] ? X									
Event action rules «	Event list								
	Add a user event	Edit event name	Remove eve	nt Run log ev	vent strings	Event settings			
Analysis parameters	Event name	[Action rules						
Run schedule	Flach Screen and	Reen	Flach Screen a	nd Reen					
Event action rules	Save signals to PC		Save results to	PC					
Save/Recording setup	Time Status Below Low Abort		Flash Screen a	nd Been					
Save/Recording setup	Time Status Belov	w Low Alarm	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Time Status Exce	ed High Abort	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Time Status Exce	ed High Alarm	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Limit Exceeded		Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Average Number	Reached	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Output Reaches N	Maximum	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Channel Overload	t i	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	User Pressed Stop	D	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Just Triggered		None						
	Connection Lost		Save results to	D PC					
	Download Comp	lete	Flash Screen a	nd Beep					
	Signal exceeds th	reshold	Start Recordin	g					
	Signal drops belo	ow threshold	Stop Recordin	g					
	Receive Digital Ir	nput Input #2	None						
	Receive Digital In	nput Input #3	None						
	Receive Digital In	nput Input #4	None						
	Receive Digital Ir	iput Input #6	None						
F F				Action ru	iles for select	ed event			
	Name:			Add action 👻	Edit action	Remove action			
l i									
	Load from library	Save to library							
								<u>O</u> K	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 106. Event Action Rules

System Events

System events (shown in blue words) are predefined in the software. They events can occur during a typical test. The list of all available system events in Spider DSA mode follows.

Limit Exceeded – a signal exceeds a limit value placed on the channel. There are two types of limits, high and low. Before using this event, the Limit must be configured under Apply Alarm Limits option by right-clicking the signal in the Live Signal tab.

Average Number Reached –when Linear Average mode is in use, the event occurs when the average reaches its full programmed count. The Average number must be set before running the test and the averaging mode must be linear.

Output Reaches Maximum – an output channel reaches its full-scale voltage.

Channel Overload – any channel exceeds its full-scale voltage.

User Pressed Stop – the "Stop" button (either a software or a hardware button) is pressed.



Just Triggered – a trigger condition is met during the test. The trigger condition can be configured by clicking the Setup Trigger button in the control panel.

Connection Lost – the hardware is no longer detected by the software.

Download Complete – the data downloading is completed.

Actions List

One or more actions (up to 5) can be added to the corresponding action rules of each event. When an event occurs, the corresponding actions will be triggered. The system will automatically execute the actions in the list.

All available actions are listed below.



Figure 107. Available Action

Flash Screen and Beep – the EDM User Interface shows a light green flash on the status window. EDM will also send a beeping sound to the PC sound card.

Create Report – a report is created with the template defined under the report tab.

Capture Screen – a screenshot is taken to the clipboard. The users can paste it to any application or save it to a file.

Send Email – a predefined email is sent by EDM.


Customize Em	ailContent	X
Send email is will be sent to message body	a DSP action that will be taken when an event is invoked. The message o the Email address specified by [Global Settings] . Please specify the here.	
Send to:	support@go-ci.com	
Copy to:	sales@go-ci.com	
Subject:	Save signals to PC	
Body:	FFT_New_Test_23> Event Action (Send Email)	
Send by:	Send email by EDM O Send email by Front-End	
Send interval:	0 🔔 second(s)	
	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel	_

The email server can be configured under Tools->Global Settings->Mail Setting.

Send Socket Messages– a socket message is sent to another application. The users must configure the socket server and client using Tools->Global Settings->Socket Server.

Create a Spider M	lessage	Х						
"Send Message" is a DSP action that will be taken when an event is invoked. The message will be sent from Spider module to Windows through API (Application Programming Interface). Please specify a destination and unique message.								
Destination:	192.168.15.10							
Message:	Run Test 2							
	<u>Q</u> k <u>C</u> ancel							

Send Digital Output Signals – a digital pulse or level is sent via Digital the I/O port. Only one pin (of pins #05~#08) can be selected at a time. There are four output signal patterns are available (Low-High-Low, High-Low-High). The Low voltage is 0 V, and the High voltage is 3.3 V. When the output pattern is either Lowe-High-Low or High-Low-High, the user is allowed to set the pulse duration by entering the numeric value of millisecond.



Customize Digital Output	X
Select output #: Output #5	
Digital output signal pattem:	
•TC TC	
© High © Low	
) Inverse state	
Pulse duration: 1 [ms]	
<u>O</u> K	<u>C</u> ancel

Start Recording – EDM starts recording the time stream signals. The channels to be recorded are defined under Setup->Measured Signals->Time Stream.

Stop Recording – EDM stops recording the time stream signals. Usually this action follows a Start Recording action after certain duration of recording.

Save Signals to PC – EDM will save the signals to a file and store it on a PC's hard drive. Signals to be saved are defined under Setup->Measured Signals.

Save Signals to Internal Memory – EDM sends a command to the front-end module to save signals to its internal memory. The signals to be saved are defined under Setup->Measured Signals.

Reset Average – EDM resets the average.

Stop the Test – EDM stops the test.

Limit Check Off – EDM disables limit checking.

Limit Check On - EDM enables limit checking.

User Defined Events

Aside from the events generated by the control system, the user can define his/her own events and insert them into a run schedule. These events then can then trigger user-defined actions. Click Add a User Event to insert a new user defined event. All available actions can be attached to this event.



Event action rules	*	Event list
Applyric parameter	Add a user event Edit event na	ne Remove event Run log event strings Event settings
Analysis parameters	Event name	Action rules
Run schedule	User Event 1	None
Event action rules	Flash Screen and Beep	Flash Screen and Beep
Save/Recording setup	Save signals to PC	Save results to PC
	Time Status Below Low Abort	Flash Screen and Beep
	Time Status Below Low Alarm	Flash Screen and Beep
	Time Status Exceed High Abort	Flash Screen and Beep
	Time Status Exceed High Alarm	Flash Screen and Beep
	Limit Exceeded	Flash Screen and Beep
	Average Number Reached	Flash Screen and Beep
	Output Reaches Maximum	Flash Screen and Beep
	Channel Overload	Flash Screen and Beep
	User Pressed Stop	Flash Screen and Beep
	Just Triggered	None
	Connection Lost	Save results to PC
	Download Complete	Flash Screen and Beep
	Signal exceeds threshold	Start Recording
	Signal drops below threshold	Stop Recording
	Receive Digital Input Input #2	None
	Receive Digital Input Input #3	None
	Receive Digital Input Input #4	None
	Receive Digital Input Input #6	None

Event Action Rules Setup

Test Configurations for FFT_Test_33 [DSA (FFT)] ? x								
Event action rules «		Event list						
Analysis parameters	Add a user event Edit event nam	ne Remove event Run log event strings Event settings						
Due sebedule	Event name	Action rules						
Kun schedule	Flash Screen and Beep	Flash Screen and Beep						
Event action rules	Save signals to PC	Save results to PC						
Save/Recording setup	Time Status Below Low Abort	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Time Status Below Low Alarm	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Time Status Exceed High Abort	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Time Status Exceed High Alarm	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Limit Exceeded	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Average Number Reached	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Output Reaches Maximum	Flash Screen and Beep						
	Channel Overload	Flash Screen and Beep						
	User Pressed Stop	Hash Screen and Beep						
	Connection Lost	Sove regults to PC						
	Download Complete	Flach Screen and Been						
	Signal exceeds threshold	Start Recording						
	Signal drops below threshold	Stop Recording						
	Receive Digital Input Input #2	None						
	Receive Digital Input Input #3	None						
	Receive Digital Input Input #4	None						
	Receive Digital Input Input #6	None						
		Action rules for selected event						
	New Stock Streep and Reep							
	Name: Flash Screen and Beep	Add action Edit action Remove action						
	Flash Screen and Beep							
	l							
]						
	Load from library Save to library							
			<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel					

Figure 108: Event Action Rule Setup



The Event-Action Rules tab in the Test Configuration window defines the actions that will occur in response to test events. User-defined events can also be customized. The list box on top lists all the events and their actions. System events are blue and user defined events are green. When an event is selected, its associated actions are listed below. Use the buttons on the top of the lower list to add or remove actions, to rename user events and to save changes.

Reports

EDM can generate customizable reports in Microsoft Word format that summarize the test setup and results (Microsoft Word 2003 or later is required for this feature). Reports are generated from templates, which define the formatting and what data is to be included.

Report Options		? X
Customized Report Template System Report Re	port File Format Report Headers	
🖽 🛛 🗙 🦠	My Report->	
Templates: MyReport	Logo Page Advanced	
Report Item	Insert this logo into the report	Preview
Report attribute settings		
4 🗹 Testing results		
🗹 Composite display		
Active signal window	Logo position V Header Footer	
All signal window	Auto-scale size	Test Report
Channel status and run log	Logo size Width 0 pixels	
4 Test configuration	Height nixels	
Test parameters		
🔲 Channel table report		
🔲 Profile, schedule and limits	Clear	
🔲 Test checklist	Browse	
🔲 Database and file location information		
🛄 Administration information		
4 Spider system setting		
Channel calibration		
Sensor list		
Spider coffiguration and license key		
Global setting report		
Software screenshot		
	Load default A	pply settings to all templates <u>C</u> lose

To define a new template: select (Define Template) in the Report menu.

Figure 109: Report Options

All defined templates are listed under the Templates drop-down menu in the left column. The rest of the window shows the settings for the selected template.

The Report Items column shows all of the various items that can be included in the template. Un-checking the box next to an item will exclude that section from the report. The Active Window item will include the currently selected display window at the top of the report. You can also create a report that only has the active window and none of the other sections.

The right side of the window has 3 tabs, **Logo**, **Page** and **Report Title** for controlling the format of the report. A customized logo can be uploaded to EDM



and added to the report. Page orientation and size can be defined as can report title and font size, color and format.

Once a template has been created, you can generate a report by selecting the template name from the Report menu.



Figure 110: Report Template

You can also generate a report that only includes one plot. To do this, configure a display window in EDM as needed. Then, confirm that the plot is selected, rightclick in the plot area, and select **Report This Window**. Annotations and cursors will be included in the report. You can also select **New Report** ->**Active Window** from the **Report** menu. This will use the Default Template to control the formatting of the report.



View as Text	
View as Stack Plot	
Zoom Back (Ctrl-Z)	
Un-zoom All	
X/Y Scale	×
Add Cursor/Marker	×
Remove Cursor/Marker	F
Copy Value of Cursor/Marker	F
Add/Remove Signal	×
Add All Signals	
Remove All Signals	
Сору	×
Save Bitmap	
Paste Signal	
Horizontal Axis	×
Vertical Axis	×
Signal Color	×
Legend	×
Report this Window	
Export data to MS-Excel	
RMS Display Setup	
Customize Notation Setting	
Plot Properties	

Figure 111: Report a Window from the Display



Figure 112: Report a Window from the Report Tab



Test Report

Report time: Nov-12-2014, 15:28:00

Test name: FFT_New_Test_21[Real Time (DSA)]

Data saved at: Nov-12-2014, 15:27:48



Figure 113: A Sample of My Report

Similarly, you can create a report that includes only the plots in the current view tab by selecting **New Report** ->**Active View**. Selecting **Test Report** will create a report with all the items enabled in the Default Template (the same as selecting **Default Template** in the **Report** menu).

Black Box Mode

The Spider platform from Crystal Instruments operates as a real-time data acquisition and analysis system while connected to a desktop PC. It can also function as a stand-alone data recording system that does not require a separate computer. This second mode is called **Black Box Mode** and it is unique to Crystal **Instruments' products. A computer is used to set up test parameters and to** download test data after the test has been run. While running, the Spider operates autonomously according to a pre-set run schedule. Only single module systems can run in black box mode.

The options to run the Spider module in Black Box Mode are:



- 1. Use a PC to re-connect to the Spider module.
- 2. Use an iPad running the Crystal Instruments EDM App.
- 3. Use the front-panel buttons of the hardware
- 4. The EDM iPad App allows multiple Spiders to be remotely controlled by one iPad.
- 5. All Crystal Instruments Spider platforms support Black Box mode.



Spider-80X Dynamic Signal Analyzer



Spider-81 High-End Vibration Controller



Spider-20 Wireless Dynamic Signal Analyzer



Spider-DAQ Data Acquistion



Spider-81B Vibration Controller



Spider-81C Wireless Vibration Controller

Running in Black Box mode eliminates the reliability issues caused by PCs in realtime control and data acquisition applications.

Black Box mode is ideal for production tests or long-duration tests. It is ideal for data acquisition applications that run without people in attendance.





Hardware devices connected to the local area network can be identified by their IP addresses when attempting to connect to them with PCs or iPads.

A separate manual, Spider Black Box Mode Manual, describes Black Box mode in detail; only a summary will be presented here.

Each time a test is run from a connected computer, all of the test configuration data is uploaded to the internal memory of the front-end hardware. In normal operations, the computer remains connected allowing you to control the test and view the signals. However, all signal processing is performed by the front end module and not by the computer. Recorded data is stored on the internal memory of the front end. Black Box mode takes advantage of the fact that the computer is not actually needed for the test.

To run in Black Box mode, first set up a test, in any mode, on the computer. The test will run according to the items in the Run Schedule. Select the signals to be recorded under the Measured Signals Setup tab.

Measured S	ignals Setup						? ×				
Time Streams	Time Blocks Au	ito-Power Spectra (A	PS) On-board Freq	uency Response (Fl	RF) (3D Signal (PC Freque	ncy Response (FRF)	4 Þ				
PC Math Sign	PC Math Signals										
Measure all signals 🕼 Save/Record all signals Save and recording options											
	Signal name	Measure	Save/Record list	Signal color	Storage						
▶ 001	Ch1				Record to Spider						
002	Ch2				Record to Spider						
003	Ch3	•	V		Record to Spider						
004	Ch4	7	7		Record to Spider						
005	Ch5		V		Record to Spider		=				
006	Ch6		V		Record to Spider						
007	Ch7		7		Record to Spider						
008	Ch8		V		Record to Spider						
009	Block(Ch1)				Save to PC						
010	Block(Ch2)				Save to PC						
011	Block(Ch3)				Save to PC						
012	Block(Ch4)				Save to PC						
013	Block(Ch5)				Save to PC						
014	Block(Ch6)				Save to PC						
015	Block(Ch7)				Save to PC						
016	Block(Ch8)				Save to PC						
017	APS(Ch1)				Save to PC						
018	APS(Ch2)				Save to PC						
019	APS(Ch3)	~	V		Save to PC		-				
019	APS(Ch3)				Save to PC	<u>o</u> ĸ	Car				

Figure 114: Measured Signal Setup Tab

Under Event Action Rules in the Test Configuration window, create two user events: Start Recording Event and Stop Recording Event.



Event action rules					Event list		
Event action rules	Add a user even	Edit event name.		Runlog e	vent strings	Event settings	
alysis parameters	Event name		Action rules				
n schedule	Licer Event 1		None				
ent action rules	Elach Screen an	d Been	Flach Screen an	d Reen			
(Descellar schol	Save signals to	pr	Save recults to I	a beep			
e/Recording setup	Time Status Bel	low Low Abort	Flash Screen an	d Reen			
	Time Status Bel	low Low Alarm	Flash Screen an	d Been			
	Time Status Exc	eed High Abort	Flash Screen an	d Been			
	Time Status Exc	reed High Alarm	Flash Screen an	d Been			
	Limit Exceeded		Flash Screen an	d Been			
	Average Numb	er Reached	Flash Screen an	d Beep			
	Output Reache	s Maximum	Flash Screen an	d Beep			
	Channel Overlo	ad	Flash Screen and Beep				
	User Pressed St	top	Flash Screen and Beep				
	Just Triggered		None				
	Connection Los	st	Save results to I	PC .			
	Download Com	nplete	Flash Screen an	d Beep			
	Signal exceeds	threshold	Start Recording				
	Signal drops be	elow threshold	Stop Recording				
	Receive Digital	Input Input #2	None				
	Receive Digital	Input Input #3	None				
	Receive Digital	Input Input #4	None				
	Receive Digital	Input Input #6	None				
					a a		
				Action ru	iles for select	ed event	
	Name: User Ev	rent 1	A	dd action 🔻	Edit action.	Remove action	
				Flash Sc	reen and Bee	p	
				Create R	eport		
				Capture	Screen		
				Send So	cket Message		
				Send E I	ulail		
				Seria E-I			
				Contract Division			
				Send Dig	gital Output :	signals	

Figure 115: Event Action Rule

Set up the run schedule. Use a loop to have actions repeated a set number of times.



Run schedule	Select an item to insert;	Schedule	
Analysis parameters Run schedule Eventaction rules Save/Recording setup Digital IO setup	Test schedule entries (*) Start aloop (*) Run Duration (*) Turn Signal Source On (*) Turn Signal Source Off (*) User defined events (*) User Event 1 (*) Save signals to PC (*) Elash Screen and Been (*)	Editentry Remove entry Enable/Disabilentry Move up Move down	
	Loop times:	B ← ★ hber of loops that you want to execute. <u>QK</u> <u>Cancel</u>	
	Load from library (Save to library		

Figure 116: Run Schedule

Insert the Start and Stop Recording events.



Figure 117: Insert Entries to the Schedule

Then, connect to the Spider and run the test from the PC once. It is now loaded into the internal memory of the front end module.





Select **Black Box Setup** from the Setup menu and press Refresh. The test will be listed under Uploaded Tests.

ect Spid	ermodule	SN: 2580256		
Index	Name	Uploaded test Type	Select	
1	FFT_New_Test_8	DSA		
Ref	resh Linioad t	est Delete all	Delete selected	Close

Figure 118: Black Box Setup Dialog box

When the check box "Always overwrite first entry when running a test" is checked, the active running test will always be automatically uploaded to the front-end as one of the tests that can be run in the Black Box mode. (If this option is not checked, the Black Box table will not be updated.)

By default, the test in position 1 will run. This can be changed from the front panel LCD display.

Tests stored in the front-end box can be executed by several means: an iPad connected to the box through wireless, via the digital I/O, or via the front LCD panel.



Run the Test with Front Panel

To select which test to run, press the right arrow key on the Spider's front panel until the Test List is shown. Then use the up and down arrow keys to select a test. When the Start button is pressed, the selected test will be run.

To start the test in Black Box mode, disconnect from the Spider and exit EDM. Press the **Start** button on the front panel of the Spider. Test status info will be shown on the front LCD panel and the MEM LED will illuminate when signals are being recorded.

Press the **Stop** button to stop the test.

To download the recorded files, reconnect to the Spider using EDM, and choose "Download Data Files" from the Tools menu. Select the recorded files in the list and click on "Download Selected".

Dow	nload Data from S	pider Internal Storage	2					? X
Sh	ow files on each Fro	nt-End device						
Data	Files Runlogs							
	Name	Test	Size	Date Created	Remain Ti	Download (%)	Download Path	
			5N: 2580256	Total space: 3.76	iGB, Free space	: 3.37GB (89.70%)		
	REC0002	Unknown	106.01 MB	1/21/2015 1:50:24 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0003	Unknown	122.95 MB	1/21/2015 1:34:04 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0001	Unknown	5.15 MB	1/21/2015 1:02:46 PM	00:00:00	100.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0001	Unknown	616.27 KB	1/19/2015 3:33:54 AM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0022	FFT_Test_29	910.30 KB	1/12/2015 4:44:04 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0019	FFT_Test_29	532.44 KB	1/9/2015 3:08:10 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0017	FFT_Test_29	8.70 MB	1/9/2015 2:52:02 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0016	FFT_Test_29	9.26 MB	1/9/2015 2:48:01 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0014	FFT_Test_29	6.99 MB	12/22/2014 4:25:01 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0013	FFT_Test_29	4.27 MB	12/22/2014 4:24:38 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0011	FFT_Test_29	8.44 MB	12/22/2014 3:14:46 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0010	FFT_Test_29	5.29 MB	12/22/2014 3:14:35 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0009	FFT_Test_29	8.04 MB	12/22/2014 3:14:19 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0007	FFT_Test_29	926.46 KB	12/22/2014 3:13:51 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0006	FFT_Test_29	1.11 MB 1	12/22/2014 3:13:42 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0005	FFT_Test_29	1.23 MB	12/22/2014 3:13:32 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0004	FFT_Test_29	1.10 MB	12/22/2014 3:13:23 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	REC0002	FFT_Test_29	1.31 MB	12/22/2014 3:12:28 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	TWRDefault	Unknown	1.89 MB	12/25/2010 12:00:00 AM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	SIG0028	Unknown	87.97 KB	5/13/2014 2:18:40 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	
	SIG0027	Unknown	87.97 KB (5/13/2014 2:18:39 PM	00:00:00	0.00%	C:\Users\m k\Desktop	-
	Download				 Download to 	run folder		
	Refresh	Format Internal Storag	je D	elete	Download to	C:\Users\m k\Desktop		Browse
					O Always ask m	e where to download files		Close

Figure 119: Spider File Download

The files will be downloaded to the current run folder. Click on the "Data Files" tab on the lower left part of EDM to view the signals.

Using Socket Messages to Communicate with Other Applications

Socket messages are a convenient way for EDM to communicate with other Windows applications on the LAN. These Windows applications can be programmed in VB, VC, C#, LabVIEW, etc.





Figure 120: Socket Communication Diagram

The use of socket messages by EDM is described in detail in a separate document titled: "Socket Message Manual".

Database Backup and Restore

EDM can back up the current database to local files or import backup files to the current database, including test configuration data. Users can use Backup and Restore to migrate the database and manage data.

Click Tools; select Backup and Restore Database to enter the main page.

Too	ls <u>R</u> eport <u>H</u> elp	
121	Spider Configuration	
٠	Download from Spide	r Internal Storage
ŵ.	Calibration	
C.y	Hardware Self-Test	
E	Access Database	
E.	Backup and Restore D	atabases
0	Working Mode	
-	License Key Manager	
8	Account Manager	
4	Amplifier Controller	
Ę	Initial Setup	Ctrl+Shift+I
4	Global Settings	Ctrl+G

Figure 121: Backup and Restore Database

On the "Database Manage" page there are two tabs: "Operation on Database" and "Batch Operation". Under the "Operation on Database" tab, the database is set up to back up, restore, or delete. The backup rules may also be defined here. Check



"Auto Backup" to automatically back up the database. Database backup is for tests

and data while the test backup is only for the tests (without data). Data file backups can be specified for a specific date range.

Database Manage	? X
Platform: SQLServer2008, Server: localh	ost, Database: kings, User: Windows Account
Operation On Database Batch Operations	
Spider item backup option	Database operation
Database backup option Auto backup when exit EDM Bernind me to backup per 30 days Test export option Export all Export all Data files export option	Backup Restore Delete Create or change database Backup Spider database
Export start date	
	Apply <u>OK</u> <u>Cancel</u>

Figure 122: Database Management - Operation on Database

Under the "Batch Operations" page, the database can be handled in batch.

Database Manage ? X Platform: SQLServer2008, Server: localhost, Database: kings, User: Windows Account					
Operation On Da	atabase Batch	Operations		(Detabase Operation)	
		Last	D. 1. 51	Backup Selected	
Name	Time	Access Time	Size		
bug_fixing	2013-10-2	2013-11-2	0 Bytes	Backup <u>A</u> ll	
king	2013-03-2		0 Bytes	Import Server	
kings	2013-03-2	2014-11-1	72.08 MB	Delete Selected	
new_datab	2013-02-1	2013-02-1	0 Bytes	Delete All excluding Current	
ppp	2013-02-1	2013-04-1	150.23 MB	Backup Selected Spider Database(s)	
spider_h	2013-07-2	2013-08-0	0 Bytes		
				Apply <u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel	

Figure 123: Database Management - Batch Operations

Backup files can be in one of the following formats:

.sdbk is a MySQL database backup file, including one or multiple databases and all data

.sbk is a MySQL database backup file, including only one database and all data



.ssdbk is a SQL server database backup file, including one or multiple databases and all data

.ssbk is a SQL server database backup file, including only one database and all data

.sbk and .ssbk files are generated from the following dialog box with the backup command.

.sbk files CAN be imported to SQL server databases.

.ssbk files CANNOT be imported to MySQL databases.

.sdbk is a MySQL database backup file, including one or multiple databases and all data

.sbk is a MySQL database backup file, including only one database and all data

.ssdbk is a SQL server database backup file, including one or multiple databases and all data.

.ssbk is a SQL server database backup file, including only one database and all data

.sbk and .ssbk files are generated from the following dialog box with the backup command.

.sbk files CAN be imported to SQL server databases.

.ssbk files CANNOT be imported to MySQL databases.

Accessing an SQL Server Remotely

The server and the client ends must be configured properly in order to access the SQL server remotely on the network. Follow these steps to configure the server:

Go to Computer Management->Service and Applications->SQL Server Configuration Manager->SQL Server Network Configuration.





Figure 124: Computer Management

Double-click any Protocols to view properties. Select TCP/IP and right click to select Properties.



Figure 125: TCP/IP Properties

"Enabled" must set to "Yes" and the TCP Port must set to 1433.



TCP/IP Prop	perties	?	×	тср	/IP Properties			<u>?</u> ×
Protocol	IP Addresses			Pr	otocol IP Addresses			
Gener	al		וור		IP8			
Enabled	đ	Yes			Active		Yes	
Keep A	live	30000	111		Enabled		No	
Listen A	All	Yes			IP Address		127.0.0.1	
					TCP Dynamic Ports		0	
					TCP Port			
					IP9			
					Active		Yes	
					Enabled		No	
					IP Address		fe80::5efe:192.168.0.103%16	
					TCP Dynamic Ports		0	
					TCP Port			
					IPAII			
					TCP Dynamic Ports			
					TCP Port		1433	
								-
Enabled				T	CP Port			
Enable or o	disable TCP/IP protocol for t	his server instance		T	CP port			
	OK Cancel	Apply Help			ОК	Cano	el <u>Apply</u> He	lp 🛛

On the left menu panel, select SQL Server Services, view SQL Server instances and SQL Server Browser. Both of them should be in the running state; if not, right-click the instance to start them.

A Computer Management	and the second				
File Action View Help					
Computer Management (Local) System Tools System Tools Computer Management (Local) System Tools Computer Management Shared Folders Cocal Users and Groups Cocal Users and Groups Source Manager Storage Disk Management Services and Applications Services and Applications Source Services WMI Control Source Network Configuration Source Services Protocols for AUEXPRESS Protocols for APPDATASERVER Source Services Client Protocols Aliases Aliases	Name SQL Server (APPDATASERVER SQL Server (SQLEXPRESS) SQL Server (MSSQLSERVER) SQL Server Reporting Services (SQ SQL Server Agent (APPDATASERVE SQL Server Agent (SQLEXPRESS) SQL Server Browser SQL Server Agent (MSSQLSERVER)	State Stopped Running Stopped Stopped Stopped Running Stopped	Start Mode Other (Boot, Syste Manual Manual Other (Boot, Syste Other (Boot, Syste Other (Boot, Syste Manual Other (Boot, Syste	Log On As LocalSystem NT AUTHORITY\Ne NT AUTHORITY\NE LocalSystem NT AUTHORITY\NE NT AUTHORITY\NE NT AUTHORITY\NE NT AUTHORITY\NE	P 4 0 77 7 0 0 0 0 9 9 0

Figure 126: Computer Management - SQL Server Services

At this point the server configuration is finished. The following steps describe how to configure the client end:

Start the EDM software and go to Database Access Wizard from Tools->Access **Database. Enter the server's IP address and the name of the instance in the format** of IP Address/Instance Name as shown below.



Database Connect	osoft		7
Login Help	QL Server 2008		
Lastaccessed:	kings SQLServer2008		
Server type:	SQL Server		
Server:	localhost	*	
Authentication:	Windows Authentication		*
Action:	💿 Access this database		
	• Switch to another database		
	🕑 Create a new database		
		Next	Cancel

Figure 127: Database Access Wizard

If an error occurs, try to use Server Authentication. Certain Windows security restrictions may prevent the use of Windows Authentication at this step.

		2				
QL Ser	ver:2008					
kings SQLS	erver2008					
SQL Server						
localhost						
SQL Server	Authentication					
sa	Password:	<enter password=""></enter>				
O Access th	iis database					
Switch to another database						
🔘 Create a	new database					
		Net				
	kings SQLS SQL Server localhost SQL Server sa Access th Switch to Create a	kings SQLServer2008 SQL Server localhost SQL Server Authentication sa Password: Access this database Switch to another database Create a new database				

Figure 128: Database Access Wizard

The password for Username "sa" can be reset via Microsoft SQL Server Management Studio on the server PC.



Select a page	C Script - C Halp						
A General	C) and El tak						
Server Roles	Login name:	sa		Search			
🚰 Status	C Windows authentication						
	🤨 <u>3</u> QL Server authentication						
	Password:						
	Confirm password:						
	Specify old password						
	Old password.	1					
	Enforce password polic	y					
	Enforce password expir	ation					
	🗖 User must change pass	word at next login					
	C Mapped to certificate		T				
	C Mapped to asymmetric key		*				
	Map to Credential		-	Add			
Connecig	Mapped Credentials	Credential Provider					
Server: MK							
Connection: mk∖m k							
Wew connection properties							
Progress				Remaye			
Ready	Default <u>d</u> atabase:	master	-				
~	Default language:	English	-				

Figure 129: Reset SQL Server Password



Real-Time FFT Analysis

FFT analysis is conducted in the DSA real-time operation mode. These applications involve Digital Signal Processing calculations such as the Auto-Power Spectrum, Cross Power Spectrum, and Fourier Transform etc. for input channel signals.

Dynamic Signal Analyzer Basics

This section will give an overview of the theory behind the functions performed in the FFT analysis mode of the Spider module. For more detailed information on this topic please **refer to** "Dynamic **Signal Analyzer Basics**" **published by Crystal** Instruments.

The Fourier Transform is one of the most fundamental and popular methods of signal analysis. It transforms an infinite time waveform into its frequency components. These frequencies may then be analyzed or further manipulated to calculate phase or transfer functions. Because the Fourier Transform involves an infinite sum the signal must be broken into finite blocks of N samples. Each block is then transformed using the Discrete Fourier Transform (DFT) However, computing DFT is computationally intensive and so a more efficient algorithm called Fast Fourier Transform (FFT) was developed.

Some applications of the FFT are listed below:

Power Spectrum

The magnitude of the frequency components of signals are collectively called the amplitude spectrum. In many applications, the quantity of interest is the power or the rate of energy transfer that is proportional to the squared magnitude of the frequency components. The average squared magnitudes of all of the DFT frequency lines are collectively referred to as the Power Spectrum, G_{xx} . The averaging process is more properly termed an ensemble average, wherein the squared amplitude from N signal blocks at a each measured frequency, f, are averaged together. Letting an asterisk (*) denote conjugation of a complex number, **the "power" averaging process is defined** by:

$$G_{xx}(f) = |X(f)|^2 = \frac{1}{N} \sum_{k=1}^{N} X_k(f) X_k^*(f)$$

Cross Spectrum

The Cross Spectrum characterizes the relationship between two spectra. For two signals x and y, with frequency components X(f) and Y(f) it is defined as:

$$G_{xy}(f) = \frac{1}{N} \sum_{k=1}^{N} Y_k(f) X_k^*(f)$$



The Cross Spectrum reflect the correlation between the two signals. While the Power Spectrum is real-valued, the Cross Spectrum is complex. This means that it also describes the phase relationship between the two signals.

Frequency Response Function

An important application of Dynamic Signal Analysis is characterizing the inputoutput behavior of physical systems. In linear systems, the output can be predicted from a known input if the Frequency Response Function (FRF) of the system is known. The Frequency Response Function, H(f), relates the Fourier Transform of the input X(f) to the Fourier Transform of the output Y(f) by the simple equation:

$$Y(f) = H_{xy}(f)X(f)$$

Multiplying both sides of this equation by the conjugate of the input spectrum and ensemble averaging explains the importance of the power and cross power spectra as they allow H(f) to be measured and calculated.

$$\frac{1}{N}\sum_{k=1}^{N}Y_{k}(f)X_{k}^{*}(f) = G_{xy}(f) = H_{xy}(f)\frac{1}{N}\sum_{k=1}^{N}X_{k}(f)X_{k}^{*}(f) = H_{xy}(f)G_{xx}(f)$$

That is:

$$H_{xy}(f) = \frac{G_{xy}(f)}{G_{xx}(f)}$$

The fact that Y(f) is dependent on the input X(f) is what makes the system linear. When measuring the input-output behavior of a system, there is always noise present that obscures the output. An important measure is how much of the output is actually caused by the input **and a linear process**. This is indicated by another important real-valued spectrum called the (ordinary) Coherence Function. This coherence function is also defined in terms of the cross spectrum and the power spectra. Specifically:

$$\gamma_{xy}^2(f) = \frac{G_{xy}(f)G_{xy}^*(f)}{G_{xx}(f)G_{yy}(f)}$$

Note that the coherence can also be stated as the product of an FRF with its inverse function. That is, if H_{xy} measures a process going from input, x, to output, y, H_{yx} characterizes the same process, but treats y as the input and x as the output.

$$\gamma_{xy}^2(f) = H_{xy}(f) \frac{G_{xy}^*}{G_{yy}} = H_{xy}(f) H_{yx}(f)$$



This product definition indicates the coherence represents an "energy round trip" or a reflection through the process. We apply G_{xx} to H_{xy} and get G_{xy} at the output. Then we conjugate G_{xy} (to flip it or reflect x(t) in time) and pass it through H_{yx} . In a perfect world, this would result in exactly G_{xx} as the output of H_{yx} .

If the system is linear and none of our measurements are contaminated by noise, the trip is perfect and we get back everything we put in. That is, the coherence will be exactly 1.0. If the system is non-linear or if extraneous noise has been interjected, the round-trip will be less efficient and the coherence will be less than one (but never more).

Thus, the coherence is always between 0 and 1. A coherence of 1.0 means the output is perfectly explained by the input (i.e. the system is linear). A coherence of 0 means the output and input are unrelated. Values in-between state the fraction of measured output power explained by the measured input power and a linear process. Experienced analysts always use the coherence measurement to quantify the quality of an FRF measurement at every frequency.

Shock Response Spectrum

The Shock Response Spectrum (SRS) is an entirely different type of spectral measurement. It is used access the damage potential of a transient event such as a package drop or an earthquake. The SRS was first proposed by Dr. Maurice Biot in 1932. The SRS is <u>not</u> the spectrum of the pulse. (The FFT provides this.) The SRS is <u>not</u> a linear operator as the FFT is. That is, an SRS does not uniquely define a single waveform. Many very different transient time-histories can produce the same SRS.

What the Shock Response Spectrum is, is the representative response of a class of simple structures to the given transient acceleration time-history. This response is provided by simulating a group of spring-mass-damper systems sitting on a common rigid base that is forced to move with the measured acceleration of the subject shock pulse. Each single degree-of-freedom (SDOF) spring-mass-damper has a different natural frequency; they all have the same damping factor. The spectrum is formed by plotting the extreme motion (acceleration) experienced by each mass against its resonance frequency.

The frequency spacing of the resonance frequencies is logarithmic, much like the 1/3 octave filters used in acoustical analysis. That is, it is a type of proportional bandwidth analysis where the half-power bandwidth of each SDOF system increases in proportion to its resonance frequency. The resolution of an SRS is defined by the number of simulated SDOFs included in the desired analysis span. The percent damping of all the SDOFs is selectable (although most tests specify 5% damping).

The extreme motion of each mathematically simulated SDOF mass is monitored by several peak detectors. The extreme positive and negative accelerations are retained *during the duration of the input pulse* and *after it*. Maximum and minimum values captured during the pulse's duration are termed *Primary* extremes. Those found



after the pulse has returned to zero are termed *Residual* extremes. Specific tests will prescribe whether positive, negative or extreme absolute values captured should be displayed. They will further specify Primary, Residual or combined (maxi-max) data be plotted.

Test Parameters

The Test Configuration window, Analysis Parameters tab is used to configure tests.

G Test Configurations for FFT_1	.Test_33 [DSA (FFT)]	<u>?×</u>
Analysis parameters «	Note: analysis parameters are available based on the measurement type chosen	
Test Configurations for FFT_ Analysis parameters « Analysis parameters Run schedule Event action rules Save/Recording setup	Test_33 [DSA (FFT)] Note: analysis parameters are available based on the measurement type chosen FFT analysis settings Frequency range (fa) 12 kHz Block size/Line 1024 / 450 Window Hanning Voerlap ratio No Overlap Average mode Exponential Average number 8 + FFT average on/off Average on Reference channel settings	
		OK <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 130. Analysis Parameters Tab of Test Configuration Window

Overlap Ratio sets the proportion of the samples in a time block that are overlapped (redundant with samples in a prior block) when calculating the FFT of (un-triggered) continuous signals. Higher overlap ratios result in faster variance reduction per unit time producing smoother data but they increase the processing requirements. The Overlap Ratio options are: no overlap, 25%, 50%, 75%, 87.5%, 95% and As High As Possible. For most applications employing a symmetrically tapered window function (such as Hanning), an overlap of 50% proves optimal.

Block Size/ Lines are the number of samples in each time blocks and the number of (un-aliased) spectral lines in each resulting spectrum. Increasing the block size increases the resolution of the frequency transform and allows lower frequencies to be detected but it also increases the calculation time and slows down response. The ratio between Lines and Block Size is determined by the characteristics of A/D converter and its anti-aliasing filter. In general, this ratio is about 0.46, meaning



that 1024 samples in the waveform will produce about $0.46 \times 1024 = 471$ lines in the spectrum.

Sampling Rate(together with block size) determines the resolution and the span of all time and frequency data blocks. Increasing the sample rate increases time resolution (makes dT smaller), and decreases the time span (Block T) captured. Increasing the sample rate also increases the maximum frequency (Fa) in a spectral block and decreases its resolution (increases dF).

Average Number is the number of blocks that are ensemble averaged for the signal spectrum. Increasing the number of averages will reduce the variance of the signal spectrum.

Average Mode options include: Linear, Exponential, and Peak Hold. Linear averaging treats every block equally. The blocks are simply added together (at each frequency) and the result divided by the Average Number. Exponential averaging is a moving or evolving average that favors the most recently measured block. Old data slowly loses its importance (time exponentially), so that the average is dominated by the current instantaneous spectrum.

Window Type lets the user choose the window to be applied during FFT operation. Windowing functions can help reduce leakage and increase the precision of the frequency measurement. In general select None for triggered transients, Hanning for general continuous signals and Flat Top when studying tonal data (such as a rotating machine) and needing extreme accuracy of spectral peaks. Detailed descriptions about window types and average modes can be found in the DSA Basics document.

Reference Channel allows the user to choose a channel as a referencefor the calculation of the Frequency Response Function, Coherence, and Cross Power spectrum. The user can specify the selected channel to be either the excitation (input) channel or the response (response) channel when creating the test. Signals such as CPS, Coherence and FRF are defined based on this selection.

Run Schedule

The Run Schedule allows a test to be run automatically through a preset routine. The run schedules for FFT analysis tests are only effective in Black Box Mode. Schedules can include loops and time periods for running the test at specified levels and durations. The run schedule can also activate any user-defined events defined in the Event Action Rules. Click on event names in the list on the left to insert them into the schedule and use the buttons on top to edit or remove them or change their order. The schedule is activated when the test is started in Black Box mode.



			(constant)	
Run schedule «	Select an item to insert:		Schedule	
alysis parameters n schedule ent action rules ve/Recording setup	Test schedule entries Start a loop Run Duration Turn Signal Source On Turn Signal Source Off User defined events Flash Screen and Beep	*	Editentry Remove entry Disable entry Move up Move downSchedule begin Run Duration 7200000 Loop number: 2 Turn Signal Source On Run Duration 000500 Turn Signal Source Off Save signals to PC (Save results to PC) End loop	

Figure 131. Run Schedule Tab

Measured Signals in FFT

The "Live Signals" tab on the lower left of the screen in EDM shows all the measured signals available for display. Listed here, for all test modes, are the time **streams of the input channels labeled by their location ID ("PT1", "PT2", "PT3"... by** default), and the output drive time stream. The location ID of the channels can be changed under the Channel Table tab. Time stream signals are labels as **Ch1[t]**. The numerical value depends on the channel index.





Figure 132. Live Signal

There are also signals derived from these time streams: block signals, labeled Block, FFT of time signals, labeled as **FFT**, auto power spectra signals, labeled APS, and the frequency response functions, labeled FRF. The labels are followed by the location ID of the original time stream signal in parenthesis (or, in the case of FRF, the location ID of the excitation channel followed by the ID of the response channel). These signals will only show in the live signal list if the measure option is enabled in the Signal Setup tab.





Figure 133 Frequency response functions measured in a high channel count system

Time block signals are labels as **Block(Ch1)[t]**. The numerical value depends on the channel index. For the convenience of signal calculation and transformation, the time stream is chopped into the individual blocks by block size. Each block contains the defined number of data points sampled from the time stream signals.

APS (Auto-Power Spectrum) signals are labeled as **APS(Ch1)[f]**. The numerical value depends on the channel index.

Output Setup

The FFT test has an additional tab for output channel setup. Here you can configure one or more output channels as shaker drive or other DUT stimulation signals. Since closed loop control is not available, the user should be careful to stay within the safety limits of the shaker/amplifier and test object when configuring the output levels. All enabled channels will send out drive signals while the test is running. The following window can be found from **Setup->Output Channels**.



	Output Channels for FFT_Test_33 [DSA(FFT)]								
Tu	ırn all o	n Turn all off Turn selecte	d on Turn selecte	ed off 🔲 Sy	nchronize output				
		Module	Output CH	On/Off	Output ty	pe	Setup	Info	
►	1	SN: 2580256	Output CH1	-	Off Sine	•		Freq: 1000.00Hz, Amp: 1	1.000V
	2	SN: 2580256	Output CH2	-	Off Sine	-		Freq: 1000.00Hz, Amp: 1	1.000V
						-			
									•
									ancel

Figure 134. Output Channels for FFT

The Output Channels for FFT Analysis dialog lists all available output channels in the system. Each available output is identified by Module and Output Chanel (connector) number.

On/Off provides a check box to enable (turn On) or disable (turn Off) each available output.

Output Type provides the choice or Random, Sine and Swept Sine signals.

Info provides a summary of each channels setup.

Select a signal source in the first column and press the **Set Up** button to bring up a dialog to set the specific amplitude, frequency span, phasing and sweep type/rate settings desired for each signal.

Control Panel

The expanded Control Panel in FFT analysis mode has a number of commands to control the operation of the test. Right-clicking in the Parameters tab can expand the Control Panel.



Control Pane			4
Conne	đ	Off	ine
Run	131	olif	Stop
meic.	5	ave -	Config
Total elaps	ed:	Outp	ut pk:
00:00	0:00		0
Frame#:			0
Frequency	yrange:	12 kHz	
Blocksize	/Line:	1024/	450 💌
Window:		Hannin	ig 🚽
Overlap ra	atio:	No Ove	erlap 💌
Average n	node:	Expone	ential 📃 💌
Average n	umber:		8 🌲
Resei	avg	Vie	ewwindow
Setup to	ngger	Fre	viewingger
Trigger sw	ritch:	1	OFF
Output sw	itch:	1	OFF
Limit chec	k switch	-	OFF
Input 0	utput	Cursor	

Figure 135. Expanded Control Panel

Test state information is displayed in the following fields:

Total Elapsed is the time elapsed since the test was started.

Output Pk is the peak voltage of the output drive signal.

Frame# is the number of frames (frequency blocks) elapsed since the test was started.

The control panel has input and output settings under two separate tabs.

Under the **Input** tab, all the test analysis parameters are provided to allow users to make changes during live running mode. Changes made to these parameters during the test will take effect immediately.

Some extra buttons are provided for additional tasks:



Reset Average clears the average and resets the current average number back to zero. This nullifies the effects of an unwanted event.

Turn Output On/Off enables / disables the output channel of the Spider device. The output settings can be configured under output tab of the control panel.

View Window opens up the window configured for the test.

Setup Trigger gives the option of setting up a trigger-based action with the help of event action rules. Only the input channels on the master module can be set as the trigger source.

Trigger Switch turns the trigger On/Off.

Output Switch turns the output On/Off.

Limit Check Switch enables/disables the limit check.



Figure 136. Advance Trigger Setup





Figure 137. Simple Trigger Setup

Using the controls shown in above screenshot, you can setup a trigger threshold for the selected input signal. Any signal meeting the threshold condition will activate the trigger and cause a signal block to be captured. The Delay Time or Delay Points settings allow the data to be captured starting before or after the trigger point. The trigger action that occurs can be selected using appropriate Mode settings box. Event action rules can be specified for events **named "Just triggered".**

Trigger Switch is used to enable/disable the trigger. The system will wait for the trigger to capture signal data.

The user can **preview the Trigger window** to view the instant the system is triggered.



Acoustic Analysis

The Acoustics Data Acquisition option includes Fractional Octave Filter Analysis, Sound Level Meters and Microphone Calibration functions.

The Fractional Octave Filter Analysis function applies a bank of real-time 1/nthoctave filters to the input time streams and generates two types of responses at the same time: 1/Nth octave spectra, and the RMS time history of each 1/Nth octave filter band. The output of each real-time filter bank is in fact a 3D waterfall signal that is arranged with the x-axis as logarithmic frequency and the z-axis as time. Frequency weighting is applied in the frequency axis and time-weighting is applied in the time axis.

The Sound Level Meter (SLM) (also referred to as Overall Level Meter) also uses octave filters during acoustic data acquisition. The SLM applies ONE frequency weighting filter to the input signal and time weighting to the output. Various measures are then extracted from both the input and output signals of this frequency weighting filter.

Octave Filters

Acoustics Analysis provides 1/Nth octave analysis using true real-time digital filters in accordance with ANSI std. S1.11:2004, Order 3 Type 1-D and IEC 61260-1995 specifications. A, B and C weighting filters can be applied to the input data. Output results are weighted or un-weighted RMS values. The output can be normalized with a calibration value. The results can be plotted on log or linear axes and exact or preferred frequency values are supported.

Each band filter is designed in accordance with ANSI S1.11 and IEC 61260 specifications. The original analog signal is transferred to the digital domain by means of the bilinear transform. The filter order can be specified and the frequency ratio can be calculated using the binary or decimal system.

The RMS reading of each octave filter is usually represented by a "bar" in the spectrum plot. Keep in mind that the octave filters are actually somewhat wider than the bars depict. Just like the analog filters they emulate, digital filters have tapered pass-bands or "skirts"; they are imperfect frequency selectors.. The filter bands are not as sharp as the bars depict them, hence adjacent filters always overlap one another. For this reason, a sine tone at 1 kHz will not only excite the filter with center frequency at 1 kHz, but also all of the other filters as well, albeit to much lower levels.





Figure 138. Sample of Octave Test

Full Octave Filters

An octave is a doubling of frequency. For example, frequencies of 250 Hz and 500 Hz are one octave apart, as are frequencies of 1 kHz and 2 kHz.



Figure 139. Full octave filter shape.

Full octave analysis, i.e., 1/1 octave, displays the frequency characteristics of a signal by passing the signal through a bank of band-pass filters with passbands and octave wide and the center frequency of each filter an octave apart from its neighbors. If the lower and upper cutoff frequencies of a band-pass filter are f_L and f_H , then the center frequency, f_c can be determined with:

$$f_c = \sqrt{(f_L * f_H)}$$

The nominal frequency ratio G is determined by:



$$G = f_H/f_L$$

Two descriptive systems are commonly used to describe proportional bandwidth filters: Base-two (fractional octave) or Base-ten (fractional decade). A full octave filter has a G of 2, numerically equal to 10^{3/10}. Hence this same filter is termed a 3/10 decade filter. Crystal Instruments CoCo analyzers describe proportional filters by their decade resolution.

Proportional bandwidth analysis divides frequency information uniformly over a log scale which is very useful for analyzing a variety of natural systems such as the human response to noise and vibration. Many mechanical systems also display behavior that is best characterized by proportional bandwidth analysis.

Fractional Octave Filters

To gain finer frequency resolution, the frequency range can be divided into proportional bandwidths that are a fraction of an octave. For example, with 1/3 octave analysis, there are 3 band-pass filters per octave where each center frequency is 2 ^{1/3} (10^{1/10}) the previous center frequency.

In general, for $1/N^{\mbox{th}}$ octave analysis, there are N band pass filters per octave such that:

$$\frac{f_H}{f_L} = (2)^{1/N}$$

$$f_{cj+1} = f_{cj} * (2)^{1/N}$$

where 1/N is called the fractional bandwidth resolution.

		1/1-Octave	1/3-Octave	1/6-Octave	1/12-Octave
Standard		IEC 225-1966 DIN 45651 ANSI S1.11- 2004 Order 7 Type 1-D	IEC 225-1966 DIN 45651 ANSI S1.11- 2004 Order 3 Type 1-D	N/A	N/A
	band number	-3 ~ 14	-10 ~ 43	-20 ~ 86	-40 ~ 172
	Total number of Filters	18	54	107	213
	f_c (Hz)	0.125 – 16k	0.1 – 20k	0.1 – 20k	0.1 – 20k

Table 2. Octave Center Frequencies.



Nominal center frequencies (mid-band frequencies)

Nominal center frequencies are "round" numbers that were historically established for analog octave filters. The nominal mid-band frequencies for 1/1-octave and 1/3-octave are listed in the ANSI S1.11-2004 Annex A. This standard also describes how to determine the nominal mid-band frequencies for other fractional octave bands.

The exact center frequency of the filter band is usually not equal to the nominal frequency. For example, in a 1/3 octave, the exact center frequencies 794.33 Hz, 1000 Hz and 1258.9 Hz are used to correspond to the filters with nominal frequencies 800 Hz, 1000 Hz and 1250 Hz.

Band Edge Frequencies of Fractional Filters

The low and high frequency band edges of a filter can be calculated based on the frequency ratio, G and the fractional octave resolution N (=1, 3, 6, 12...)

LowerEdgeFrequency $f_L = f_c * (2)^{-1/2N}$

$UpperEdgeFrequencyf_{H} = f_{c} * (2)^{1/2N}$

The bandwidth of the filter is: $BW = f_H - f_L$

When starting or resetting the filtering operation of the fractional-octave filters, a certain time is required before the measurements are valid. This time is called the settling time and is related to the bandwidth of any particular filter. The lowest frequency band has the smallest bandwidth and thus defines the settling time required before you can consider the complete fractional-octave measurement valid. A good rule of thumb is that the prudent settling time estimate is five resolution reciprocal time periods, that is:

$$Settlingtime = \frac{5}{BW} = \frac{5}{f_H - f_L}$$

Note the settling time depends on the bandwidth which changes with center frequency. A narrower filter and a lower frequency band requires a longer settling time.

Analysis Frequency Range

You can decide the analysis range by changing the lowest and/or highest f_c as the Analysis Parameters:


Analysis Range	1/1 Octave	1/3 Octave	1/6 Octave	1/12 Octave
Lowest f _c (Hz)	0.125 1 8	0.1 1 10 100	0.1 1 10 100	0.1 1 10 100
Highest f _c (Hz)	1000 4000 16000	1000 2000 5000 10000 20000	1000 2000 5000 10000 20000	1000 2000 5000 10000 20000

Frequency Weighting

Human hearing is more sensitive to some frequencies than to others, and its frequency response varies with level. In general, low frequency and high frequency sounds appear to be less loud than mid-frequency sounds, and the effect is more pronounced at low pressure levels, with a flattening of response at high levels. Octave analysis and sound level meters therefore incorporate weighting filters, which reduce the contribution of low and high frequencies to produce a measurement that more nearly approximates how we hear.



Figure 140. Frequency weighting filter shapes.

The Spider provides A, C, and Z weightings conforming to IEC 61672-1 2002 and B weighting conforming to IEC 60651 in both of Octave analysis and Sound Level



Meter. The Frequency weighting in the octave filters affects the results of all filter bands.

Time or RPM based RMS Trace of the Octave Filters

The ANSI and IEC standard do not require storing the time history of the band pass filter output. However the user may be interested in viewing this information. Using a Spider, the RMS histories of all the band pass filters are stored in the RMS quantity. Below is the description of how the RMS history is calculated.

The RMS history can be stored against one of two variables: Time or RPM.

Both the input and output of a digital filter are a series of data points. While it requires excessive memory to keep all of the time data from all of the filters, it is **useful to keep the running RMS history of each filter's output. The RMS time** histories are computed after the time weighting averaging operation as shown below.



Figure 141. RMS time history calculation.

The Decimator allows the user to choose the length of time for the RMS data. For example, given a buffer length of 1024, a Trace Update Time of 5 ms will keep about 5 seconds of RMS history; if this update time is set to 5 seconds, it will record 5000 seconds (1.4 hours) of RMS history.

If a cut is made across the Z axis, the resulting XY plane will be an octave spectrum. If a cut is made across the X-axis (frequency), the result will be called a Time Trace.

The Time Trace stores the history of the RMS of each filter output. The spacing between two points in the Time Trace is called Trace Update Time, in seconds. On the Spider, one Time Trace is allocated for each channel for display. Keep in mind that this buffer of Time Trace is the output of a specific filter, the user can change the center frequency of the filter for the Time Trace during run time. In other words, this time trace display buffer will change its content completely if the user switches the Time Trace Frequency.



Alternatively the RMS trace can be stored using RPM as a variable. This method is particularly useful in the automotive NVH applications. The picture below shows how one of the filter outputs can be stored in RPM trace.



Figure 142. Store RPM based RMS traces.

Exponential and Linear Averaging

Linear averaging: Linear averaging uses a fixed time period to sum up the historical power value of each filter and then takes the square-root to calculate the averaged RMS value. The RMS trace update time is governed by the time period of the averaging. For each time period of averaging, one RMS value per frequency bin is produced.

Exponential averaging: Exponential averaging applies an exponential time constant to the historical power values of each filter and takes the square-root of the **averaged power value.** A time constant of 0.125 seconds is equivalent to "Fast" **averaging and 1.0 second is equivalent to** "Slow" averaging of a sound level meter. In exponential averaging, the RMS trace update time is independent of the time constant.

Peak Hold averaging: Peak Hold retains the maximum value in each frequency **bin over the period of time since last "start" or "restart". It is a one**-time extreme observation over the interval rather than an averaged property.

As discussed previously, each filter may have a different settling time of approximately 5/BW seconds.





Figure 143 Octave Spectra and FFT APS Processed at same time

Sound Level Meter

A sound level meter measures sound pressure level. A standard sound level meter is more correctly called an exponentially averaging sound level meter because the AC signal from the microphone is converted to an RMS level, requiring a duration of integration termed the "time constant". Three of these time-constants have been standardized, 'S' (1s) originally called Slow, 'F' (125 ms) originally called Fast and 'I' (35 ms) originally called Impulse.

The output of the RMS detector circuit is a linear voltage proportional to pressure. This is passed through a logarithmic converter to give a readout in decibels (dB). The pressure dB is 20 times the base 10 logarithm of the ratio of a given root-meansquare sound pressure to the reference sound pressure. (The standard reference sound pressure in air or other gases is 20 µPa, which is usually considered to be the threshold of human hearing at 1 kHz).Root-mean-square (RMS) sound pressure is calculated using standard time and frequency weightings.

With the advent of digital technology and the increasing accuracy of electronic circuits, sound level meter functions are now frequently calculated in the digital domain. High dynamic range is one of the most important measures of the quality of an acoustic analyzer as it assures that both weak and strong signals can be calculated and observed. The Spider provides 130dB dynamic range, which is exceptional for this application.

Traditional sound level meters only include 1/1 and 1/3 octave filters. The CoCo systems ability to do octave analysis and other advanced analysis functions provides more flexibility and computation power than a traditional sound level meter.

Use Octave Analysis as the template to create a CSA project when fractional octave analysis is required. In both the Octave Analysis and Sound Level Meter templates the user can see the frequency weighted readings (such as dBA) but the reading



results may be slightly different when comparing Octave Analysis and Sound Level Meter results because the data is processed and the values are computed differently. In octave analysis, the A-weighted sound level (dBA) is computed by applying the frequency weighting function to the output of each individual filter bank; while in SLM, the A-weighted sound level is calculated by applying the A-weighting filter to the entire time domain. The SLM template should be used to obtain the dBA or similar overall readings for sound studies that would be comparable to those measured with a traditional sound level meter.

Terms and Definitions

In this section we will define the terminology used in the SLM software options.

Reference sound pressure is conventionally chosen as 20 μ Pa. This is the threshold of hearing (at 1 kHz) for the average person and is used to compute the sound pressure level in the dB scale.

Sound pressure level (in dB) is defined as twenty times the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of the RMS of a given sound pressure to the reference sound pressure. Sound pressure level is expressed in decibels (dB); symbol L_p .

Peak sound pressure is the greatest absolute instantaneous sound pressure during a stated time interval.

Peak sound level (in dB) is defined as twenty times the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of a peak sound pressure to the reference sound pressure the peak sound pressure being obtained with a standard frequency weighting. (Example letter symbols are L_{peak}, L_{cpeak})

Frequency weighting is the difference between the level (dB) of the signal indicated on the display device and the corresponding level of a constant-amplitude steady-state sinusoidal input signal, specified in the IEC or ISO standards as a function of frequency. It accounts for the A, B and Z frequency weightings discussed in the previous section.

Time weighting is an exponential function of time, of a specified time constant, that weights the square of the instantaneous sound pressure. This is the same as exponential averaging in the time domain of the instantaneous sound pressure.

It is a continuous averaging process that applies to the output of a frequency weighting filter or one of the fractional octave filters. The amount of weight given to past data as compared to current data depends on the exponential time constant. In exponential averaging, the averaging process continues indefinitely.

In a sound level meter the time weighting exponential averaging mode supports the following time constants:



- Slow uses a time constant of 1,000 ms. Slow averaging is useful for tracking the sound pressure levels of signals with sound pressure levels that vary slowly.
- Fast uses a time constant of 125 ms. Fast averaging is useful for tracking the sound pressure of signals with sound pressure levels that vary quickly.
- **Impulse** uses a time constant of 35 ms if the signal is rising and 1,500 ms if the signal is falling. Impulse averaging is useful for tracking and recording sudden increases in the sound pressure level.
- **User Defined** allows you to specify a time constant suitable for your particular application.

Time-weighted sound level (in dB) is twenty times the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of a given RMS sound pressure to the reference sound pressure, RMS sound pressure is obtained with standard time and frequency weighting. (Example letter symbols are L_{AF} , L_{AS} , L_{CF} , L_{CS})

Maximum and minimum time-weighted sound level (in dB) is the greatest and lowest time-weighted sound level within a stated time interval. (Example letter symbols are L_{AFmax}, L_{ASmax}, L_{CFmax}, L_{Smax}, L_{AFmin}, L_{ASmin}, L_{CFmin}, L_{Smax}, L_{AFmin}, L_{ASmin}, L_{CFmin}, L_{Smax}, L_{AFmin}, L_{ASmin}, L_{CFmin}, L_{Smax}, L_{AFmin}, L_{ASmin}, L_{ASmin},

Time-average sound level (equivalent continuous sound level) (in dB) is twenty times the logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of a RMS sound pressure during a stated time interval to the reference sound pressure, sound pressure being obtained with a standard frequency weighting. (Example letter symbols are L____, L___)

Sound exposure is the time integral of the square of sound pressure over a stated time interval or event. Sound exposure is used to measure high-level, short duration noises and to study their effects on humans.

Sound exposure level (in dB) is the total sound energy of a single sound event that takes into accounts both its intensity and duration. Sound exposure level is the sound level you would experience if all of the sound energy of a sound event occurred in one second. Normalization to duration of one second allows for the direct comparison of sounds of different durations.



Figure 144. Sound exposure level illustration.



Figure 144shows the relationship between the Sound Exposure Level (SEL), the Sound Pressure Level (SPL), and the Leq. The Leq is the constant level needed to produce the same amount of energy as the actual varying sound (the SPL).

The SEL is the Leq normalized to 1 second. It is what the Leq would be if the event occurred over a one second duration.

Statistical Level (L_N) is defined as the sound pressure level which is exceeded N% of the time over the duration of a measuring time interval. LO is the maximum level over the duration of the measurement. L100 is the minimum.

Data Processing Diagram

Figure 145 shows the data processing diagram for ONE input channel for all the SLM measurements when A-weighting is applied.



Figure 145. Sound level meter computation diagram.

In the SLM measurement, after the digitized data comes in, it is split into three paths: one goes to frequency weighting A, B, C or Z and one goes to C weighting or no weighting. The peak detection is computed from the output of C weighting or no weighting. The output of frequency weighting (A, B, C or Z) is further split into two paths. The first will go to a time weighting function which is more or less equivalent



to an exponential averaging mode to calculate LAF; the second path goes to a time averaging function, which is equivalent to a linear averaging *mode* to calculate Leq.

With A-weighting applied as shown in the example, the list of symbols used by the instrument is:

Symbol of	
Measured	
Values	Description
LAF	A-weighted, F time-weighted sound level
LAFmax	Maximum A-weighted, F time-weighted sound level
LAFmin	Minimum A-weighted, F time-weighted sound level
LCpeak	Peak C sound level, greatest absolute instantaneous C-weighted sound pressure level
Lpeak	Peak sound level, greatest absolute instantaneous sound pressure level
LAeq	A-weighted, time-average sound level (equivalent continuous sound level)
LAeqmax	Maximum A-weighted, time-average sound level (equivalent continuous sound level)
LAeqmin	Minimum A-weighted, time-average sound level (equivalent continuous sound level)
LAE	A-weighted sound exposure level
LN (N = any integer between 0~100)	Statistical Level general term
L1, L5, L50, L95	Statistical Levels with specific N values. The sound level exceeds this level 1, 5, 50 or 95 percent of the time for the duration of the measurement.

SLM Measures

There are two ways to view sound level measurements: instantaneous SLM measurement and RMS history. Instantaneous SLM measurements represent the most current value of the subject variable.

RMS history not only shows the most current value, but also a record of historical values against time or RPM. Some of the measures allow only instantaneous values others allow both.

The following SLM measurement are available for real-time reading and can be saved as a data structure for future review.

Time Weighted Sound Levels

Time weighted sound level is the output of frequency-weighting and then time weighting filters. Time weighting serves an exponential averaging operator. The computation is illustrated in Figure 146.





Figure 146. Time weighting sound level computation and storage against RPM or Time

The table below shows the symbols for the time-weighted sound level.

Symbol used for time		Freq	uency	Weigh	nting
weighted va	weighted value		Α	B	С
	F(Fast)	L _{ZF}	Laf	L _{BF}	L _{CF}
Time Weighting	S(Slow)	L _{zs}	L _{AS}	L _{BS}	L _{cs}
	l(Impulse)	L _{ZI}	L _{AI}	L _{BI}	L _{CI}
	Custom	L _{ZC}	L _{AC}	L _{BC}	L _{cc}



Figure 147 Typical Measurement Values of SLM

Time Averaged Sound Levels

The Time averaged sound level is the output of frequency-weighting and then time average operation. Time averaging uses a linear averaging operator. Figure 148illustrates the computation.





Figure 148. Time averaged sound level computation.

The table below shows the symbols for the time-average sound level. In the time averaging sound level measurement, frequency weighting can be selected as A, B, C or Z. The time interval for time averaging can be set to any value between 1 second and 24 hours.

Frequency Weighting	Z	А	В	С
Symbol	L	L _{Aeq}	L Beq	L _{Ceq}

Peak sound level

Only C-weighted and un-weighted signals are available for peak sound level as is required by the standards.



Sound exposure level

Sound exposure level and time-average sound level have the same frequency weighting and same time interval.

Frequency Weighting	Z	А	В	С
Symbol	L	L AE	L	L _{ce}

Statistical level: value reading

Any statistical level L_{N} is the sound level which is exceeded for N% of the defined measurement duration.

Symbols for L _N ,	11	15	1.50	1.05
N = 1, 5, 50, 95		LJ	LJU	L7J

Input Channel Time Streams

In the Spider, time domain data is always available in the form of a long time history. The user can view and record the time signals but the sampling rate of the



time signals cannot be arbitrarily changed. It is always set internally by the system based on the analysis frequency range.

RMS trace of weighted level, time averaged level or sound exposure

The Spider records an RMS trace of the sound level. The user must choose between the time weighted level, L_{AF} , the equivalent time averaged level, L_{AEQ} , or sound exposure level, L_{AE} . Only one can be recorded at a time.

Histogram of Time Weighting

The Spider also records a signal containing a histogram of the dB values of the time weighted signal. This signal is used to compute the L_n data.



Creating Acoustic Tests

EDM runs in the context of a loaded test project. A test project consists of an input and output configuration, analysis parameters, and acquired data. A new test is created by selecting New Test in the Test menu. This opens the New Test Wizard.





Figure 149: Create a New Acoustic Test

Click the Acoustic Analysis tab on the left to start creating an acoustic analysis test.

Fill in the basic information for this test Note: In the future you can search this test through the database by the keywords in the fields of Test Name or Test Description. Treate a new Acoustic Analysis test: Acoustic_Test_2 Test description: I Use the default libraries of the previous test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied before the manufacturing settings will be used. Create test by using a template. Select Template name Description pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 et directory: ClUsers/m klDocuments/EDM/kings/Acoustic_Test_2 Create new run folder for each run	ew Test Wizar	rd		?
Create a new Acoustic Chalysis test: Acoustic_Test_2 Test name: Acoustic_Test_ Ider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 Cluster here the run bidler for each run	Fill in the basi Note: In the fu	ic information for t uture you can search	t <mark>his test</mark> this test through the database by the keywords in the fields of	Test Name or Test Description.
rest name: Acoustic_Test_ est description: Use the default libraries of the previous test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied before the manufacturing settings will be used. Create test by using a template. Select Template name Description pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Z Create new run folder for each run	Create a new Aco	oustic Analysis test: /	Acoustic Test 2	
Test description: Use the default libraries of the previous test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied before the manufacturing settings will be used. Create test by using a template. Select Template name Description pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run It is the state of the st	Test name:	Acoustic_Test_	Append the sequence number	2
• Use the default libraries of the previous test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied before the manufacturing settings will be used. © Create test by using a template. Select Template name Description pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C\Users\mk\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ 2 Create new run folder for each run	Test description			
Select Template name Description Select Template name Description pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 set directory: C\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ CCusers\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_	 Use the def Create test 	ault libraries of the p by using a template.	revious test of the same type. If default libraries were not applied be	Fore the manufacturing settings will be used.
pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 ♥ est directory: C\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ 2) Create new run folder for each run	Select Te	mplate name	Description	
pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
pider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
bider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 set directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
bider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 st directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
bider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 est directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
bider system: Sample_Spider_System_1 set directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose_ Create new run folder for each run				
est directory: C:\Users\m k\Documents\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2 Choose	pider system:	Sample_Spider_S	/stem_1	
Create new run folder for each run	est directory:	C:\Users\m k\Docu	uments\EDM\kings\Acoustic_Test_2	Choose
	Create new r	un folder for each rur	1	

Figure 150: The Wizard for a New Random Test



The next page allows you to name the test and write a description. For the acoustic analysis test, there is a third page in the wizard where different analysis computations can be enabled or disabled, such as Auto Power Spectra (APS), Tachometer (TACHO), Octave Analysis (OCT), and Sound Level Meter (SLM).

New Test Wizard		? >
Please check the signal types to be computed in real time.		
Time streams and time block signals are always available		
APS: Auto Power Spectra using FFT		
TACHO: Tachometer		
🗹 OCT: Octave Analysis using real time digital filters		
SLM: Sound Level Metermeasurement using real time digital filters		
Select all		
Note: Go to Measured Signals setting to select the signals to be viewed or saved.		
	1	
	< Back Finish	Cancel

Figure 151. Signal Types in Acoustic Analysis



Figure 152: An Acoustic Test



This screen is divided into 5 parts. On the top is the menu and toolbar section. On the left side, there are two sections: the Recent Test List and the Signal List. On the right is the Test Control and status window. In the middle are the Signal Display and Signal Setup tabs.

Recent Test List



Figure 153: Recent Tests List

On the upper left part of the screen, the Recent Tests list shows current and previous tests. Each test is listed by its name and type (VCS or DSA). Each test entry is expandable to display items underneath related to the test.

System lists the hardware modules associated with this test. The system is set up with the Spider Config window, described under System Configuration. The name of the system is displayed in parentheses.

Signal List

The Signal List shows live signals and saved data available for display.



Live Signals Run Folders Data Files
⊿ 🔤 Octave
[八, OCT(Ch1)
🛴 ОСТ(Ch2)
🛴 ОСТ(Ch3)
[八, OCT(Ch4)
[八, OCT(Ch5)
🛴 ОСТ(Ch6)
🛴 ОСТ(Ch7)
م OCT(Ch8)
[^ TimeTrace(Ch1)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch2)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch3)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch4)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch5)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch6)[t]
[^ TimeTrace(Ch7)[t]
timeTrace(Ch8)[t]
▷ 🔤 Auto-Power Spectra
▷ 📷 Time Blocks
▷ 🎬 Time stream

Figure 154: Signal List

Live Signals include all input channels that are a part of the current system and the output channels. Depending on the test type, there may be other signals such as the control profile, associated alarm, and abort lines. The list is divided in categories for time streams, block signals, and frequency data from these sources. It can also be viewed according to the hardware modules by right-clicking on the list and selecting Sort Signals by Spider Modules.

Run Folders tab displays the recent *Runs*:

Live Signals Run Folders Data	Files	
Kun3 Nov 12, 2014 17-36-2	7	
4 🏹 <u>Run2</u> Nov 12, 2014 17-36-0	7	
4 MM SIG0004 Nov 12, 2014 1	7-36-20	
🗅 🎫 Time Signals		
🖻 🌇 Frequency Signals		
D AMM SIG0003 Nov 12, 2014 1	7-36-18	
> ^^^ SIG0002 Nov 12, 2014 1	7-36-14	
p ⁱ MM SIG0001 Nov 12, 2014 1	7-36-12	
▷ 🕤 <u>Run1</u> Nov 12, 2014 17-32-3	2	
Default Folder Nov 12, 2014	4 17-32-09	
ocuments ▶ EDM ▶ jz_12_2012 ▶ Random1	~ Ç	Search Rando
Name	Date modified	Туре
🥶 Random1.stk	12/11/2012 5:59 PM	Vibration Con
👢 Run4 Dec 11, 2012 15-53-01	12/11/2012 3:53 PM	File folder
👢 Run3 Dec 11, 2012 15-52-45	12/11/2012 3:52 PM	File folder
🗼 Run2 Dec 11, 2012 15-49-55	12/11/2012 3:51 PM	File folder
👢 Run1 Dec 11, 2012 15-49-29	12/11/2012 3:49 PM	File folder
👃 Default Folder Dec 06, 2012 14-22-21	12/6/2012 2:22 PM	File folder



After the user presses the Run button and the test finishes, a "run" is generated. By default, a Run folder is created on the disk. As shown in the picture above, for a given test, *Random1*, a test file, *Random1.stk*, is created, and each Run in the Run Folder tab, corresponds to a physical folder on the disk.

Data Files are time streams and block data saved or recorded to disk. All of the data files under a specific Run will be saved into that Run folder. When block signals are saved by clicking the **Save Sigs** button, a data file will be created and displayed here.



Figure 155: Data Files Tab

Control Panel

The Control Panel is used to control the test and display status information in realtime. The connection status of the hardware is shown on top, with a button to Connect/Disconnect (if no hardware is detected, this button will not be displayed). The control buttons — Run, Pause, Stop,Save Sigs — duplicate the items in the Control menu and on the Control toolbar. Config opens the Test Configuration window. **Rec./Stop** starts/stops the recording after test runs.

Below the control buttons, information on the state of the test is displayed. Depending on the test mode, this includes the output level (as a percent) and peak voltage, the control input peak and RMS level, the target peak and RMS level, and the elapsed and remaining time.



Right-clicking in the control panel brings up options to display an expanded set of command buttons and test information. These commands are used to adjust the operation of the test such as changing the output level. These commands, along with all of the display fields, will be described in the following chapters on the specific test modes.

Run	Unitil	amh
Her.	Save	Config

Control Panel	ņ	
Disconnet	Online	
Run	old Steep	
Treic. Si	ave Config	
Fotal elapsed:	Output pk:	4
00:01:14	0.00	
Frame#:	1782	
Block size/Line:	1024 / 450	
Window:	Hanning 🚽	
Overlap ratio:	No Overlap 🔽	
Average mode:	Exponential	
Average number:	8 🐳	
Penelavg	View window	
Setup trigger	Previewtrigger	Input Output Cursor
Trigger switch:	OFF	rest ready, press [Run] to star
Output switch:	OFF	
Limit check switch	e ore	

Figure 156: Standard Spider Control Panel

Figure 157: Expanded Spider Control Panel

There are tabs on the bottom of the control panel for viewing different pages of information. The Cursor tab shows the abscissa and ordinate values for all displayed cursors and markers (peak and harmonic).

There are Input, Output, and Cursor tabs. The Input tab sets the analysis parameters (block size, window type, overlap, and average) and trigger settings for the input channels. The Output tab controls the output function generator.

On the very bottom of the control panel the system connection status is shown, along with any messages related to test events.



Measure a	II signals 👿 Sav	e/Record all signals	Save and recording of	ptions		
-	Signal name	Measure	Save/Record list	Signal color	Storage	
001	Ch1	v	V		Record to Spider	
002	Ch2	V			Record to Spider	
003	Ch3				Record to Spider	
004	Ch4				Record to Spider	
005	Ch5				Record to Spider	
006	Ch6				Record to Spider	
007	Ch7	~	v		Record to Spider	
008	Ch8	~	•		Record to Spider	
009	Block(Ch1)	~	~		Save to PC	
010	Block(Ch2)	~	v		Save to PC	
011	Block(Ch3)	~	~		Save to PC	
012	Block(Ch4)	~	~		Save to PC	
013	Block(Ch5)	~	V		Save to PC	
014	Block(Ch6)	V	V		Save to PC	
015	Block(Ch7)		V		Save to PC	
016	Block(Ch8)	V	V		Save to PC	
017	APS(Ch1)	V			Save to PC	
018	APS(Ch2)				Save to PC	
019	APS(Ch3)				Save to PC	
020	ADS(Ch4)	L L	L L		Save to PC	

Measured Signal Setup

Figure 158: Signal Setup Window

The Signal Setup page is under **Setup->Measured Signals**. This tab lists all signals with a Measure option. In addition, time stream signals have a Record List option and block signals have a Save List option. Measure enables the channel for display, Record List enables the channel for recording, and Save List enables the channel for block saving. Only time-stream signals can be recorded and only block signals can be saved.

The signals are divided by type in the tabs on top. The Time Stream tab lists the native time stream signals. The other tabs list signals that are derived or computed from these native signals. These derived signals are organized in blocks rather than continuous streams. Deselecting Measure for these derived signals disables their computation and saves processor resources. When recording is activated, by the menu command or the Rec. button on the control panel, all signals with the Record List option enabled will be recorded to file. When the Save Sigs Button is pressed, all signals with the Save List option enabled will be saved to disk.

The trace color used to display the signals can also be specified here.

Test Configuration

The Test Configuration window is used to set test-specific software options and parameters. It is divided into a number of sections accessed by the list on the left. Many of these sections are specific to a particular test mode, and are described in



the subsequent chapters regarding these modes. Other sections are for common functions shared by all test modes, and are described in their own sections of this manual. This window will be referenced many times throughout this text.

To access these settings, go to **Setup**, select the **Test Configuration** item under the **Setup** menu, or click the **Config** button on the control panel.



Figure 159: Access to Test Configuration

Running a Test

If microphones are used, a good check is to clap your hands near each microphone and observe that a signal has been heard. The Input Channel Status also provides an overview of the current input levels. It can be activated from **View->Channel Status**.

Chan	nel Stat	us								•	×
Locat	ion D					Overload	Unit	RMS	Peak	Min	*
Ch1	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00010	0.00021	-0.00001	
Ch2	-20	-1	OV	1	20	No	v	0.00060	0.00072	-0.00072	
Ch3	-20	-1	OV	1	20	No	v	0.00036	0.00049	-0.00049	
Ch4	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00041	0.00052	-0.00052	
Ch5	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00029	0.00041	-0.00041	
Ch6	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00020	0.00030	-0.00030	
Ch7	-20	-1	0V	1	20	No	v	0.00056	0.00066	-0.00066	
Ch8			÷.			No	v	0.00051	0.00060	-0.00060	Ŧ

Figure 160: Input Channel Status



Once ready, there are four ways to start a test: the F2 function key, the Run button on the control panel, the Run button on the toolbar, and the Run command in the Control menu.

	Cont	trol	View	Layout	Tools	Rep
I Sine4 [VCS(Swept Sin	1	Co	nnect	Ctr	+Shift+	c
Connect Status: O	2	Dis	conned	t Ctrl	+Shift+	D
Run	۲	Ru	n		F	2
	10.1	Ho	İd		F	3
IL Run Ho	8	Sto	p		F	5

Viewing Signals

Signal data is displayed under the Signal Display tabs. More than one of these tabs can be opened but only one is active at a time. Each tab can have a custom title. Each Signal Display tab contains one or more display windows that display data in various kinds of plots. These windows can be freely arranged inside the tabs or ordered using the commands under the Layout menu.



Figure 161: Signal Display Window

There are many ways to open a new display window. A signal can be directly viewed by right-clicking on it and selecting Display in a New Overlaid Window.



Live Signals Run Fold	lers Data Files		
🕞 🔛 Time stream			u li.
De Ctave			M M.
🕞 🥅 Time Blocks		0.00005	
4 🔛 Auto-Power Spect	ra		
APS(Ch1)[f]			
AP5(Ch2)[f]	Display in a New Window [doub	ole-click]	
🛵 APS(Ch3)[f]	Add to the <u>Active</u> Window		

Figure 162: Display a Signal in a New Window

A blank window can be created from a window template by selecting the template under the View menu.

<u>V</u> iew	Layout T <u>o</u> ols	<u>R</u> eport	<u>H</u> elp						
	New Window	Ctrl+W							
0	Save Window	Ctrl+U							
Def	Default Windows								
	Spectrum	Ctrl+1							
	Frequency Resp	onse Fund	tion Ctrl+2						
	Time Stream		Ctrl+3						
	Time Blocks		Ctrl+4						
	Channel Status		Ctrl+5						
	Digital I/O		Ctrl+6						
	Run Log	Ctrl+7							
	Numeric Display	Ctrl+8							
	Recording Status	Ctrl+R							
	Orbit	Ctrl+9							

Figure 163: View Tab

When you select an item from the View menu, a dialog is displayed allowing you to select the type of window and which signals to display. The available signals are listed on the left, and the plot types are shown on the right.



New Signal Display Window		? X
All signals (i) Saved signals (i) Live signals filter signal by name>	>	
Choose plot signals	Choose window type	
Image: Control of the contro	Overlaid plot	

Figure 164: Window Customizer

You can also create a new (empty) window by right-clicking next to the display window tabs, and selecting the type of window.





Figure 165: Create New Display Window by Right-clicking Top Bar

There are 11 different types of windows here but depending on the current test type, only some of them may be available. Right-clicking the top bar of any window opens the window customizer dialog shown above. The other types of windows are described here:

Empty Window: is a single frame window. Multiple signals can be overlaid in this type of window.

Stack Window: plots each signal in a separate plot, stacked vertically. All signals in a stacked plot must have the same x-axis quantities.

Numeric Window: displays the numeric values of the signal in a table.

Bode Plot: plots the magnitude and phase of a signal in a stacked plot.

Waterfall Window: shows a 3D display with time on one axis, frequency on another, and amplitude in the third.

ColorMap Window: plots frequency in the horizontal direction, time in the vertical direction, and uses color to represent magnitude.

Recording Status shows if each channel is on recording or on idle along with the recording parameters.

Channel Status Window: shows the current state of each input channel. Both bar graphs which show the current overall voltage level and numerical readings are shown.

Chan	Channel Status 🔹 🗙										
Locat	ion D					Overload	Unit	RMS	Peak	Min	*
Ch1	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00009	0.00019	-0.00003	
Ch2	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00057	0.00067	-0.00067	
Ch3	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00042	0.00059	-0.00059	
Ch5	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00040	0.00052	-0.00052	
Ch6	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	v	0.00027	0.00037	-0.00037	
Ch7	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	V	0.00030	0.00041	-0.00041	
Ch8	-20	-1	ov	1	20	No	V	0.00058	0.00069	-0.00069	
•						No	V	0.00050	0.00062	-0.00062	Ŧ

Figure 166: Channel Status Window



Run Log Window: shows a log of test events as they occur.

System Graph Window: displays the topology of networked Spider units and their system information such as hardware type, IP address, SN, and running status.

Digital IO Window: displays the current state of the digital inputs and outputs.

Save Window as User Defined: saves current window with user defined name and this saved window can be recalled from View tab.

Rename This Window: changes the name of the current window.

Close This Window: closes the current window.

Close Other Windows: closes all other windows except the current window.

RMS, Peak, Peak-Peak, and Mean values can be shown for signal attributes.

Quantity	RMS
	RMS
Font	Peak Peak-Peak
Arial	Mean

Figure 167: Attributes of Signal Display

The bar graphs are in a logarithmic scale so that the presence of both low-level and high-level signals can be seen. The readings show the minimum, maximum, RMS, and Peak levels, in the units set in the channel setup table. If the units are in acceleration, then the signal is integrated to show the velocity peak and double integrated to show the displacement peak. The integration is done digitally and should only be taken as estimation; the accuracy should not be relied on.

The Overload column shows when a channel is overloaded due to an input signal over the input maximum. When in the overloaded state, the readings from the channel should not be used.

The channel status information can be updated while a test is not running by rightclicking in the window and selecting **Start Refresh**.

Once a window is created, with a type and combination of displayed signals, it can be saved as a custom window template. To save a current window layout, select the window and choose Save Active Window as User Defined under the Display menu. After saving, this template will be available under User Defined Windows in the Display menu.

Signals can also be added to existing windows. Dragging a signal from the signal list to a window will display it in the window. You can also right-click on the signal and



select Add to the Active Window. Note that the target window for the signal must be a valid option for the signal type.

Test Parameters

The Test configuration window, analysis parameters tab is designed to configure test settings as required.

G Test Configurations for Acou	stic_Test_3 [DSA (Acoustic)]		1	<u>1</u> ×1
Analysis parameters «	rer la sui		o. 1. 61		
Analysis parameters	FFT analysis settings —		Octave filter parameters		
Run schedule	Block size/Line	1024 / 450	Octave resolution	1/3	-
Event action rules	Window	Hanning	Low frequency band (Hz)	10	•
Save/Recording setup	Overlap ratio	No Overlap	High frequency band (Hz)	10000	•
	Average mode	Exponential	Average mode	Exponential	•
	Average number	8	Frequency weighting	Z	-
	FFT average on/off	Average on 🔽	Time trace frequency	Overall	-
	Reference channel settin	gs	Trace update times(s)	0.04	•
	Reference channel	Ch1 💌	Sound level meter paran	neter	
	Test summary		Time trace type	L Time-weight	-
	Block T = 0.02 s	dT = 1.953125E-05 s	Analysis period	None	-
	Sampling rate (fs) = 51200	Hz dF = 50 Hz	Result update time(s)		10
	Frequency range (fa)=2304	0 Hz	Result history	256	- 1
			<u>Q</u> K	<u>C</u> ance	1

Figure 168. Test Parameters for Acoustic Analysis

FFT Analysis Parameters

Block Size/ Lines defines the size of the time blocks in terms of the number of samples, which the FFT algorithm transforms to a number of spectral Lines in the frequency domain. Increasing the block size increases the resolution of the frequency transform and allows lower frequencies to be detected but this also increases the calculation time and slows down response.

The ratio between Lines and Block Size is determined by the characteristics of A/D converter and anti-aliasing filter. In general, the ratio is about 0.46 which means that a time block of 1024 samples results in about 0.46 * 1024 = 471 Lines in the spectrum.



Window lets the user choose the window to be applied during FFT operation. Windowing functions can help reduce leakage and increase the precision of the frequency measurement. Detailed descriptions about window types and average modes can be found in the DSA Basics document.

Overlap Ratio sets the proportion of the samples in the time blocks that are overlapped when calculating the FFT. Higher overlap ratios result in faster response time but increase processing requirements. The Overlap ratio options are: no overlap, 25%, 50%, 75%, 87.5%, 95%, and As High as Possible.

Average Mode gives options such as: Exponential, linear and peak hold as the methods used to average the signal spectrum.

Average Number is the number of blocks that are averaged for the signal spectrum. Increasing the number of averages reduces the variance of the signal spectrum.

FFT Average On/Off enables / disables the FFT average function.

Reference Channel Settings allows the user to choose a channel as a referencefor calculating the frequency response function, coherence and cross power spectrum. The user can specify the selected channel to be either the response channel or the excitation channel. Signals like CPS, Coherence and FRF are defined based on this selection.

Octave Filter Parameters

Octave Resolution defines the octave resolution including: 1/1, 1/3, 1/6 and 1/12.

Low Frequency Bound (Hz) defines the low frequency (span) of the measurement in Hz.

High Frequency Bound (Hz) defines the high frequency (span) of the measurement in Hz.

Average Type defines the averaging type including: exponential, linear and peak hold.

Frequency Weighting defines the frequency weighting including: A, B, C or Z.

Time Trace Frequency (Hz) defines which center band frequency, overall or frequency weighted band is used to plot time traces.

Trace Update Time(s) defines the time trace display duration. Select a larger update time to create longer time trace display duration.

Sound Level Meter Parameters

Time Trace Type defines the time weighting includes L, Leq and LE.



Analysis Period specifies the time duration for each analysis period.

Result Update Time(s) defines how many times the result will beupdated.

Result History defines the measurement length of the result history.

Order Tracking

Introduction

Order Tracking is a general term describing a collection of measurement functions used for analyzing the dynamic behavior of rotating or reciprocating machinery for which the rotational speed can change over time. Unlike the power spectrum and



other frequency-domain analysis functions where the independent variable is frequency, Order Tracking functions present the data against multiples (Orders) of the variable shaft running speed.

The most useful measurements are Order Spectra and Order Tracks. An Order Spectrum displays the amplitude of the signal as a function of harmonic orders of **the reference shaft's rotation frequency. This means that a harmonic or sub**harmonic order component remains in the same analysis line (at the same horizontal position) regardless of the speed of the machine.

The technique that observes the changes of a measured quantity at a given order vs. RPM is called **tracking**, as the rotation frequency is being tracked and used for analysis. Most of the dynamic forces exciting a machine occur at multiples of the rotation frequency, so interpretation and diagnosis is greatly simplified by use of order analysis.

An Order Track is simply the history of measured amplitude at a single order versus the machine shaft speed (in RPM). There are other types of tracking functions. For example, you can track the FFT-based PSD spectra, a fixed band or an octave band versus RPM; all of these are tracking functions.

Capabilities of the Spider

The processing repertoire of Crystal Instruments' Spider includes performing Order Tracking functions. With the CI Order Tracking package, the Spider can:

- Measure and optionally record up to two (analog or digital) tachometer pulse signals simultaneously.
- Measure and optionally record 1 to 8 analog dynamic response signals simultaneously.
- Process both tachometer signals to yield high fidelity RPM versus time speed signals (Tach Ch1 and Tach Ch 2) which can in turn be recorded.
- Measure the constant frequency spectrum, also called as the FFT spectrum for up to 128 channels (requires multiple Spider modules).
- Measure the Order Spectra for up to 128 channels
- Measure the Order Tracks with phase for up to 128 channels (Can include multiple orders, including fractional orders for each channel). Measure the energy in fixed frequency bands vs. RPM for up to 128 channels

Applications

There are several different applications for order tracking. A discussion of some is given below.

The first application, often referred to as Run Up/Run Down, is used to survey a **machine's dynamic response when the operating RPM is varied across the entire** operating span. In this case, the RPM range can be very large, from a few RPM to 10,000 RPM. Such tests are run on automotive or aircraft engines and when commissioning new or refurbished stationary processing equipment. The



measurements can be any physical quantities such as sound, displacement, velocity, acceleration, torque, etc. The analysis measure can be the amplitude or the power of an order, the energy over a fixed frequency band, a bin of octave filter, etc. The most important result for this type of measurement is the magnitude of the response versus RPM.

The second application is monitoring measured machine displacement, velocity, acceleration, pressure, current or sound while the machine is performing its normal duty. The instrument measures the amplitudes of specific orders and their phase relative to a reference tachometer input signal. The phase is calculated relative to the tachometer input or a separate reference input. This application is common for machine diagnosis and balancing. In this case, the operating RPM is relatively stable. Order tracking technology is useful to increase the accuracy of the estimation of orders.

Order Track signals with phase are useful in the study of rotating machine during **Run Up/Run Down. This is often presented as a "Bode Plot", useful in** characterizing resonance/excitation intersections. The Bode Plot is a concept borrowed from control theory; it provides simultaneous Amplitude and Phase data over a changing speed range (i.e. Run Up or Coast Down). Some of the setup information depends on the rate of change of the RPM. The Run Up or Coast Down could take anywhere from a few minutes to a few hours (such as for a cold startup on a turbine).

Understanding Order Tracking

Resolution and Span

In fixed-bandwidth operation, an analyzer collects N successive samples from an analog time-history at a sample rate, f_s. The analog signal is pre-filtered by a low-pass *anti-aliasing* filter set to the desired analysis frequency range, F_{span} and the sample rate is set to k F_{span}, where k is a constant specific to the analyzer. Each captured time-history is transformed to yield a spectrum. The following spans and resolutions result:

$\Delta t = 1/f_s = 1 / k F_{span}$	time between adjacent time points (${f S}$)
$T_{span}=N\Delta t$	duration of each time capture or memory load period $({f S})$
$\Delta F = 1/T_{span}$	difference between adjacent frequency points (\mathbf{Hz})
$\mathbf{F_{span}} = \mathbf{N}\Delta \mathbf{F} \ / \ \mathbf{k}$	frequency range presented (\mathbf{Hz})

In order-normalized (order-tracked) analysis, both the frequency range and sample rate must *vary* in proportion to the machine speed. This is accomplished by



measuring the shaft speed with a tachometer and deriving a sample rate equal to \mathbf{k} \mathbf{O}_{span} times the instantaneous shaft speed. \mathbf{O}_{span} is the *maximum* number of shaftspeed orders (multiples) to be measured in a spectrum. The effective anti-aliasing filter must constantly adjust to limit the incoming signal bandwidth to \mathbf{O}_{span} times the shaft-turning frequency. This results in the following spans and resolutions:

$\Delta \mathbf{R} = 1/\mathbf{f}_{s} = 1/\mathbf{k} \mathbf{O}_{span}$	shaft-angle between adjacent signal samples (Revolution)
$R_{span}=N\Delta R$	number of turns in each memory capture (Revolution)
$\Delta O = 1/R_{span}$	difference between adjacent order points (Order)
$O_{span} = N\Delta O / k$	order span presented (Order)

Typical analyzers require between 2.56 and 4 samples *per maximum order spanned*. This is the same **k** multiple relating the analyzer's sample-rate to the frequency band studied in normal fixed-bandwidth analysis. The exact numeric value is determined by the analyzer's design specifics.

Processing Concept



The vibration signal is sampled by an ADC that runs at a *constant* 102.4 kHz sample rate and is protected by a *fixed-frequency* anti-aliasing filter. The bandwidth of this filter, **F**_{span}, is selected such that ...

Fspan>RPMmax X Ospan/ 60

... where RPM_{max} is the maximum machine shaft speed to be analyzed and O_{span} is the *maximum* order of shaft rotation to be analyzed. The sample-rate, f_s , is set to a deliberately high value with regard to the input filter.

The resulting highly over-sampled digital time history is passed to the input memory of a digital reconstruction (amplitude-interpolation) filter. While this filter



updates at the input sample rate, the output of this low-pass filter is sampled at a fixed number of times *per shaft revolution*. These sample times are <u>not</u> uniformly spaced in time. Rather, each sample is taken at a time corresponding to a shaft rotation of $\Delta \mathbf{R}$ from its predecessor. These fixed-angle sample times are computed from the successive periods of the tachometer signal.

The tachometer pulse train is applied to a precise timing circuit which measures the period between adjacent pulses. The two most recent periods are sent to curve-fitting and interpolation modules which compute the appropriate times at which to **sample the interpolation filter's output. The sample times are computed based** upon the assumption that the shaft experiences a *constant angular acceleration* between adjacent tachometer pulses. This real-time process accepts input (**n**) and output (**N**) pulse-per-revolution sampling constants, allowing the use of one or more equally spaced tachometer pulses per shaft rotation.

The resulting digital angle-history is presented for subsequent FFT and average processing. The interpolation filter introduces a processing delay between ADC input and the presentation of the angle-history. However, this delay affects all channels identically and the process proceeds in real-time without compromise.

After data re-sampling, a discrete Fourier transform (DFT) algorithm can convert the angle-history into the order domain. While many competitive systems employ **"power**-of-two" **FFTs that restrict block size to be a binary number, Crystal** Instruments utilizes a more flexible algorithm that allows this dimension to be a **product of prime numbers (i.e. 1, 2, 5). This allows selecting "nice numbers" for** resolution and span in all domains.

Tachometer Processing and RPM Measurement

A **tachometer** converts the angular velocity of a rotating shaft into an electrical signal, typically a voltage. Tachometers with a DC proportional to speed output are totally unsuitable for order analysis. A far more precise device generating pulses on an equal-angle spacing is required. While it is possible (subject to restrictions) to analyze the orders of a rotating shaft based upon a once-per-turn tachometer pulse such as that generated by a keyway-viewing proximeter (a key-phasor probe), a stable multiple pulse-per-revolution signal provides far better angular resolution. This is the domain of the shaft encoder, an electro-optical device that produces a train of n logic-level pulses per shaft revolution. **(Be very wary of "homemade"** multi-pulse tachometers; uneven target spacing can generate the false impression that the shaft speed is modulated.) While less facilitating, a once-per-turn pulse signal can be used to synchronize an order analysis. An example of a once-per-turn optical tachometer is shown in the figure below.





Figure 169. Optical tachometer setup.

This 1/turn pulse must be used to facilitate N/turn sampling of a machine's

dynamic signals. In the ancient days of yore, a complex accessory box called a tracking adaptor was used to provide this sample-rate multiplication. The tracking adaptor (tracking ratio tuner) was comprised of two components, a phase-locked loop (PLL) and a voltage-tuned filter. The PLL accepted a variable frequency input pulse train (i.e. 1/rev) and provided an output pulse train at a higher frequency of exactly M/D (M and D being available integer settings) times the input rate; this pulse train became the order-normalizing sample rate. The second component was a voltage-tuned low-pass filter driven by the PLL phase error (an analog voltage) that tracked the sample rate and was thus a tracking anti-aliasing filter, expanding and contracting its passband in tune with machine speed.

Today's digital re-sampling algorithm does away with the need for an external tracking adaptor. It provides better tracking because of its fundamental assumption that the shaft changes speed with constant angular acceleration between pulses. The phase-locked loop circuit implied a tacit assumption of constant angular velocity between tachometer pulses.

The Spider-80x modules provides for high-fidelity sampling of the tachometer signal to preserve the details of its waveform. Regardless of the sample rate applied to the input channels, the tachometer is recorded as a time-stream at the **instrument's maximum sample rate of 102.4 kHz. A dedicated high**-speed counter precisely measures the period between adjacent tachometer input pulses.

This special hardware circuitry allows the dedicated tachometer channel to sample at the highest possible sampling rate. This technique has several obvious advantages:

The time domain signal of the tachometer input is transformed by A/D converter into a digital signal. The user can observe the pulse trains of the tachometer signal and set threshold arbitrarily.



- Accurate phase information can be obtained relative to each data channel because the tachometer channel, which is fed by high frequency sampling oscillator, is synchronized with data channels.
- The RPM estimation is not influenced by the current data sampling rate.
- Two independent tachometer input channels provide independent RPM signals simultaneously.
- A reconstructed series of pulses at instants when the tachometer generated a pulse is created and can be used for analysis.

Pulse per Rev is defined as the number of tachometer input pulses per shaft revolution. Pulse per Rev must be defined by the user so that the instrument can calculate the shaft frequency from the tachometer frequency. The relationship is:

Tachometer Reference freq = Tachometer freq / Pulses per Rev



In most tests, the Pulses per Rev will be 1. (Sensing a keyway or other once/turn target is relatively simple.) However, in other situations, such as viewing a toothed flywheel or reference gear, the Pulses per Rev can be as high as hundreds. In general, the higher the Pulse per Rev, the more resolute an order analysis becomes.

Pulse Detection

A good tachometer processing instrument allows the user to see the tachometer signal in its original time waveform. This aids setting the threshold of pulse detection, simplifying tachometer setup.

Order Tracks and Order Spectrum

Synchronizing the sampling to the rotating speed allows presentation of measurement results in the angle and order domains in lieu of the time and frequency domains. An order is simply a frequency divided by a reference frequency, **normally a machine's** shaft-turning frequency. This means that the order location in an order-normalized spectrum indicates the number of vibration cycles per shaft revolution. The tracked magnitude (which can be measured using EU_{pk}, EU_{rms}, or EU_{rms}²) of an order is the measurement extracted through a tracking filter with its center frequency located at this order. An Order Power Spectrum measurement gives a quantitative description of the amplitude, or power, of the orders in a signal. It provides a good view of all order components of a signal. This can help you rapidly identify significant forcing mechanisms.

The following figure shows conceptually how angle re-sampling can be used to analyze vibrations from an engine during start up. Once the signal has been



transformed into its angle domain, the FFT can be applied to analyze the order spectrum of the vibrations.



Figure 177: Angular data resampling of a chirp signal

An important concept that must be introduced now is called Δ Order (delta order). In the FFT based frequency spectrum analysis, the frequency span and frequency resolution are fixed. The capability of discriminating frequency components is equal in both low and high frequency. In rotating machine analysis, we need to have better analysis resolution in the low frequency than that in high frequency. For example, if the rotating speed is at 60 RPM, we definitely care if the instrument can tell the difference between 1Hz (order 1) and 2Hz (order 2); in contrast, if the rotating speed is at 6000 RPM, the user probably won't care if the instrument can discriminate the measurement between 100Hz (order 1) and 101Hz.

With the digital resampling technique, the order tracks and order spectrum are extracted based on a filter with equal Δ Order instead of equal Δ Frequency. The concept is illustrated in the following figure:





Figure 178: Comparison of constant band tracking and digital re-sampling method.

The left figure shows when the order tracks are extracted using conventional FFT method with fixed resolution, the Δ Frequency of the tracking filter will be fixed; the right figure illustrates that if the order tracks are extracted using digital resampling, the Δ Frequency tracking filter will be increased proportionally with the RPM. Obviously, the method of digital resampling is more desirable in extracting the measurement of orders.

FFT Spectrum or Constant Bandwidth Spectrum

Constant bandwidth spectra (FFT Spectra) remain an important tool for the diagnosis of mechanical problems. While an order spectrum is ideal to track the **behavior of a machine's forcing functions, and FFT is ideal for tracking its** resonances. Further, various 3-D visualization tools make it easier to understand the interplay of these two machine characteristic. For example, a series of FFT Spectra can be cascaded (by time or by RPM) in a 3D waterfall as shown below:





Figure 179:3D FFT spectrum

The above FFT waterfall presents a sequence of Amplitude-versus-Frequency traces, each measured at a different operating RPM. The horizontal axis of the 3D RPM **Spectrum is frequency. The vertical trace amplitude is in G's (or some other vibration transducer's units). The inclined z-axis is represents RPM, with constant ARPM spacing between the traces. A color map** can also be used to describe the magnitude of the whole range as shown below.